LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
Date:

Friday 20 August 2021

Time:

2.00 pm

Venue:

Microsoft Teams – please click here

Copies of agendas, reports, minutes and other attachments for the Council’s meetings are available on
the Lambeth website. www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov

Members of the Committee
Councillor Fred Cowell, Councillor Martin Tiedemann, Councillor Linda Bray, Councillor Emma Nye,
Councillor Irfan Mohammed, Councillor Rezina Chowdhury, Councillor Ibrahim Dogus, Deputy Mayor,
Councillor Pauline George, Councillor Becca Thackray and Councillor Philip Normal

Substitute Members
Councillor Joshua Lindsey, Councillor John Kazantzis, Councillor Jennie Mosley, Councillor Matthew
Bennett, Councillor Andy Wilson, Councillor Danial Adilypour, Councillor Donatus Anyanwu, Councillor
Claire Holland, Councillor Jon Davies, Councillor Liz Atkins, Councillor Marcia Cameron, Councillor
Timothy Windle, Councillor Stephen Donnelly and Councillor Clair Wilcox
Members Required for this meeting will be: Councillor Fred Cowell, Councillor Linda Bray and
Councillor Jennifer Brathwaite

Further Information
If you require any further information or have any queries please contact:
Jacqueline Pennycook, Telephone: 020 7926 2167; Email: jpennycook@lambeth.gov.uk
Published on: Thursday 12 August 2021

Queries on reports
Please contact report authors prior to the meeting if you have questions on the reports or wish to inspect
the background documents used. The contact details of the report author are shown on the front page of
each report.

@LBLdemocracy on Twitter http://twitter.com/LBLdemocracy or use #Lambeth
Lambeth Council – Democracy Live on Facebook http://www.facebook.com/

How to access the meeting:

For Members of the Public
This is a Microsoft Teams Live Event meeting. If you are new to Microsoft Teams, clicking the above link
will take you to the meeting page where you will be prompted to download the app or watch on the web
instead. Please follow the instructions to watch on the web. On doing so, you can join our live event
anonymously.

For Members of the Committee
Please refer to the joining instructions you have already received – do not use the link above.

Digital engagement
We encourage people to use Social Media and we normally tweet from most Council meetings. To get
involved you can tweet us @LBLDemocracy.

Audio/Visual Recording of meetings
Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees using whatever, nondisruptive, methods you think are suitable. If you have any questions about this please contact
Democratic Services (members of the press please contact the Press Office). Please note that the Chair
of the meeting has the discretion to halt any recording for a number of reasons including disruption
caused by the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.
Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the material produced so that
it can be reused and edited by all local people and organisations on a non-commercial basis.

Representation
Ward Councillors may be contacted directly to represent your views to the Council: (details via the
website www.lambeth.gov.uk)

AGENDA
PLEASE NOTE THAT THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA MAY BE CHANGED AT THE MEETING.

Page
Nos.
1

Election of Chair

2

Declaration of Pecuniary Interests
Under Standing Order 4.4, where any councillor has a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the Members’ Code of Conduct
(para. 4)) in any matter to be considered at a meeting of the Council, a
committee, sub-committee or joint committee, they must withdraw
from the meeting room during the whole of the consideration of that
matter and must not participate in any vote on that matter unless a
dispensation has been obtained from the Monitoring Officer.

3

Minutes

1 - 34

To approve and sign the minutes of the meetings held on 9 June, 12
July and 20 July 2021 as correct records of the proceedings.

4

Licensing Applications for the Grant / Review of a Premises
Licence

35 - 40

Bayo Dosunmu, Strategic Director of Resident Services
Contact: Bina Patel, Licensing Manager, 020 7926 4103
Email: BPatel@lambeth.gov.uk

4a

Passyunk Avenue Unit 5, 22 Leake Street, London SE1 7NN
(Bishop's ward)

41 - 76

4b

Charcoal Kebab, 266 Wandsworth Road, London SW8 2JR
(Larkhall ward)

77 - 118

4c

Theatro, 69-71 Westow Hill, London SE19 1TX (Gipsy Hill
ward)

119 - 204

HEARING PROCEDURE FOR LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
Full information on the procedure is sent to all parties to the hearing. The information below is a précis of
that information.
Parties to the hearing must notify Licensing Services within prescribed timescales (these vary according
to the type of hearing) that they intend to attend and/or be represented at the hearing, and whether any
witnesses will be attending on their behalf.
The hearing will operate as follows (subject to the discretion of the Chair):








In the form of a discussion led by the Committee; cross examination will not normally be permitted;
A total of three minutes speaking time is normally allowed for each party. Any preliminary points
will be treated separately;
Where there is more than one representation raising the same or similar grounds, those parties
should consider nominating a single representative to address the Sub-Committee on their behalf
at the hearing;
Parties to the hearing may be permitted to ask questions of any other party or witness;
Parties to the hearing may be required to answer specific questions from members of the SubCommittee seeking clarification of information; and,
The typical order of the hearing will be as follows:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.

The Chair will ask all parties and witnesses to introduce themselves and this should include a
brief explanation of the purpose of their attendance.
Officers present the report.
Committee members ask questions of officers.
The Applicant speaks.
The Applicant's witnesses speak (with permission of Chair).
Committee members ask questions of applicants and their witnesses (only applies to
witnesses who have been given permission to speak).
Other parties speak.
Other parties’ witnesses speak (with permission of Chair).
Committee members ask questions of the other parties to the hearing and their witnesses
(only applies to witnesses who have been given permission to speak).
The Applicant (with exception and with permission of Chair) asks questions of the other
parties to the hearing and their witnesses.
Other parties to the hearing (with exception and with permission of Chair) ask questions of
the applicant/other parties to the hearing and their witnesses.
The Chair's closing remarks.
The Committee retires to make their decision.
Legal adviser informs the hearing of any advice that they have given to the Committee during
the decision-making process.
The Committee announces the decision and gives reasons.
After the hearing officers will write to all parties to confirm the Committee's decision.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE MINUTES
Wednesday 9 June 2021 at 7.00 pm
Microsoft Teams

Present:

Councillor Fred Cowell, Councillor Linda Bray and Councillor Liz Atkins

Apologies:

1

Election of Chair
MOVED by Councillor Linda Bray, SECONDED by Councillor Liz Atkins
RESOLVED: That Councillor Fred Cowell be elected Chair for the meeting.

2

Declaration of Pecuniary Interests
None were declared.

3

Licensing Applications for the Grant / Review of a Premises Licence

3a

London Cocktail Club, 182 Clapham High Street, SW4 7UG (Clapham)
Presentation by the Licensing Officer
The Sub-Committee was informed that this was an application for a review of a premises
licence. The Sub-Committee’s attention was drawn to Chapters 2, 3, 9, 10 and 11 of the
Statutory Guidance, and to sections 1 and 5 of the Statement of Licensing Policy, as the ones
particularly relevant to this application. The options available to the Sub-Committee were set
out in paragraphs 6.2 of the report on page 11 of the agenda papers.
The Licensing Officer confirmed:
 This was an application for a review of a premises licence.
 The applicant was a resident who had submitted the application along with seven
other individuals.
 The application was based on historic issues relating to the premises licence,

Page 2
including the view that the licence should have lapsed before it was last transferred.
 Additional concerns included nuisance and distress caused to residents.
 The licence became Insolvent on 18 October 2018, but the licence was transferred
prior to this date (on 14 March 2017).
 The licence was subsequently transferred to the London Cocktail Bar on 17 January
2019.
 Five representations have been received from members of the public in support of
the premises.
 Additional submissions had been circulated to all parties.

The Chair stated that there was currently a judicial review regarding the lawfulness of transfer
of the licence. The Sub-Committee had revised carefully the submissions that had been made
in support of the review and could not on the six grounds presented make any distinctions
between matters that were going to be decided by way of that judicial review in the High Court
and matters that would fall within the review powers set out in the Licensing Act (2003). The
advice given to the Sub-Committee was that it must ignore the representations not relevant to
the Sub-Committee’s function, including duplicating other regulatory regimes or intervening in
disputes that were being decided elsewhere. The Sub-Committee was not a court of law. The
section 182 guidance stated that licensing applications should not be a ‘re-run’ of planning
decisions. The Sub-Committee interpreted this to mean that it should not be relitigating any
matter that was going to be heard by another body and therefore the Sub-Committee proposed
that this hearing be deferred until such as time as the judicial review proceedings had been
concluded and a determination was made at the High Court. The Sub-Committee could then
hear the application at that stage.

In response to questions from Members, Mr Nelson Richardson, the applicant, informed the
Sub-Committee that:
 He was happy with the Sub-Committee’s suggestion.
 The challenge to the licence was part of the judicial review proceedings.
 At this time, the court had ruled that challenge out of time and had not and may not
ever hear any submissions on this challenge.
 Today, the residents had submitted a final CPR 52-30 appeal which was the final
appeal available. It was not clear how long it would take to get a response to this.
 If nothing changed, no argument had been or would be heard by the court, hence a
review application was submitted.
 The Council and the premises licence holder had been notified in advance that an
appeal would be submitted so all parties had been aware of it.

In response to questions from Members, Ms Sarah Le Fevre, representing the premises
licence holder, informed the Sub-Committee that:
 The unfortunate issue from her client’s point of view was the cost of hiring legal
representation for this hearing and then re-hiring legal representation for the next

Page 3
hearing.
 She had not had any foreshadowing of this as being a potential issue.
 She did not want to force the Sub-Committee into a decision.
 It was her understanding that permission had been refused by High Court to
challenge the refusals to date in the court of appeals. Therefore, this was a renewed
challenge against all existing decisions.
 It was unattractive to have these review proceedings and have a decision on the
licence be undetermined.
 The “life blood” appeared to have been “washed out of the judicial review
proceedings”.

Adjournment and Decision
At 7:23pm, the Sub-Committee withdrew from the meeting together with the Legal Advisor and
Clerk to deliberate in private. The Sub-Committee had heard and considered representations
from all those who spoke. Legal advice was given to the Sub-Committee on the options open
to them and the need for any decision to be proportionate. The Sub- Committee decided to
adjourn the hearing of the application.
RESOLVED: To adjourn the hearing of the application.
Announcement of Decision
Members returned to the meeting and the Chair informed those present of the decision to
adjourn the hearing of the application.
The Sub-Committee was required to provide a prospective date and had decided on the date
of 6 September 2021. Under regulation 12 of the Licensing Hearing Regulations Act 2005, the
Sub-Committee was empowered to defer a hearing of an application to an assigned date. This
would be on two grounds. Firstly, due to ongoing judicial review proceedings. The applicant
had made it clear that he had made an appeal under CPR 52-30. The subcommittee
understood the matter that was raised by the premises licence holder’s representative but the
Sub-Committee was in not in a position to make a determination on the application. It was still
a realistic possibility that the appeal in respect to the judicial review proceedings succeeded
and that the judicial review may cover the same grounds to be covered in the review hearing.
There were a number of matters raised in the application that did not fall under the Licensing
Act 2003. Therefore, the Sub-Committee asked the applicant to examine and focus his
submissions on the sixth ground for the review hearing (public nuisance) and submit further
evidence in this respect before the next scheduled date for the review hearing. The SubCommittee had considered section 52 of the Licensing Act and explained the limits of what the
Sub-Committee could consider in a review hearing. If the Sub-Committee was to proceed with
hearing this application at this meeting, the Sub-Committee was not confident that it was likely
to be coherent. This was because matters which were so adjacent to the Licensing Act were
intertwined with matters that were not so related. The review application should be focused
and give certainty to what the licence holder was supposed to respond to relating the review
application.

3b

We Are The Fair (Kisstory), Streatham Common, SW16 3ET (Streatham South)
Presentation by the Licensing Officer
The Sub-Committee was informed that this was an application for a time limited premises
licence. The Sub-Committee’s attention was drawn to Chapters 2, 3, 8, 9, 10 and 16 of the

Page 4
Statutory Guidance and to section 5 (policies 1, 3, 4, 8, 13 and 14) of the Statement of
Licensing Policy, as the ones particularly relevant to this application. The options available to
the Sub-Committee were set out in paragraphs 6.2 of the report on pages 92 of the agenda
papers.
The Licensing Officer confirmed:
 This was an application for a time-limited premises licence for the dates of 25 and 26
September 2021.
 Since the publication of the report, the applicant had revised his application and was
applying for regulated entertainment and sale of alcohol with amended hours. The
applicant was seeking the hours of 11:00 to 22:00 on Saturday and 11:00 to 21:00
on Sunday for regulated entertainment. Sale of alcohol was being sought for the
hours of 11:00 to 21:30 on Saturday and 11:00 to 20:30 on Sunday.
 The new hours sought by the applicant replicated those granted in 2019 for a similar
event held by the applicant.
 21 representations had been received in respect of the application, but Police, Public
Protection and Licensing had withdrawn their representations as a result of the
revised application and the applicant having accepted additional conditions.
 The remaining 18 representations consisted of 16 members of the public and MP
Bell Rebeirio-Addy against the application, and one representation in support of the
application.
 All additional papers had been submitted to all relevant parties.

Presentation by the applicant
Mr David Dadds, Mr Rob Dudley and Mr Pete Nash informed the Sub-Committee that:
 The Sub-Committee had information on the operating schedule regarding noise,
security plan, how the coronavirus regulations will be followed, and other
information.
 This was a music event for Kisstory. It had a positive track record at the premises for
a number of years.
 The applicant, Rub Dudley, was available to answer questions more specifically
about the event.
 The large majority of individuals attending were people from the local area. The
applicant had the postcodes of the individuals who had bought tickets.
 The applicant had held multiple events across Lambeth and had worked with
EventLambeth.
 The applicant had a strong partnership with Lambeth Council and worked well with
residents and various groups to communicate and discuss any matters arising as a
result of the application. The applicant had an open line of communication with all
residents.
 If matters arose, they would be dealt with and last year there were only six calls
regarding issues throughout the entire event.
 The application was a rigorous process. The applicant went through the Safety
Advisory Group process and had consulted with responsible authorities.

Page 5
 The Police should be considered the main source of advice regarding crime and
disorder. This could be found in section 9.15 of the Statutory Guidance and they had
not objected to the application. Neither had Public Protection or the Licensing
Authority.
 All music would be turned off by 22:00 on Saturday and 21:00 on Sunday.
 The premises licence holder had been compliant with all conditions in the last event
and had been compliant with all the noise limits as set by Licensing.
 The applicant wished to work with responsible authorities and residents for a safe
music festival for the public and striking a balance between the commitment for
putting on the festival and ensuring that the event was still safe.
 The Council had its own guidance regarding environmental noise relating to
concerts. In relation to the events and the size of the festival, limits had been set
regarding background noise and there were 3 to 4 consultants at the event. The
Council had its own offices which monitored the noise at the event.
 There were three monitoring positions as per the guidance.
 If complaints were made from other areas, then those particular areas would be
investigated. This had occurred in the previous event and included three or four
other areas which were monitored for noise.
 The event had a low frequency level of noise and would not concede 80 dB in the
monitoring locations. There were almost no other events that could be able to have
such a strong limit of noise. This was not exceeded in 2019.
 It was important that the event met the sound limits set. As long as the weather
conditions were good enough to monitor the sound (it was very difficult to monitor in
heavy wind or rain).
 If the wind changes and certain areas became affected, then the event would reduce
the sound.
 One of the complaints received by the event in 2019 was from a particular area
which was investigated. Although the noise levels did not exceed the maximum
amount, noise was still adjusted as a courtesy to the resident.
 The event operated at around 95 dB ‘front of house’ levels. If the levels were
adjustable, then they would be adjusted. It was important for the event to meet its
noise limits and also ensure that the event was delivered as expected by patrons.
 Different locations had different levels of noise. There could be issues of distance or
barriers which affected the sound. The residents were nearby Streatham Common
and close to the event. The sound equipment used by the applicant was of high
quality for this reason.
 Not all music amounted to noise nuisance. It was important to ensure that the limit
was met.
 Condition 147 was a condition that had been applied to the licence that was granted
in 2019. It was something that had been expanded upon from the application in
2018. The original wording of it was removed from this application as the applicant
thought that it was excessive as the applicant was being tasked with cleaning the
exterior areas of the land which may not have been affected by the litter relating to
the event.
 Revised wording had been put in place which stated that following the event the
applicant would undertake cleaning of the Common and the surrounding areas to the

Page 6
satisfaction of the Event team and the Parks team, and whilst the applicant was still
de-rigging from the event, should any members of the public report event related
litter in their vicinity, the cleaning team would respond and clean up the reported litter
This could occur up to three days after the event.
 The applicant had contracted Veolia, which was the Council’s street cleaning team
and they were tasked with the post-event sweep of the area. This had occurred in
2019 and were complemented by the applicant’s cleaning team. There were no
issues relating to litter that were raised after the event in 2019 that the applicant was
aware of.
 On the Common the applicant had increased exterior litter bin provisions. Also, on
the Common the applicant had a dedicated cleaning team on perimeter of the site.
There would be a separate team working on common and additional bins would be
provided on the common.
 The nature of the event had changed.
 The event held at Streatham Common in 2015 and 2016 was different from the
event held in 2018 and 2019. There was a different genre of music and a different
profile of patrons.
 The event had improved and the applicant had implemented ideas having learned
from previous years and this was reflected by complaints the event received year on
year. In 2018, the event received 20 complaints and in 2019, the event received 6-7
complaints. Event Lambeth had recorded an improvement over time.
 The event had portaloos on the exterior of the event and in 2019 the event had 14
portaloos on the common itself.
 The applicant had also looked at toilets at other locations. The applicant had worked
with the Council, TFL and private land owners to identify suitable areas along the
egress route.
 The event had stewards and security staff along those routes, directing people to
where the nearest toilets were and discouraging antisocial behaviour.
 The event would have signs reminding people that the area was holding an event in
a residential area and not to commit antisocial behaviour. The event tried to educate
its audience that negative behaviour could have a detrimental impact on the event
being held in future and therefore they were at risk of harming their own enjoyment.
 In relation to antisocial behaviour, following the SAG debrief, complaints on Saturday
totalled to five, complaints on Sunday totalled to four and there was one complaint
received on the Monday. These complaints pertained to antisocial behaviour,
parking, wheelchair access and sound levels. There did not seem to be any specific
issues with regard to urination on the debrief or on the complaint line.
 In terms of preventing nitrous oxide from getting to the event, the applicant had a
fairly robust search policy. This was a three stage search policy. The policy included
metal detectors and if the detectors were triggered, then the people who had set the
detectors off would be searched via a wand and if the wand had an alert, then
individuals would be taken away for an enhanced search or refused entry. This took
place on the public and artist entrance. This policy was subject to everybody that
attended the event including bar staff.
 In relation to the wider common, posters were put around the perimeter informing
people that it was an offence to use nitrous oxide as it was banned.
 The applicant worked with the Public Protection team who would have a team of

Page 7
officers at the event. They liaised with the applicant via the ELT meetings which
occurred regularly throughout the event. Any concerns they had would be
addressed. If they had concerns more immediate which could not wait until the next
meeting, then they would be able to use radios to get through to the event staff.
 The applicant had an exterior and interior security team. They were tasked with
looking after the perimeter of the event. If Public Protection spotted something, event
staff would send the team to look at the issue and vice versa.
 Police would be on site and had powers to seize cannisters and issue Fixed Penalty
Notices (FPNs).
 The applicant had a process to deal with issues relating to other types of drugs. This
included the search process and the bag search process. Individuals were obliged to
empty their pockets and be physically patted down.
 Once this procedure had been passed, there were K9 detection dogs that would be
working at the event. There would be two dogs working at any one time. There
would be four to five available dogs at the event for drug detection purposes.
 There were also amnesty bins prior to entry lane.
 There would be signage at the event in relation to the drugs policy.
 The applicant would agree with the Police on what the drugs policy would be if an
individual was found with a particular quantity of drugs or a particular substance.
This was dependent on what the substance was, how much of the substance had
been discovered and the behaviour of the individual the drug had been discovered
upon.
 The Police feedback on the previous event had stated that a lot of work had been
done prior to the event taking place. They felt that the mobile Police station at front
was good and gave people a focus point which had been made clear where the
Police would be located. There were no antisocial behaviour complaints that had
been made. There was a good Police presence which worked well and on the
Saturday, there had been 22 stops and five searches. There were also five
dispersals. Regarding some searches that were made, there had been two
individuals who had been searched and the issues were escalated to the Police.
There were four arrests made.
 Considerable effort was made to ensure that there was no supply of drugs and if
drugs were found on any individual, they would be confiscated.
 There appeared to be a lower use of nitrous oxide since the event had changed from
Garage Nation to Kisstory.

In response to questions from Members, PC Constable informed the Sub-Committee that:
 He concurred with the number of arrests and searches.
 There were two separate events in 2018 and 2019. In 2018, the event was Garage
Nation and the event held in 2019 was Kisstory. He felt that the Kisstory event was
different. In 2018, he was on night duty doing patrols but he remembered attending
the Garage Nation event and this had a completely different demographic in terms of
the genre of music and the profile of patrons.
 It was possible to have a record of zero drug use at an event, but it was well known
that festivals attracted drugs and or psychoactive substances. This was something

Page 8
that was realistically difficult to measure.
 He did not see a huge number of parking issues. He understood that this was not a
huge problem. There were issues with residents struggling to get into their roads as
part of the Traffic Management Plan (TMP). It was something that was hard for event
organisers to regulate as it was difficult to let all individuals through; otherwise those
allowed into the area would be people who were not residents of the area.

In response to questions from Members, Mr Dadds, Mr Dudley and Mr Nash informed the SubCommittee that:

 Managing traffic in the area was a balancing act.
 A TMP was put in place in 2015 and it had received criticism from residents that it
did not go far enough or wide enough or prevent event related parking.
 In 2016 and 2017, the TMP was expanded further, but in 2019, there was a large
TMP with multiple road closures. All residents in the catchment area received
permits so they could access their roads. If they needed more permits, they could
contact the applicant.
 Whilst the event was being advertised as Garage Nation, the patrons used to largely
drive to events, despite the applicant encouraging public transport. Since the change
to Kisstory, patrons did not drive to the event as much.
 Some objectors submitted a photo of Streatham Common South which showed a
clear road.
 During some of the ELT meetings, Event Lambeth had raised issues about traffic
restrictions. It turned out that the very measures put in to assist residents, as they
had been so far and wide reaching, it had reached a point in 2019 that there was no
event related traffic to manage and the traffic being managed was simply the
residents they were trying to assist.
 The drug graph submitted by the residents continued to climb even though the event
was not present in the area.

At this point in the proceedings, the Chair stated that any statutory instruments relating to the
coronavirus crises fell outside the remit of the Sub-Committee. If the licence was granted, then
the applicant was required to meet the restrictions of the Safety Advisory Group and it was
they who had the responsibility for determining any additional risk relating to the coronavirus
crises, not the Sub-Committee. Were there to be new restrictions imposed by the government
under the Public Health Act (1984), these would automatically come into operation for any
licence holder. Therefore, the Sub-Committee would not consider any submissions or
objections regarding the application relating to the coronavirus crises as it could not lawfully do
so. Furthermore, any damage that may be caused to Streatham Common as a result of the
event was a contractual matter between Event Lambeth and the applicant and did not affect
the licensing objectives. Therefore, this was also a matter that could not be considered by the
Sub-Committee.

Presentation by interested parties
The Sub-Committee was then addressed by residents. Mr Roger Wood, Streatham Lodge

Page 9
Community, informed the Sub-Committee that:
 He appreciated the comments made by Mr Dadds who was a councillor in Billericay
and was about to become the mayor of Basildon.
 He had recently made comments stating “we need to listen to our residents”.
 The following views were those of the Streatham Lodge Community.
 This was an appeal from the heart of the community.
 One of the main concerns was access to the common before, during and after the
Kisstory events.
 Streatham Common was very small (not as big as Brockwell Park).
 When fully enclosed by all the security and fencing, the event took up approximately
40% of the usable common. This was quite a sizeable amount of the area to which
residents would be denied access.
 During the direction of the site, double light and heavy-duty vehicles needed to cross
the common. Event staff that erected the event put down metal plates and rubber
matting across the footpaths delete leading to the site.
 Local residents had expressed that it was it difficult for people to cross the common
especially with pushchairs or wheelchairs as the metal plates were obstructive.
 In relation to the portable toilet blocks, it was important to note that the event site
was close to a children’s playground. The toilet blocks could be smelly on a hot or
windy day. This created restrictive access to the common on the week before and
during the event to local residents.
 The common should be for available for use to all individuals.
 The common was small and was surrounded by dense housing on all sides and the
event was close to Streatham Common North.
 It was mentioned that the sound recording stations on previous years were on
Streatham Common North and Streatham Common South, but both of these
locations were on the top end of the common. The actual event was on the bottom
end of the common with the stage facing away from sound monitoring stations.
 The sound monitoring stations were located poorly and did not give an accurate
sound recording.
 One of the main concerns was about drug-related crime.
 He lived half a mile away from the common on the south side and he could hear the
music from the event.
 London was in the middle of a crime wave.
 The situation looked like it could get worse over the summer as doors would be
‘unlocked’ and a lot of the violence was fuelled by drug gangs selling drugs by
‘county lines’ which had resulted in stabbings.
 There were stabbings in and around the Clapham area and there had been a
stabbing near his home on Saturday when some youths chased another young
person in the nearby supermarket where he was stabbed. The local Police were
under-resourced and was suffering from budget restraints which had led to protests
and riots.
 There were 80 officers sent to the event in previous years and Police could be better

Page 10
deployed.
 The BBC in July 2018 had reported that it was well known that dance music events
attracted a disproportionately large number of drug users. This would include drug
gangs who carried knives.
 The Gateway Foundation had conducted a study regarding popular substances used
at festivals. One study, found in outdoor electronic dance music events that ecstasy
and NDA was a popular drug and the survey of the music festival attendees found
that 73% of attendees had reported drug use in the past year. 59% of polled festival
attendees reported using cannabis and 34% had reported using cocaine.
 Police in East London had been quoted in the press saying that gangs from across
the UK would come to East London if a music event was being held for more than
23,000 people was allowed to go ahead. Gang members could compete in ‘turf wars’
to boost profits hit by closure of pubs and clubs.
 If the event was allowed to go ahead, then the Sub-Committee needed to consider
who the event would attract.
 The BBC in May 2021 quoted the government saying that “the government had
grave concerns regarding the potential for deaths from illegal drugs at festivals this
summer. Charities were worried that pent up energy would increase the number of
drugs people took and were also concerned with the strength of the drugs and lack
of testing in order to identify bad batches”. People’s tolerance for drug use would
have declined as a result of the lockdown regulations in the last year.
 Public Protection had sent a letter on 30 April 2021 stating that the event should not
go ahead for the prevention of public nuisance and public safety and that they had
also said in relation to the event that they had concerns regarding the operating
schedule, the event medical plan, the noise and traffic management plans and the
event in general.
 Allowing the event to go ahead would have a detrimental effect on the public that
used to come in, especially families who used it for recreational purposes.
 There would be noise pollution and an increase in drug related crime in the
community, there were concerns about gang-related crime and the representation
was supported by the local MP and the local community. The Sub-Committee should
refuse the application.

In response to questions from Members, Mr Wood and Mr Sullivan and Mr Paranandi of the
Streatham Lodge Community informed the Sub-Committee that:

 Two of the monitoring stations were behind the main stage with the stage facing in
the opposite direction.
 The monitoring stations were located on top of the common and the stage was
situated halfway down the common facing down towards the A23 so the sound
would travel down from the main stage down towards the A23.
 The monitoring stations were inappropriately placed and the event sound technicians
always got around the issue by stating that these measuring points had been
nominated by the Council and had not been moved by the Council for decades.
 The nature of the event had not changed. Most of the acts were still garage acts.

Page 11

Ms Janet Veale informed the Sub-Committee that:
 The physics of sound never changed.
 She was the Principal Audiological and Hearing Impaired Advisor to the ’12 London
Boroughs’.
 Loud and generally low frequency sound would escape soft surfaces and would be
reflected from hard surfaces but it would be a big and strong wavelength and it was
the most damaging wavelength to children’s hearing and people who were suffering
from heart conditions.
 Sound did not ever remain inside the building. A soft walled building would let the
sound through.
 It was unlawful to allow vehicles to cross the common. It was unlawful to enclose the
common and it was unlawful to deny access to all people including children who
would not be allowed to go near the event. These were issues that went beyond the
law and simply affected people and residents who should not be affected as they
would be protected by the law. The protection was being disregarded.

Mr Vince Sullivan informed the Sub-Committee that:
 The Police had made extraordinary efforts in keeping the events and the people safe
in 2019. However, there was no reduction in noise or the widespread misery in the
community.
 It was not just the duration of the event; there were issues with antisocial behaviour,
intimidatory behaviour from people parking on pavements and drug use during the
event. This never happened before 2015 on the common.
 There was compelling evidence that Streatham Common was a totally inappropriate
area to use as a venue for such an event.
 There was no financial benefit to the community from any revenue garnered from the
event.
 A petition had been signed which had 145 signatories against the concert.
 If the event went ahead, he would have no choice but to organise a peaceful protest
with a view to gaining media interest.
 The Sub-Committee would be asked to refuse the application.

Mr Raj Paranandi informed the Sub-Committee that:
 People were parking on adjoining roads and by the time they reached the event,
they would have consumed drugs.
 He had a 6 year old and a 2 year old child, who was newly born the last time the
event was held in 2019.
 There was a ‘tsunami’ of cannisters at the last event. This was not something that
could be mitigated and the issue needed to be considered in conjunction with the
parking controls because unfortunately, in the last four to five years, the parking
controls were strictly controlled for the first few hours of the day before those
managing it left their station. Residents’ permits were not examined closely enough.

Page 12
At this point, people parking on adjoining streets consumed cannisters.
 His daughter had picked up a cannister and enquired why people were sniffing
things off their hands.
 It was not clear how the issue would be solved.
 Although there were metal detectors, and sniffer dogs at the event, the issues
related to occurrences in and about half a mile or so around the event.
 Other than having widespread searches around the common it was not clear how it
would be controlled.

Ms Anna Lanbourn informed the Sub-Committee that:
 When drugs were shut down at the event, they could be found outside the event.
 This was a residential community and did not have parking controls.
 Therefore there was free parking available for anybody who wanted to come.
 In 2019, the parking restrictions did not extend to her road.
 People were sitting in their cars doing drugs.
 There were all types of activity including sex, urination and defecation.
 This was the single most disruptive event that occurred in the local area.
 The application should be refused.

In response to questions from Members, Mr Wood and Mr Sullivan and Mr Paranandi informed
the Sub-Committee that:

 The Police response in 2019 was better than in previous years.
 Police should be commended on their efforts, but there was no discernible change
of demographic at the event.
 The issues related to lax parking controls which were enforced poorly. This was a
bone of contention for every year the event had taken place leading to drug taking.
 In relation to the mitigating steps taken by the applicant, Mr Paranandi had used the
helpline in 2018 in relation to parking which was not addressed and he gave up in
2019.
 Members of the community had a WhatsApp group and were in close contact.
 No amount of Police presence would be able to contain the noise caused by the
event.
 There were fewer complaints because many residents would go away during the
events taking place.
 There was not much change between the 2018 and 2019 events relating to the
demographic.
 Many of the event patrons liked to take drugs.

Page 13
 People had been seen high on drugs, littering streets.
 Mr Wood was almost hit with a nitrous oxide cannister at around 23:00 from a
speeding car arriving from an after party disturbing local residents.
 The vast majority of people attended the event without breaking the law, but there
were people attending who consumed and sold drugs and were generally disruptive.
 There was a Garage Nation event that had taken place in Essex which had fights
and stabbings.
 In relation to 40% of common being blocked off, children used the common. Access
to greenspace for younger people was very important for their mental health.

In response to questions from Members, Mr Wood and Mr Sullivan and Mr Paranandi informed
the Sub-Committee that:
 The cleaning plan did not include two roads in Streatham Lodge community that saw
significant amounts of rubbish, namely Cederburn Gardens and Starathbrook Road.
 The children would start school on Monday following the event. Unless there was
sustained cleaning after the event the children would be walking through the rubbish
on Monday morning.

Mr Rob Glass informed the Sub-Committee that:
 The event would be a useful outlet for young people in the area.
 It was worth having this event after a period of difficulty suffered by young people.

In response to questions from Members, Mr Glass informed the Sub-Committee that:
 It was worth considering the comments from residents regarding the points at which
noise measurements took place.
 It was important that the applicant explained the details relating to the
measurements of the sound emanating from the event.

The applicant was recalled to address matters arising. In response to questions from
Members, Mr Dadds, Mr Dudley and Mr Nash informed the Sub-Committee that:

 The Event Lambeth policy set out the locations where noise measurements would
take place. This was set out in the criteria.
 The Council had a policy and Public Protection had examined the application and felt
that if the applicant complied with the policy, then there was minimal risk of public
nuisance.
 It was clear that the applicant was responsive to noise issues that may occur
throughout the event.
 Monitoring had taken place on areas such as 22 Streatham Common South and the
reading on that was 60 dB.

Page 14
 The policy was adopted at a full Council meeting and was what the applicant had
always worked to. The policy applied to Brockwell Park and Clapham Common. The
applicant had much stricter limits than in either of those locations. Limits that were
applied were based on background noise levels measured by the Council a number
of years ago.
 They were location specific limits.
 The applicant was happy to undertake monitoring of locations.
 For the larger events in Brockwell Park and Clapham, they had a larger fixed limit of
75 dB and 90 dB. The applicant measured limits significantly under those and were
happy to stick to those limits.
 It was not possible to have a location specific limit as it was not clear what the
background levels are. Those were to be established by the local authority.
 The applicant was happy to agree to other monitoring locations, but there was no set
limit as to what would be acceptable at those locations. Without local authority
stipulating limits for those new locations, the applicant should not be obliged to meet
any particular DB levels unless it was the generic 75db.
 The applicant was happy to work with the Safety Advisory Group. This included
Highways, Police, Planning, Parking teams to develop a TMP which was suitable.
 At the moment, it was not possible to produce the document until the Council had
determined what the situation would be around Stratham Common such as having
Controlled Resident Parking and therefore the applicant could not yet develop its
TMP.
 The applicant was more than happy to commit to producing and staffing a TMP.
 SAG would reach out to resident groups regarding parking control. There would be
a plan in place, but this would be advised to the applicant either by Event Lambeth
or by SAG. Event Lambeth had recently changed their strategy for consulting on
events in general. It now went through a two pro-forma consultation, not one.
Highways and Parking enforcement were the experts in the field. The applicant
liaised with them and developed a TMP with them. The applicant was happy to
consult with residents on it, but residents were not experts on the matter.
 Officers were aware about residents raising the issue regarding monitoring locations
as it had been raised before by residents. Noise monitoring could be done in other
non-designated locations.
 The Streatham Common car park was being used as a Covid-19 testing site so
another area was being sought to use as a car park. This was normal for many
events and there was time to find another area.
 This was an event that had complied with all the strict limits that the applicant
operated under. At all times the event noise would be monitored by other sound
experts to make sure that the limit levels were being met.
 The applicant had a special agreement with the Police so that Police were paid for
any Police provision.
 The representation from Public Protection had been withdrawn.
 In relation to drug use, the applicant had had conversations with welfare providers
and medical providers, the Loop and NEIU.
 Mr Dadds being a mayor at another local authority was not relevant.

Page 15
 Paragraph 9.14 of the statutory guidance set out clearly that the Licensing Authority
would take into account representations from the Police and Environmental Health
as they were the experts in their particular areas and the relevant licensing
objectives.
 The event would only take up 10% of the common
 36% of residents of Lambeth attended the event.
 Kisstory was the event held in both 2018 and 2019. Garage Nation had been held
before that.
 There was no correlation between the two events.
 There are only six complaints of the weekend the last time the event was held.
 In relation to policing and door supervision, already £140,000 had been spent on
public safety. The applicant had a thorough search policy inside and outside the
event.
 The reported crime along with the reported complaints had reduced in size and was
well-managed; this was why responsible authorities were not objecting to the
application.
 Gang stabbings in other areas of London were not part of the original
representations made regarding the application and the Sub-Committee should not
place any weight on them.

Adjournment and Decision
At 10:18pm, the Sub-Committee withdrew from the meeting together with the Legal Advisor
and Clerk to deliberate in private. The Sub-Committee had heard and considered
representations from all those who spoke. Legal advice was given to the Sub-Committee on
the options open to them and the need for any decision to be proportionate. The SubCommittee decided to defer the decision of the application.
RESOLVED: To defer the decision of the application.
Announcement of Decision
Members returned to the meeting and the Chair informed those present of the decision to defer
the decision of the application and a decision would be made within five working days.

The meeting ended at 10:45pm

CHAIR
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

Date of Despatch: Thursday 21 July 2021
Contact for Enquiries: Nazyer Choudhury
Tel: 020 7926 0028
E-mail: nchoudhury@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk

Page 16

Page 17

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE MINUTES
Monday 12 July 2021 at 2.00 pm
Microsoft Teams

Present:

Councillor Fred Cowell, Councillor Emma Nye and Councillor Becca
Thackray

Apologies:

1

Election of Chair
MOVED by Councillor Becca Thackray, SECONDED by Councillor Fred Cowell
RESOLVED: That Councillor Emma Nye be elected Chair for the meeting.

2

Declaration of Pecuniary Interests
None were declared.

3

Minutes
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 27 May 2021 and 17 June 2021
would be approved and signed by the Chair as a correct record of proceedings.

4

Licensing Applications for the Grant / Review of a Premises Licence

4a

14 Market Row, London, SW9 8LD, (Coldharbour)
Presentation by the Licensing Officer
The Sub-Committee was informed that this was an application for a new premises licence. The
Sub-Committee’s attention was drawn to Chapters 2, 3, 8, 9, and 10 of the Statutory Guidance
and to Chapter 5 (policies 1, 3, 4 and 8) of the Statement of Licensing Policy, as the ones
particularly relevant to this application. The options available to the Sub-Committee were set

Page 18
out in paragraph 6 of the report on page 30 of the agenda papers.
The Licensing Officer confirmed:
 This was an application for a new premises licence.
 The premises had applied for the sale of alcohol for consumption both on and off the
premises between 10:00-23:00 Monday to Sunday.
 Opening times for the premises would be Sunday to Wednesday 10:00 to 23:00 and
10:00 - 23:30 Thursday to Saturday.
 Representations had been received from the licensing authority and one local
councillor.

Presentation by the applicant

Mr Rob Jephcote, representing the applicant, informed the Sub-Committee that:

 The premises would act as small experimental sister unit to the main restaurant and
cocktail bar located at Unit 12, First Floor, Market Row for which a separate
application had been submitted.
 The premises would be operate like a boutique wine bar and a shop.
 The premises would offer award winning luxury bottle cocktails and have a counter
unit with poser tables providing staff the opportunity to educate customers on how
the business created unique award winning cocktails.
 Patrons could also try samples of cocktails before purchase.
 The premises would offer alcoholic and non-alcoholic cocktails within the premises
and would allow patrons to sit and sip cocktails on one of the tables. There would be
no vertical drinking.
 All bottles sold would be gift wrapped in sustainably sourced wrapping paper.
 During the summer months, patrons would be offered traditional frozen Mexican
cocktails and passers-by will be given samples in paper cups to consume while they
shopped.
 The aim of the business was to operate like a luxury wine bar or wine shop.
 The business had a signature cocktail that had been awarded the UK Cocktail of the
Year 2020.
 The business was also home to the seventh best cocktail in the world and this would
be a great addition to the market.
 The premises would bring people together in a positive way.

In response to questions from Members, Mr Jephcote informed the Sub-Committee that:

Page 19
 Providing samples for patrons whilst they shopped was something that the applicant
would consider retracting.
 The applicant would accept a condition whereby any off-sales of alcohol would be
sold in a sealed bottle container, rather than a paper cup.
 Any kind of music played would be very light background music. There would be no
live music or entertainment at the premises
 The premises was small and could only seat six people due to its size.
 The adjoining restaurant to the premises could offer snacks to go with the alcohol
samples. It was expected that patrons would buy samples of the alcohol before
buying a gift box.

Adjournment and Decision
At 4:06pm, the Sub-Committee withdrew from the meeting together with the Legal Advisor and
Clerk to deliberate in private. The Sub-Committee had heard and considered representations
from all those who spoke. Legal advice was given to the Sub-Committee on the options open
to them and the need for any decision to be proportionate. The Sub- Committee decided grant
the application with conditions.
RESOLVED: To grant the application with conditions.
Announcement of Decision
Members returned to the meeting and the Chair informed those present of the decision to grant
the application with conditions.
The Sub-Committee noted that there would be an additional line added to proposed Conditions
23; that no person shall be allowed to leave the premises with an empty or open container of
beverage. Any off sales of alcohol should be sold in a sealed bottle.

4b

Friends of Mine, Ground Floor, 382 Coldharbour Lane, London, SW9 8LF
(Coldharbour)
Presentation by the Licensing Officer
The Sub-Committee was informed that this was an application for a variation of a premises
licence. The Sub-Committee’s attention was drawn to Chapters 2, 3, 8, 9, and 10 of the
Statutory Guidance and to Chapter 5 (policies 1, 3, 4 and 8) of the Statement of Licensing
Policy, as the ones particularly relevant to this application. The options available to the SubCommittee were set out in paragraph 6 of the report on page 71 of the agenda papers.

The Licensing Officer confirmed:
 This was an application to vary a premises licence so that the premises could
operate as a restaurant.
 The application sought to alter the layout of the premises including the addition of
the use of the outside area and the rear garden.
 The applicant sought the permission of the sale of alcohol for consumption off the
premises by removing condition 12.
 The applicant sought to revise condition 20 so that after an employee left the
business, his or her employment documents would be retained at the business’ head

Page 20
office.
 The applicant sought to revise condition 23 regarding the capacity of the premises.
 The applicant sought to revise condition 24 regarding patrons smoking outside the
premises.
 The applicant sought late night refreshment until 00:00 Monday-Thursday and until
02:00 Friday and Saturday.
 The applicant sought to extend the sale of alcohol for consumption on and off the
premises until 00:00 Monday-Thursday and until 02:00 Friday and Saturday.
 The applicant sought to amend opening hours so the premises would be open
Sunday-Thursday 06:00- 00:00 and Friday and Saturday 06:00-02:30.
 Representations had been received from the Licensing Authority, one resident and
two businesses.

Presentation by the applicant
Mr Gazmir Metushi and his representative Mr Bobby Holder informed the Sub-Committee that:
 The applicant’s business had struggled through the coronavirus crisis.
 The use of the garden area had saved the viability of the business.
 In the past few months, there had not been a single patron sitting inside.
 The only parts of the premises in use were the garden and front tables.
 The premises would add value to the area if the licence was granted.
 The applicant had considered the application carefully and submitted conditions to
ensure that the least amount of disturbance could be caused to neighbours.
 The applicant was also aware of the busy area of Coldharbour and had submitted an
appropriate application.
 The conditions offered by the applicant were in line with government regulations.
 The applicant was a successful businessman and the conditions offered by the
applicant followed government regulations.
 At present, the applicant was operating on new government guidelines and had
submitted a planning application.
 The applicant had franchises in Brixton, Herne Hill and other areas of London.
 Premises staff were well trained and since the applicant had taken over, the area
had improved and was cleaner.
 The applicant cared about the residents and his business. He tried his best to keep
the premises as safe and clean as possible.

In response to questions from Members, Mr Metushi and Mr Holder informed the SubCommittee that:
 The picture of the outside area as shown on page 115 of the agenda papers would

Page 21
be how the premises would remain. The only difference was that alcohol would be
served in that area.
 A request to sit at a table of four would mean that a party of four patrons would be
separated. Two tables would not be put together.
 There was available seating for 32 people at the back and this was inclusive of
social distancing rules.
 Benches could be found on the front of the area.

At this point in the proceedings, the Licensing Officer stated that the use of the outside area at
the front was subject to a tables and chairs licence which was not part of the Licensing Act.

In response to further questions from Members, Mr Metushi and Mr Holder informed the SubCommittee that:

 The applicant intended to be able to serve patrons seated at the front of the
premises until 23:00.
 The applicant had not applied for any music based licence and the amount of noise
generated at the premises had been measured by the applicant and noise levels at
the premises would not be a concern.
 Noise measurements had been taken to ensure that no noise disturbance would be
caused to residents. The premises would occupy a smoking policy and no drinks
were to be taken out to the front of the premises.
 Bottles of wine would be sold as part of the off-licence. The premises would also sell
other products such as cheeses, meats and olives. The wine would be sold with food
only, except in cases of sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises.
 Whenever the premises was open past 00:00, the business would employ SIA staff.
At times when the business was not busy, the premises would close early. Some
days would be busier than other days and there would be no further entry of patrons
to the premises after 23:00 between Monday to Thursday.
 The applicant would agree to a condition whereby no entry to additional patrons
would be allowed after 00:30 on Friday and Saturday.
 The wine that would be sold as part of the off-licence would be sold with closed
vessels.
 The applicant had made an effort to consult neighbouring residents and had a good
relationship with residents in general. If residents were concerned with the business
in any way or had issues regarding noise, then the applicant would be happy to
assist residents in helping alleviate concerns.
 The applicant had not yet engaged with the Sleepless In Brixton campaign, but did
attend various licensing-based meetings including Pubwatch, which would be
restarting after 19 July 2021.
 In relation to the revision of condition 23, the legal number for the maximum amount
of persons at the premises was 62.
 No smokers would be allowed in the back area of the premises after 23:00. All

Page 22
smokers would be limited to smoking in front of the building and no alcohol was to be
served in the outside area after 23:00.
 The amount of smokers that would be allowed in the outside space would be limited.

At this point in the proceedings, the Licensing Officer stated that the smoking area appeared to
be covered with patched roofing, if this smoking area was enclosed by more than 50%, then
the law would prohibit smoking in that area. The area was enclosed on two sides making it
difficult to see how smoking could be allowed in such an area.

In response to further questions from Members, Mr Metushi and Mr Holder informed the SubCommittee that:

 There would be no smoking in the outside space in the back area after 23:00.
 The applicant would follow legal regulations relating to smoking.
 The condition on page 125 of the agenda papers concerning the installation of a
comprehensive CCTV system had already been installed.
 The addition of the extra hour would allow the business to be more competitive with
Brixton Village and Pop Brixton and other premises that had access to open space.
This is why the applicant was happy to have a condition whereby there was no entry
to additional patrons after 23:00 on Monday to Thursday as people would already be
seated at tables. On Friday and Saturday, patrons often came out a little later.
 The hours applied for on Friday and Saturday was essential to the business plan and
there were other premises had the option to stay open until very late.
 The late hours would be used whenever it suited the business model. The applicant
did not feel that the premises would be busy on Monday nights for example.
 The applicant was happy to not allow any new patrons into the premises after 23:00
between Monday to Thursday and after 01:00 on Friday and Saturday.
 The premises was generally known for being a café, but being open for late hours
allowed the perception of the premises to change more to being an eatery.
 In one month, the premises was likely to stay open until 02:00 between 5 to 6 times.
 It often took about two weeks to ensure that the premises staff were fully trained and
the applicant would be present at the premises to guide them to ensure that no rules
were broken.
 That would be four to five staff members at the premises and an SIA staff member
would be placed at the front of the premises whenever the premises was open after
midnight on Friday and Saturday evenings.
 The applicant was happy to agree to a condition whereby SIA staff could be present
after 23:30.

Presentation by interested parties

Page 23
Ms Bina Patel, Licensing Manager, informed the Sub-Committee that:

 She was concerned with the applicant’s representation.
 The premises had only obtained a licence since January 2020 and had to cease
trading shortly after government regulations had been put in place due to the
coronavirus crisis.
 She could not see how the applicant would be able to uphold the licensing
objectives.
 The applicant was looking to increase the operating hours of the premises.
 The conditions proposed on pages 155 to 156 of the agenda papers were different to
the conditions that would normally be proposed for a restaurant. For example, it was
not clear why the premises would need SIA staff, condition 7 for crowd management
was more often a condition that would be placed at a bar or club, condition 12
concerning the use of a clicker device was also more appropriate for a bar or club,
condition 17 regarding patrons being served from the hatch did not make sense as
the applicant was seeking to operate the premises until 02:00 in any case.
 There were concerns regarding the plans that had been proposed on page 146
within the papers as this appeared to demonstrate a significant reduction in the size
of the premises. The bar appeared to have increased by more than 50% of its
original size and the internal capacity of the premises appeared to be able to
accommodate fewer people, whilst the licensed area had been extended to include
the rear of the premises.
 It’s not clear how the premises would be able to accommodate approximately 60
people safely.
 There was a condition that the garden area would not be used after 23:00. However,
it was not possible to gain access to the toilets without bypassing the garden area.
 The proposed smoking area did not appear to meet government legislation.
 The outside area which displayed two tables and four chairs was part of the public
highway and would therefore need a tables and chairs licence.
 A condition could be imposed to say that the use of any tables and chairs at the front
of the premises would be subject to an appropriate licence to ensure that there was
a suitable amount of patrons sat at the front of the premises. The front of the
premises was located in a busy highway and the terminal hour for it to use should be
between 21:30 – 22:00.
 The Licensing team had not received a noise monitoring report from the applicant
and there was concern regarding the extension of licensing activity to include both
outside areas of the premises.
 There was concern regarding the hours that the applicant had applied for and the
amount of patrons that could actually fit into the premises.
 The fire risk assessment would have been based upon the skeleton structure of the
building and would need to be reassessed by the appropriate authority.
 It was not clear how the premises would be able to accommodate more than 30
individuals in the outside area located at the back of the premises.
.

Page 24
Mr Alan Mato, resident, informed the Sub-Committee that:
 He was representing himself and Mr Glen Edwards, a resident of 15 years who lived
next door to the premises.
 The premises had initially operated as a cafe but was now seeking to operate a
more substantive licence.
 As a resident, Mr Edwards had faced some issues with other licensed premises in
the area.
 The Brixton Society had noted the saturation zone in Clapham High Street and
would feel that the needs of the residents were not being heard in Coldharbour.
 The applicant had not held an open dialogue with residents and many of the plans
that had been introduced would affect residents living directly above the premises.
 There was concern regarding fire safety. The sheet of plastic and thatching in the
smoking area was a fire risk to Mr Edwards’ property.
 There was a major concern regarding soundproofing. It was possible to hear the
commotion emanating from the premises. The premises had accommodated up to
30 people and for an individual who used his home as an office, there was constant
background noise and during the summer months, it was important to be able to
keep the window open.
 The smell of food would travel into people’s homes.
 Deliveries would arrive early into the premises and this would wake Mr Edwards and
other neighbours.
 All individuals deserved their right to private amenity. The high capacity allowance
and drinking in the outside areas of the premises would take away the right to
privacy in a very busy area.
 The premises was no longer operating as a restaurant as the outside space was
very large. The outside area of the premises had become like an outside pub for
young people.
 Loitering had increased in the outside space and other issues would be created such
as public urination and waste.
 There would be a greater potential for crime.
 There should be security in place with a definitive plan to prevent issues such as
loitering.
 An acoustic report regarding the premises should be submitted.
 The terminal hour for licensable activity should not be later than 21:00. The area was
also a residential area.
 It was important that the residents’ needs were considered. Mr Edwards was
considering moving away from the area if the application was granted.
 Mr Edwards was a nice person and was open to dialogue, but he felt that the licence
premises in the area was too much for him to bear.
 There were serious concerns regarding the use of the rear garden for purposes it
would be used for.

Page 25
In response to questions from Members Mr Mato informed the Sub-Committee that:

 Residents had not been made aware of the application and the required blue notice
had been removed from the area.
 A witness had seen the notice removed by a member of staff working at the
premises.

The applicant was required to address matters arising. In response to questions from
Members, Mr Metushi and Mr Holder informed the Sub-Committee that:

 The required notice for the application had been put up for 28 days.
 The notice had been put up at the nearest spot where residents could see it and had
been laminated. An advert had also been released in the local newspaper and
residents were aware of the application.
 Those living above the premises had been consulted and a strong attempt had been
made to have a dialogue with the residents.
 Notices had not been removed by premises staff. In general, premises staff did not
do this and the applicant was happy to communicate with all the residents including
Mr Edwards, who was a difficult person to contact at times.

At this point in the proceedings, the Licensing Officer stated that he had explained to the
applicant that he had been made aware by the applicant that the required notice had been
taken down and so he explained to the applicant that in the event that the required notice was
taken down, it would have to be replaced. The Licensing Officer had also checked on 28 May
2021, two days before the end of the 28 day period and the notice was still up where it had
been originally placed.

In response to further questions from Members, Mr Metushi and Mr Holder informed the SubCommittee that:
 Residents generally had no complaints regarding the application.
 Due to the current laws, it was possible to sell alcohol in the garden space.
 The applicant personally spoke to residents every day and informed them that they
could contact him if at any point they were unhappy about anything.
 The premises could be described as an eatery and a dining restaurant.
 Generally, office workers visited the premises in the morning and during lunch and in
the evening it was families and young people who would visit.
 The applicant wanted to appeal to all demographics and had policies in place in case
there were issues that needed to be dealt with. SIA security was in place to ensure
that patrons would be safe.
 The premises was likely to attract people in their thirties. There would be no parties

Page 26
or music. The premises would be focused on good food, good wine and a delivery
service.
 The applicant would not be able to reduce the terminal hour for of the use of the
garden to 20:30, but could reduce the terminal hour to 22:00. However, this would be
difficult for the business.
 The application was careful to take into consideration issues surrounding the
coronavirus crisis, smoking and any potential disturbance.
 The premises would focus on the quality of food and the quality of service. Other
licensed premises in the area had considerably larger capacities and could hold
anything between 300 to 500 people.
 The premises could hold 60 people at maximum capacity and it was unlikely to reach
this amount on any given day.

Adjournment and Decision
At 3:41pm, the Sub-Committee withdrew from the meeting together with the Legal Advisor and
Clerk to deliberate in private. The Sub-Committee had heard and considered representations
from all those who spoke. Legal advice was given to the Sub-Committee on the options open
to them and the need for any decision to be proportionate. The Sub- Committee decided grant
the application with conditions and amendments.
RESOLVED: To grant the application with conditions and amendments.
Announcement of Decision
Members returned to the meeting and the Chair informed those present of the decision to grant
the application with conditions and amendments.
The Sub-Committee had considered the evidence and decided that the premises would
operate until 00:00 Monday to Thursday and until 01:00 on Friday and Saturday. No additional
patrons would be allowed into the premises after 23:30 on Friday or Saturday. SIA security
would be present after 23:00 Monday to Thursday and after 00:00 on Friday and Saturday (if
the premises stayed open). Alcohol would not be served later than 21:00 in the garden area. If
the applicant was able to demonstrate that they could meet the licensing objectives with the
licence that had been granted, then the applicant could apply for a variation application. Full
written reasons would follow in due course.

5

Consideration of Objections to Temporary Event Notices

5a

Arch 25, Handel Business Centre, 73 Bondway, SW8 1SQ (Oval)
This item was withdrawn from the agenda.

The meeting ended at 4:01pm.

CHAIR

Page 27
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
Tuesday 20 July 2021
Date of Despatch: Wednesday 28 July 2021
Contact for Enquiries: Nazyer Choudhury
Tel: 020 7926 0028
E-mail: nchoudhury@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 29

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE MINUTES
Tuesday 20 July 2021 at 7.00 pm

Present:

Councillor Fred Cowell, Councillor Martin Tiedemann and Councillor
Pauline George

Apologies:

1

Election of Chair
MOVED by Councillor Martin Tiedemann, SECONDED by Councillor Pauline George
RESOLVED: That Councillor Fred Cowell be elected Chair for the meeting.

2

Declaration of Pecuniary Interests
None were declared.

3

Licensing Applications for the Grant / Review of a Premises Licence

3a

Quick Commerce, Unit B, 1 - 5 Hinton Road, London, SE24 0HJ (Coldharbour)
Presentation by the Licensing Officer
The Sub-Committee was informed that this was an application for a new premises licence. The
Sub-Committee’s attention was drawn to Chapters 2, 3, 8, 9 and 10 of the Statutory Guidance,
and to section 5, (Policies 1, 3, 4 and 8) of the Statement of Licensing Policy, as the ones
particularly relevant to this application. The options available to the Sub-Committee were set
out in paragraph 6 of the report on page 10 of the agenda papers.
The Licensing Officer confirmed:
 This was an application for a new premises licence.
 The premises proposed to operate a convenience goods store which would include
the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises.

Page 30
 Objections had been received from the Licensing Authority, the Metropolitan Police
and one resident.
 The applicant had proposed that the conditions to the application be the same as the
ones for a recently granted application for a premises located in Hercules Road.
 The conditions could be found from page 5 on the additional agenda papers.
 On 19 July 2021, the applicant had agreed a condition whereby orders containing
alcohol may be delivered between the hours of 08:00- 00:00 only.
 The Licensing Authority was content with the 35 additional conditions that had been
submitted by the applicant in addition to an agreement for reduced operating hours
for the delivery of alcohol.
 The Licensing Authority maintained its representation in order to provide any
clarification that the Sub-Committee might require.

Presentation by the applicant
The applicant Mr Nils Howland and the applicant’s representative Mr Robert Botkai informed
the Sub-Committee that:
 Assuming that the 35 conditions listed on the additional agenda papers were the
same ones that he had submitted to the Licensing Authority, he concurred with the
Licensing Officer’s representation.
 The applicant had originally applied for a 24-hour licence and was keen to get the
premises operating.
 The applicant had agreed that no alcohol delivery would take place between 00:00
and 08:00.
 The applicant hoped that the proposed conditions would allow the licence to then be
granted.
 The licence would still be a 24-hour licence as the technical sale of alcohol would
take place when the goods would be appropriated to the transaction. This required a
licence.
 Both the Licensing Authority and the Police were content with the 35 conditions put
together with the condition of the timing of the deliveries.
 The premises was a convenience store with no patrons. There would be no
customer access to the premises.
 There would be staff working in the premises and the business ran a mobile app
named Zap.
 Customers would be able to place an order and in a short period time, they would be
able to obtain the goods they ordered through delivery.
 The delivery drivers were employed by the business directly and only used electric
bikes.
 The general delivery process occurred in silence.
 The delivery drivers were allowed to bring their bikes into the premises, so there
would be no loitering in the outside area.

Page 31
 The delivery drivers would have access to refreshments and seating at the premises.
 At some point during their shift, delivery drivers would be handed their delivery items
where they would have to make their delivery and then return to the premises. This
was not like using a third-party delivery service where delivery drivers would be in
scooters or cars looking for the next licensed premises from which to deliver.
 The business operated a Challenge 25 policy and warnings were listed on the
business’ website.

In response to questions from Members, Mr Howland and Mr Botkai informed the SubCommittee that:
 The applicant would not agree to a modification whereby condition 22 would be
amended to read that the delivery would be made to a person inside a particular
address.
 In the event of a refusal of a sale, delivery drivers would withhold age restricted
products, make a record of the refusal and bring the alcohol back to the premises.
Many third-party delivery drivers would be told to dispose of the alcohol themselves.
 There would be no financial implication for delivery drivers carrying out their duties
relating to upholding the licensing objectives
 If any suspicious activity was noted via an order, the actual customer would be
contacted directly regarding their actual location and their order.
 Premises staff would confirm that the delivery was to be made to a residential or
business address before sending any delivery drivers to make a delivery.
 If any age restricted products were to be returned to the premises, the incident would
be logged, the order number would be recorded, the items that were refused would
be recorded and location managers would be made aware of the incident. During a
handover process, relevant staff members would be made aware of the incident as
part of their shift.
 In relation to age verification, all customers would have to create an online account
which would include a record of personal details.
 Once an alcoholic product was ordered, the business’ app would indicate that the
product was age restricted and that, at the time of delivery, physical age verification
checks may be carried out.
 Age verification checks would take place at the point of transferring the alcohol to the
customer which would often include employing the Challenge 25 policy.
 Customers would be aware that they would be requested to show identification. This
would be signalled online when any order took place.
 Age restricted products had and 18+ sticker on them and the delivery driver would
be informed to employ the Challenge 25 policy before the items were submitted for
delivery.
 The conditions made it clear step-by-step what needed to happen for premises staff
to meet the licensing objectives.
 Any customer ordering from the premises would need to have a credit card in order
to set up an account and they would have to declare that they were over 18. They
would also run the risk of alcohol being withheld from them at the doorstep.

Page 32
 There was always a risk of issues occurring with any licensed premises, but
research showed that most alcoholic drinks obtained by children came directly from
parents.
 The applicant sought to be as robust as possible to ensure that children did not order
alcohol through the app.
 It was rare for delivery drivers to be threatened by violence as most of the customers
were repeat customers and delivery drivers would be aware they could not hand
over alcohol to an individual who was underage or intoxicated.
 Delivery drivers went through a rigorous process before being appointed. They
would have a telephone screening, an on-site screening and take a test that they
would have to pass. They had a relationship with the business and wore a uniform
jacket. They were also aware of the consequences of not being able to carry out
their tasks appropriately and would have reasonable judgement when making any
delivery.
 The only forms of identification that would be accepted would be any with the
relevant holographic mark such as a passport, driver’s licence or a Prove It card.
 Condition 29 had been proposed to ensure that no large trucks would be making any
deliveries late into the night. There would be no delivering of goods to the premises
between the hours of 22:00 – 08:00. Fresh food items would need to be delivered to
the premises, but these would not be done in large trucks.

At this point in the proceedings, the Legal Officer clarified that what Members were proposing
was an amendment to condition 22 so that it would read as follows, “all delivery orders shall be
to a registered residential or business address and delivered to a named person inside that
address. There shall be no deliveries to public/communal areas or open spaces”. That this
condition was being proposed by Members so as to ensure that the delivery of alcohol would
be made to a person that could be linked to an actual address.
In response to questions from Members, Mr Howland and Mr Botkai informed the SubCommittee that:
 The use of the term ‘a named person’ could cause issues as there was a concern
about delivery drivers having to establish a particular person in order to whom they
should make the delivery. Generally speaking, another adult person in the household
where a delivery was to be made should be able to receive the order.
 The applicant would agree to the newly proposed condition 22 without the use of the
words ‘a named’.
Presentation by interested parties
PC Mike Constable informed the Sub-Committee that:
 He was satisfied with the applicant’s representation.

Ms Anthea Masey, resident, informed the Sub-Committee that:
 The premises was located in a large development area for Loughborough Junction
and it could cause public nuisance.
 She was reassured by two things the applicant had clarified; that the delivery drivers
would be employed directly by the business and that the delivery bikes would be

Page 33
taken inside the premises.
 The premises was a large premises and would have a significant impact in the
neighbourhood especially if deliveries were frequent.
 She was concerned about the large amount of traffic arriving into the residential
district.
 There are concerns about public nuisance, excessive consumption of alcohol and
the nuisance caused by the delivery of alcohol.

In response to questions from Members, Ms Masey informed the Sub-Committee that:

 She would probably be happier with the application if the terminal hour for the
delivery of alcoholic goods ceased at 22:00.
 The Peabody Trust was about to build 134 homes on the other side of the premises.
The premises was in Hinton Road which went through railway arches leading into an
industrial estate. There was a concern that Delivery Hero may wish to regain access
the premises, in which case it would be a nuisance for the soon to be residents for
the Peabody Estate.

The applicant was recalled to address matters arising. In response to questions from
Members, Mr Howland and Mr Botkai informed the Sub-Committee that:
 The business had no association with Delivery Hero.
 Licensing laws did not take into account new development homes in the area.
 It was fair to say that the business wished to be financially successful and therefore
would like to increase its number of orders. However, the amount of customers that
the business had was simply not enough to require large quantities of deliveries.
 The business was not employing delivery drivers that were driving scooters and this
perception had been instilled due to various delivery drivers that had been seen on
mopeds and motorbikes and other noisy vehicles.
 The business would operate electric bikes which were almost silent. The business
did not employ enough delivery drivers to be able to make significant noise from the
vehicles by simply coming in and out of the premises.
 The applicant was happy to provide Ms Masey with contact details of premises staff
so that she could raise any issues that she may have.
 Delivery drivers were not allowed to smoke or wait outside the premises.
 The business had a sophisticated algorithm to ensure that there was an appropriate
number of delivery drivers employed at the premises at any one time.

Adjournment and Decision
At 7:50pm, the Sub-Committee withdrew from the meeting together with the Legal Advisor and
Clerk to deliberate in private. The Sub-Committee had heard and considered representations
from all those who spoke. Legal advice was given to the Sub-Committee on the options open
to them and the need for any decision to be proportionate. The Sub- Committee decided to
grant the application subject to conditions.

Page 34
RESOLVED: To grant the application subject to conditions.
Announcement of Decision
Members returned to the meeting and the Chair informed those present of the decision to grant
the application subject to conditions.
The Sub-Committee decided to grant the licence subject to the 35 conditions as proposed in
the additional agenda papers with modification to the wording of condition 22 so as to require
orders be to a registered residential or business address and delivered to a person inside that
address and an additional agreed condition limiting the delivery of orders containing alcohol to
between the hours of 08:00 - 00:00 only. The Sub-Committee was satisfied that the conditions
were appropriate and proportionate in order to meet licensing objectives. The Sub-Committee
was mindful of the potentiality of public nuisance which could emerge from delivery
businesses, but in this particular case, the Sub-Committee was satisfied with the applicant’s
responses to questions regarding how deliveries and delivery drivers would be managed. The
Sub-Committee was aware that delivery-based businesses were difficult to consider in relation
to licensable activity but the conditions were adequate enough to address the four licensing
objectives.

4

Consideration of Objections to Temporary Event Notices

4a

Tea House Theatre, 139 Vauxhall Walk, London, SE11 5HL (Prince's)
This item was withdrawn from the agenda.

The meeting ended at 7:56pm.

CHAIR
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
Friday 20 August 2021
Date of Despatch: Friday 28 July 2021
Contact for Enquiries: Nazyer Choudhury
Tel: 020 7926 0028
E-mail: nchoudhury@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk

Agenda Item 4

Page 35

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 20 AUGUST 2021
Licensing Application for the Grant of Premises Licence:
1.
Passyunk Avenue Unit 5, 22 Leake Street London SE1 7NN (Bishops ward)
2.
Charcoal Kebab 266 Wandsworth Road London SW8 2JR (Larkhall ward)
3.
Theatro 69-71 Westow Hill London SE19 1TX (Gipsy Hill ward)
Wards: Bishops, Larkhall and Gipsy Hill
Portfolio: Deputy Leader of the Council (Jobs, Skills and Community Safety):
Councillor Jacqui Dyer
Report Authorised by: Bayo Dosunmu: Strategic Director of Resident Services
Contact for enquiries: Ola Owojori, Licensing Officer, Public Protection and Regulatory
Services, 020 7926 1649, OOwojori@lambeth.gov.uk
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This report sets out details of applications for the variation of a premises licence on which
representations have been submitted by interested parties.

RECOMMENDATION
That the application set out in the Appendix to this report be considered having regard to the Council's
Licensing Policy, the Licensing Objectives and the representation(s) received.

CONSULTATION
Name of
consultee
Selina Waife
and Jean-Marc
Moocarme

Directorate or
Organisation
Legal and
Governance

Date sent to
consultee

Date response
received from
consultee

Comments
appear in
report
(paragraph(s))

6.8.2021

6.8.2021

N/A

REPORT HISTORY
Authorised by
Executive Member

Date report drafted

Report deadline

Date report sent

6.8.2021

6.8.2021

6.8.2021

APPENDICES
1.
2.
3.

Passyunk Avenue Unit 5, 22 Leake Street London SE1 7NN (Bishops ward)
Charcoal Kebab 266 Wandsworth Road London SW8 2JR (Larkhall ward)
Theatro 69-71 Westow Hill London SE19 1TX (Gipsy Hill Ward)

Page 36
1.
1.1

CONTEXT

1.2

A person (including a business) may make an application for a new Premises Licence or a
variation to an existing Premises Licence. Where representations are received a Licensing SubCommittee must consider the application. The Sub-Committee, when considering such
applications, shall carry out its function under the Licensing Act 2003 with a view to the Council's
Licensing Policy, Statutory Guidance and promoting the licensing objectives.

2.
2.1

PROPOSAL AND REASONS

2.2

Details of the application(s) are set out in the Appendix to this report. All statutory consultation
requirements have been complied with by the applicant(s) as set out in paragraph 3 below. The
results of consultation are reported in the appendices relating to each application. Public notice
has been given in accordance with the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003.

2.3

The applicants and persons making representations have been invited to attend the meeting.

2.4

The fees for premises and personal licences are prescribed within the Licensing Act 2003; in the
case of Premises Licences, the fees are based on the business rate of the premises.

3.
3.1

CONSULTATION REQUIREMENTS

A licence from the Council is required for the supply of alcohol, and regulated entertainment.

The Licensing Sub-Committee has responsibility for exercising the Council's powers in respect of
the Licensing Act 2003. Determination by the Committee of the applications appended to this
report is required because representation(s) to the application(s) have been received.

The Licensing Act 2003 requires applicants for licences to consult and submit relevant
documentation to the Responsible Authorities as follows:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.
h.

Fire Authority;
Health & Safety Section;
Noise Service;
Police;
Social Services;
Home Office
Town Planning; and,
Trading Standards.

3.2

Applicants are also required to advertise the application by displaying public notices on or near the
premises and by advertising the application in a local newspaper available in the vicinity of
premises. An applicant’s’ failure to comply with all of the above consultation requirements would
invalidate the application. All applications set out in the appendix of this report have complied with
the consultation requirements.

4.
4.1

FINANCE
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

Page 37
5.
5.1

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

5.2

When considering licence applications the Sub-Committee shall carry out its function with a view to
the Council's Licensing Policy, Statutory Guidance and promoting the licensing objectives. The
Licensing Objectives are:

The licensing of premises for the supply of alcohol, regulated entertainment and late night
refreshment fall within the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003.

a.
b.
c.
d.
5.3

the prevention of crime and disorder;
Public safety;
the prevention of public nuisance; and,
the protection of children from harm.

The Sub-Committee must ensure that all licensing decisions have:
a.
b.
c.
d.

a direct relationship to the promotion of one or more of the 4 licensing objectives;
regard to the statement of licensing policy;
regard to the Secretary of State's Guidance; and,
there must not be a 'blanket policy' to the extent that it is applied so rigidly that an exercise of
discretion in each individual case is precluded.

Applications must be considered with regard to the principles of fair process and the Human Rights
Act.
5.4

The purpose of Lambeth’s Statement of Licensing Policy is to make clear to applicants and
relevant representatives the considerations that will be taken into account when determining
applications. It is also intended to guide the Licensing Committee when considering licensing
applications; however the Licensing Committee must consider each application on its own merit
and only allow exceptions to its own policy where the circumstances of the application justify it.

5.5

Subject to both the Council's Statement of Licensing Policy and Statutory Guidance having been
properly considered a Sub Committee may depart from them if there are good reasons for doing
so. Full reasons must be given and Sub Committees should be aware that such departures could
give rise to an appeal or judicial review.

5.6

The Statutory Guidance, Chapter 10, states that only necessary, proportionate conditions, which
promote one or more of the licensing objectives, should be attached to the licence if it is granted
(paragraph 10.11). The Licensing Authority may therefore only impose such conditions as are
necessary to promote the licensing objectives arising out of the consideration of the
representations (paragraph 10.11), and should avoid straying into undisputed areas (paragraph
9.24). Statutory Guidance also states that the pool of conditions that are supplied by the Secretary
of State should not be applied universally irrespective of particular circumstances, but may be used
as examples that can be tailored to suit individual premises and particular situations.

5.7

When considering an application for the variation of an existing licence only the variation is subject
to determination. No changes can be made to a licence or the conditions attached unless they are
subject to the variation application.

5.8

Members are advised that when considering applications to vary an existing licence the following
options are available to them by virtue of the Licensing Act 2003, Part 3, Section 35, paragraphs 3
and 4.

Page 38
5.9

Where relevant representations are made, the authority must – having regard to the
representations – take such steps (if any), as it considers necessary for the promotion of the
licensing objectives. The steps are:
a.
b.

modify the conditions of the licence (conditions are deemed to be modified if any are altered,
omitted or any new condition added); or,
reject the whole or part of the application

If neither of these steps are taken, the application must be granted.
5.10 Members are advised that when considering applications for a new Premises Licence the following
options are available to them by virtue of the Licensing Act 2003, Chapter 17, Part 3, Section 18
paragraph 4.
5.11 Where relevant representations are made, the authority must – having regard to the
representations, take such steps (if any), as it considers necessary for the promotion of the
licensing objectives. The steps are:
a.

b.
c.
d.

to grant the licence subject to:
i.
the conditions mentioned in subsection (2)(a) modified to such extent as the authority
considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and
ii.
any condition which must under section 19, 20 or 21 be included in the licence;
to exclude from the scope of the license any of the licensable activities to which the
application relates;
to refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor; or,
to reject the application.

5.12 When determining an application for a review of a premises licence members may take any of the
following steps they consider necessary to promote the licensing objectives:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.

to modify the conditions of the licence;
to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence;
to remove the designated premises supervisor;
to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;
to revoke the licence; or,
to take no action.

5.13 It is considered inappropriate for officers involved in the administration of applications to make
recommendations. However officers from the Responsible Authorities may request conditions be
imposed on a licence and make recommendations with regard to the licensing objectives.
5.14 In accordance with the provisions of Part 1 of Schedule 5 of the Act, where a Licensing Authority
rejects an application for a new premises licence or refuses (in whole or in part) an application to
vary a premises licence the applicant may appeal the decision.
5.15 Where the Licensing Authority grants an application for a new premises licence the premises
licence holder can appeal any decision to impose conditions on the premises licence, to exclude a
licensable activity from the scope of the premises licence or to refuse to specify a named individual
as the Designated Premises Supervisor.
5.16 Where a person who made relevant representations in relation to an application contends: that the
licence should not have been granted; or that different or additional conditions should have been

Page 39
imposed on the licence; or that a licensable activity should have been excluded from the scope of
the premises licence; or that the licensing authority should have refused to specify a named
individual as the Designated Premises Supervisor, they may appeal the decision.
5.17 Appeals are to be made to a Magistrates’ Court within 21 days beginning with the date of
notification of the decision. Further details are set out in the Act.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 41

Agenda Item 4a

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 20 AUGUST 2021
Item No: 4a.
Report title: Passyunk Avenue, Unit 5, 22 Leake Street, London, SE1 7NN
Applicant: Liberty Cheesesteak LS Ltd.
Application type: Premises licence (grant)
Application date: 7 June 2021
Wards: Bishops
Premises type: Restaurant and Bar
Policy Context: Lambeth Statement of Licensing Policy 2019 - 2024
Report author: Mrs Pamela Riley, Licensing Officer, 0207 926 6164 priley@lambeth.gov.uk

APPLICATION SUMMARY
This is an application for a Premises Licence (new application) authorising the following licensable
activities: Films, Indoor Sporting Events, Live Music, Recorded Music, Provision of Late Night
Refreshment and Sale by Retail of Alcohol.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS
Licensing Objectives (chapter 5, pages 9 to 15 and appendices 1 to 4, pages 41 to 45 of the policy)
The Licensing Objectives engaged by this application are:



The prevention of crime and disorder; and
The prevention of public nuisance.

Types of Premises and Recommend Hours (appendix 5, pages 46 to 47 and appendix 6, pages 48
to 50 of the policy)
The premises are classified within Lambeth’s Licensing Policy (2019 - 2024) as a Restaurant and Bar
located within a Major, District Town Centre. These areas usually have more than 50,000m2 of retail
floor space, a sizeable catchment area and established cultural and entertainment facilities to keep them
busy in the evenings.
The recommended start time within the policy for this type of premises, in a Major District Town Centre is
11:00 any day for the bar and no specific start time for the restaurant.

Page 42
The recommended end time within the policy for this type of premises, in a Major District Town Centre is
23:00 Monday to Sunday and 02:00 Friday & Saturday.
Note: The hours above are not absolute and are intended as a guide for applicants to consider when
completing their operating schedules. Each application will be considered on its own merits. Applicants
seeking hours later than those indicated in the Policy should provide detailed evidence as to why their
application will not have a negative impact on the licensing objectives.

Page 43
1.

APPLICATION

1.1

This is an application for a Premises Licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003.

1.2

The applicant is seeking authorisation for the following licensable activities:
Films, Indoor Sporting Events, Live Music, Recorded Music, and Sale by Retail of Alcohol, during
the following times:
Monday - Thursday 10:00 - 01:00
Friday to Saturday 10:00 - 02:00
Sunday
10:00 - 00:00
The Provision of Late-Night Refreshment during the following times:
Monday - Thursday 23:00 - 01:00
Friday to Saturday 23:00 - 02:00
Sunday
23:00 - 00:00

In the section of the application form under the heading “Non-Standard Timings” is the following
comment:
“These hours to be extended until 02:00 on the morning following New Year's Eve “.
1.3

The opening hours for the premises are proposed as:
Monday - Thursday 10:00 - 01:30
Friday to Saturday 10:00 - 02:30
Sunday
10:00 - 00:30

1.4

A copy of the application form and plan are attached as Annex A.

2.

REPRESENTATIONS

2.1

Three representations have been received against the application. All three are local residents.

2.2

The representations are based on two of the four licensing objectives namely prevention of public
nuisance and crime and disorder. Concerns raised include the likelihood of noise from patrons
leaving the premises in the early hours of the morning potentially creating noise nuisance in this
highly populated residential area.

2.3

Although the Planning Authority have not made a formal representation, they did provide a
comment which was forwarded to the applicant for information only.

2.4

Copies of the representations and comment made by the Planning Authority were provided to the
applicant and are attached at Annex B.

2.5

A copy of proposed conditions is attached at Annex C.

2.6

The last date for making representations was on 5 July 2021.

3.

CURRENT LICENCE

3.1

There is not a current premises licence in place for this address.

Page 44
4.

BACKGROUND HISTORY

4.1

The premises are located within the interior of Leake Street Tunnel and face out towards York
Road, and is in close proximity to Magnum Square which has residential properties. It is also in
close proximity to County Hall Apartments which also has a residential apartment complex of
nearly 600 flats. There is access to public transport offering overground and underground train
services, as well as bus services within walking distance.

5.

OBSERVATIONS

5.1

The parts of the Statutory Guidance (April 2018) which are particularly relevant to this application
and the representations received are Chapters:
2)
The Licensing Objectives;
3)
Licensable Activities
8)
Applications for Premises Licenses;
9)
Determining Applications;
10) Conditions Attached to Premises Licenses and Club Premises Certificates; and
16) Regulated Entertainment.

5.2

The parts of the Statement of Licensing Policy that are particularly relevant to this application and
the representations are Sections:
5)

The Licensing Objectives
Policy 1 - Process for applications
Policy 8 - Hours of sale and locations
Appendix 1: Prevention of Crime and Disorder
Appendix 2: Public Safety
Appendix 3: Prevention of Public Nuisance
Appendix 5: Types of premises and recommended hours
Appendix 6: Types of premises and potential impact
Appendix 7: Major, District and Local Town Centres and South Bank Strategic Cultural Area
Appendix 8: What to expect from a Licensing Sub-Committee Hearing.

6.

CONCLUSION

6.1

Members are required to consider the application in light of all the relevant information, and if
approval is given, may attach such conditions appropriate to promote the licensing objectives.

6.2

The options available to Members of the Licensing Sub Committee are:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.

Grant the application as it currently stands;
Grant the application subject to such conditions as the authority considers appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives;
Exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which the application
relates;
To refuse to specify the individual named in the applications as the DPS; or,
Reject the application.

Page 45
CONSULTATION INFORMATION

Department(s) or Organisation(s)

Consulted
(Y/N)

Date
Respon
se
Receive
d

Comments
summarize
d in report
(Y/N)

Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y

05/07/21
09/06/21
02/07/21
26/04/21
10/06/21

N
Y
Y
N
N

Health & Safety Section (internal)
Noise service (internal)
Social Services (internal)
Licensing Service (internal)
Planning (internal)
Trading Standards (internal)
Fire Authority (external)
Police Licensing Unit (external)
Health Authority (external)

APPENDICES AND REFERENCE DOCUMENTS

Appendices

Reference documents
Local Government Act 1972 – Access to
information documents used in the preparation
of this report

Annex A – Application and Plan
Annex B – representations and Planning
comment
Annex C – Proposed Conditions
1.
2.

3.

The Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”).
Amended Guidance issued under Section
182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (April 2018)
(“the Guidance”).
Lambeth Statement of Licensing Policy
2019 - 2024 (“the Policy”).

This page is intentionally left blank

Lambeth Council
Lambeth Council, P.O. Box 734, Winchester, S023 5DG
T: 020 7926 1000
E: infoservice@lambeth.gov.uk

Page 47
Annex A

Ref: DSFX1623074231356

New Premises Licence

Premises Details
Premises Address *

Passyunk Avenue Unit 5, 22 Leake Street London SE1 7NN

Telephone number at premises (if any)
Non-domestic value of premises. *

£ 33001

Applicant Details
I/We apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below (the
premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12 of the
Licensing Act 2003.
Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence
as:

a person other than an individual -as a limited company/
limited liability partnership

Applicant Details
If you are applying as a person described in one of the above
please confirm: *

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which
involves the use of the premises for licensable activities; or

1 / 16

Page 48

Ref: DSFX1623074231356

Other Applicant (Non Individual)
Name *

Liberty Cheesesteak LS Ltd

Registered Address *

Main Course Associates
17 Hanover Square

Town/City *

London

County
Postcode *

W1S 1BN

Registered Number (where applicable)

13439055

Description of applicant (for example partnership, company,
unincorporated association, etc) *

Private limited Company

Telephone Number
Email *

Operating Schedule
When do you want the premises licence to start? *

06/07/2021

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period,
when do you want it to end?
Philadelphia-inspired and baseball focussed restaurant and
bar

Please give a general description of the premises. *
If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises
at any one time, please state the number expected to attend.

2 / 16

Page 49

Ref: DSFX1623074231356

Operating Schedule
What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises? * (Please see sections 1 and 14 of the Licensing Act
2003 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003)
Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note 2) *

Plays

✓

Films

✓

Indoor Sporting Events

Boxing or Wrestling

✓

Live Music

✓

Recorded Music

Performances of Dance

Anything of a similar description falling under Music or Dance

✓

Provision of late night refreshment

✓

Supply of Alcohol

3 / 16

Page 50

Ref: DSFX1623074231356

Film Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for the exhibition of films. (please read guidance note 7) *
Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Sunday
10:00
00:00

Film Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for the exhibition of films. (please read guidance note 7) *
Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Monday to Thursday
10:00
01:00

Film Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for the exhibition of films. (please read guidance note 7) *
Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Friday to Saturday
10:00
02:00

4 / 16

Page 51

Ref: DSFX1623074231356

Films
Will the exhibition of films take place indoors or outdoors or
both? (please read guidance note 3) *

Indoors

Please provide further details. (please read guidance note 4)
State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films.
(please read guidance note 5)
Please state any non-standard timings, where you intend
to use the premises for the exhibition of films at different
times from the Standard days and times listed? (please read
guidance note 6)

These hours to be extended until 02:00 on the morning
following New Year's Eve

Indoor Sporting Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for the indoor sporting events. (please read guidance note
7) * Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Sunday
10:00
00:00

Indoor Sporting Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for the indoor sporting events. (please read guidance note
7) * Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Monday to Thursday
10:00
01:00

5 / 16

Page 52

Ref: DSFX1623074231356

Indoor Sporting Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for the indoor sporting events. (please read guidance note
7) * Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Friday to Saturday
10:00
02:00

Indoor Sporting Events
Please provide further details. (please read guidance note 4)
State any seasonal variations for Indoor Sporting Events
(please read guidance note 5)
Please state any non-standard timings, where you intend
to use the premises for Indoor Sporting Events at different
times from the Standard days and times listed? (please read
guidance note 6)

These hours to be extended until 02:00 on the morning
following New Year's Eve

Live Music Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for the performance of live music. (please read guidance
note 7) * Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Sunday
10:00
00:00

6 / 16

Page 53

Ref: DSFX1623074231356

Live Music Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for the performance of live music. (please read guidance
note 7) * Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Monday to Thursday
10:00
01:00

Live Music Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for the performance of live music. (please read guidance
note 7) * Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Friday to Saturday
10:00
02:00

Live Music
Will the Performance of Live Music take place indoors or
outdoors or both? (please read guidance note 3) *

Indoors

Please provide further details. (please read guidance note 4)
State any seasonal variations for the Performance of Live
Music. (please read guidance note 5)
Please state any non-standard timings, where you intend
to use the premises for the performance of live music at
different times from the Standard days and times listed?
(please read guidance note 6)

These hours to be extended until 02:00 on the morning
following New Year's Eve

7 / 16

Page 54

Ref: DSFX1623074231356

Recorded Music Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for the performance of recorded music. (please read
guidance note 7) * Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Sunday
10:00
00:00

Recorded Music Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for the performance of recorded music. (please read
guidance note 7) * Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Monday to Thursday
10:00
01:00

Recorded Music Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for the performance of recorded music. (please read
guidance note 7) * Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Friday to Saturday
10:00
02:00

8 / 16

Page 55

Ref: DSFX1623074231356

Recorded Music
Will the playing of recorded music take place indoors or
outdoors or both? (please read guidance note 3) *

Indoors

Please provide further details.(please read guidance note 4)
State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded
music. (please read guidance note 5)
Please state any non-standard timings, where you intend
to use the premises for the performance of recorded music
at different times from the Standard days and times listed?
(please read guidance note 6)

These hours to be extended until 02:00 on the morning
following New Year's Eve

Late Night Refreshment Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for late night refreshment.(please read guidance note 7)*
Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Sunday
23:00
00:00

Late Night Refreshment Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for late night refreshment.(please read guidance note 7)*
Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Monday to Thursday
23:00
01:00

9 / 16

Page 56

Ref: DSFX1623074231356

Late Night Refreshment Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for late night refreshment.(please read guidance note 7)*
Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Friday to Saturday
23:00
02:00

Late Night Refreshment
Will the provision of late night refreshment take place indoors
or outdoors or both? (please read guidance note 3)*

Indoors

Please provide further details.(please read guidance note 4)
State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night
refreshment.(please read guidance note 5)
Please state any non-standard timings, where you intend
to use the premises for late night refreshmentat different
times from the Standard days and times listed?(please read
guidance note 6)

These hours to be extended until 02:00 on the morning
following New Year's Eve

Supply of Alcohol Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for the supply of alcohol. (please read guidance note 7)*
Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Sunday
10:00
00:00

10 / 16

Page 57

Ref: DSFX1623074231356

Supply of Alcohol Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for the supply of alcohol. (please read guidance note 7)*
Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Monday to Thursday
10:00
01:00

Supply of Alcohol Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for the supply of alcohol. (please read guidance note 7)*
Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Friday to Saturday
10:00
02:00

Supply of Alcohol
Will the supply of alcohol be for consumptionon premises or
off premises or both? (please read guidance note 8) *

Both

State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol.
(please read guidance note 5)
Please state any non-standard timings, where you intend
to use the premises for the supply of alcoholat different
times from the Standard days and times listed?(please read
guidance note 6)

These hours to be extended until 02:00 on the morning
following New Year's Eve

11 / 16

Page 58

Ref: DSFX1623074231356

Designated Premises Supervisor
State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as designated premises supervisor
(Please see declaration about the entitlement to work in the checklist at the end of the form)
Title *

Mr

First name *

John Paul

Surname *

Teti

Street address *

Town/City *

London

County
Postcode *

Personal Licence Number (if known)
Issuing Licensing Authority (if known)

Adult Entertainment
Please highlight any adult entertainment or services,
activities, other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use
of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of
children (please read guidance note 9).

None

12 / 16

Page 59

Ref: DSFX1623074231356

Opening Hours Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where the premises are open to the public. (please read guidance note 7) * Please enter times in
24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Sunday
10:00
00:30

Opening Hours Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where the premises are open to the public. (please read guidance note 7) * Please enter times in
24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Monday to Thursday
10:00
01:30

Opening Hours Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where the premises are open to the public. (please read guidance note 7) * Please enter times in
24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Friday to Saturday
10:00
02:30

Opening Hours
State any seasonal variations. (please read guidance note 5)
Please state any Non-standard timings, where you intend the
premises to be open to the public at different times from the
Standard days and times listed? (please read guidance note
6)

These hours to be extended until 02:30 the morning following
New Year's Eve

13 / 16

Page 60

Ref: DSFX1623074231356

Licensing Objectives
Describe any additional steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives as a result of the proposed variation:
a) General - all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e)
(please read guidance note 10)

Please refer to the attached application summary & schedule
of conditions for the promotion of all four licensing objectives.

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

Please refer to a) above.

c) Public safety

Please refer to a) above.

d) The prevention of public nuisance

Please refer to a) above.

e) The protection of children from harm

Please refer to a) above.

Declarations
Declaration Type *

Sole Applicant - Individual or Other

14 / 16

Page 61

Ref: DSFX1623074231356

Declarations
I have uploaded a copy of the plan of the premises. I have uploaded a copy of the consent form completed by the individual
I wish to be designated premises supervisor, if applicable. I understand I must now advertise my application. I understand
that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will be rejected. Applicable to all individual applicants,
including those in partnership which is not a limited liability partnership, but not companies or limited liability partnerships I
have included documents demonstrating my entitlement to work in the United Kingdom (please read note 15)
IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY
CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT' 'IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT
1971 FOR A PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE
DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT
WITHOUT LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY
UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION, ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION
21 OF THE SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH
REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE EMPLOYEE IS DISQUALIFIED.
Signature/Declaration of applicant or applicant's solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see Guidance Note 11 &amp; 12).
If signing/applying on behalf of the applicant, please state your name and in what capacity you are authorised to sign/apply.
When submitting an on-line application form the 'Declaration made' checkbox must be selected.

✓

I understand I am not entitled to be issued with a licence if I do not have the entitlement to live and work in the UK (or
if I am subject to a condition preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity) and
that my licence will become invalid if I cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance note 15).

✓

The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK (and is not subject to conditions preventing him
or her from doing work relating to a licensable activity) and I have seen a copy of his or her proof of entitlement to
work, if appropriate (please see note 15).

Full Name *

Thomas & Thomas Partners

Date *

07/06/2021

Capacity *

Applicant's Solicitor

✓

Declaration made

Do you wish to provide alternative correspondence details? *

Yes

15 / 16

Page 62

Ref: DSFX1623074231356

Alternative Correspondence
Please provide Contact Name and postal address for correspondence associated with this application.
Title

Ms

First name

A

Surname

Catlin

Street address *

Thomas & Thomas Partners
38A Monmouth Street

Town/City *

London

County
Postcode *

WC2H 9EP

Telephone Number

02070420410

Email *

Email confirmation
On submission an email confirmation will be sent using the details below
Forename

A

Surname /Company Name

Catlin

Email *
Telephone

16 / 16

Licensing Issue
Minor adjustments

/.
A.

O

FF

IC
E

25.05.21
28.05.21

TO

IL

ET

LO

CK

ER

S

ST

AF

F

CL
E

AN
ER
S

PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR
SCALE 1:50

BA

R

Page 63

TO MA
IL LE
ET
S

F
TO EM
IL ALE
ET
S

ST

PL
AN
T

R
O + OO
RA
M
G
E

ST
AF

F

LICENSING

PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR

Client

SCALE 1:50

JP Teti
Project

Passyunk Avenue
Leake Street Arches, Waterloo
SE1 London
Drawing

PROPOSED LICENSING
FIRST and SECOND FLOOR
PLANS
Drawing No.

Rev

1470/811

0

0.5

1

2

5

A

Scale

Size

Drawn

Date

1:50/100

A1/A3

AT

MAY-21

ALL DIMENSIONS, SETTING OUT AND LEVELS MUST BE CHECKED ON SITE AND NOT
SCALED OFF THIS DRAWING BEFORE ORDERING AND STARTING WORK ON SITE
MACKENZIE WHEELER

Licensing Issue
Minor adjustments

/.
A.

25.05.21
28.05.21

34
00

Page 64

KI

TC

HE

N

BA
R

AW

C

LICENSING

Client

JP Teti
Project

Passyunk Avenue
Leake Street Arches, Waterloo
SE1 London
Drawing

PROPOSED LICENSING
GROUND FLOOR
PLAN
Drawing No.

Rev

1470/810

0

0.5

1

2

5

A

Scale

Size

Drawn

Date

1:50/100

A1/A3

AT

MAY-21

ALL DIMENSIONS, SETTING OUT AND LEVELS MUST BE CHECKED ON SITE AND NOT
SCALED OFF THIS DRAWING BEFORE ORDERING AND STARTING WORK ON SITE
MACKENZIE WHEELER

Page 65
Annex B
From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

donotreply@lambeth.gov.uk
Pam Riley
Comments for Licensing Application 21/00162/PRMNEW
23 June 2021 15:34:07

Licensing Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is
provided below.
Comments were submitted at 3:33 PM on 23 Jun 2021 from Miss Clare Sivill.

Application Summary
Address:

Passyunk Avenue Unit 5, 22 Leake Street London SE1
7NN

Proposal:

Premises Licence (new application)

Case Officer:

Mrs Pamela Riley

Click for further information

Customer Details
Name:

Miss Clare Sivill

Email:
Address:

Comments Details
Commenter
Neighbour/Public
Type:
Stance:

Customer objects to the Licensing Application

Reasons
for
comment:

- Objection to application

Comments: 3:33 PM on 23 Jun 2021 I am a local resident (
). A late night licence will
create considerable noise in what is a significant residential
area, and also potentially anti social behaviour in and
around the Leake Street tunnel area. For these reasons I
object to a late night venue of this nature.

Page 66
From:
To:
Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

Thomas Dunn
Pam Riley
FW: Comment on Planning Application Reference 21/00162/PRMNEW - Rep2 - Stephen McGinley
14 July 2021 11:39:30
image001 png
image0.png
image001.png

Hi Pam,
Please see below comments in relation to your application - 21/00162/PRMNEW
Kind regards,
Tom Dunn
Licensing Officer
London Borough of Lambeth
Public Protection and Regulatory Services
Resident Services
Lambeth Council
3rd Floor Civic Centre
6 Brixton Hill
London, SW2 1EG
Phone: 020 7926 1866
Email: tdunn@lambeth gov uk
Website: http://www lambeth gov uk/licensing/
Items by post should be sent to
London Borough of Lambeth, Public Protection, PO Box 734, Winchester SO23 5DG
Items for courier or hand delivery should be delivered to:
London Borough of Lambeth, Public Protection, Civic Centre, 6 Brixton Hill, LONDON, SW2 1EG

Public Access - for information on current licences and new applications please use the following link http://planning lambeth gov uk/onlineapplications/search do?action=simple&searchType=LicencingApplication
We are working with our partners to build a #BetterLambeth - find out more at http://love lambeth gov uk/better

From: William Naylor <WNaylor@lambeth gov uk> On Behalf Of XHREPlanningTechSupport
Sent: 09 July 2021 14:18
To: Licensing <XDESLICENSE@lambeth gov uk>
Subject: FW: Comment on Planning Application Reference 21/00162/PRMNEW

From: Steve McGinley
Sent: 09 July 2021 08:36
To:
Subject: Re: Comment on Planning Application Reference 21/00162/PRMNEW
CAUTION This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hello
Thank you for your email.
Here is a screenshot of the planning application on which I wished to comment - this has the reference number I quoted below:

Page 67

The above application details appear to be published on Lambeth Council’s website here: https://planning lambeth gov uk/online-

Page 68

Page 69
so that it must close by no later than 11pm Monday to Saturday and 10 30pm on Sunday, given that it is likely that it will take around 30 minutes for the
venue's customers to disperse from the area after the venue closes The idea of a venue in this location serving alcohol until the early hours of the morning
every night is totally inappropriate
The following photo taken immediately outside our building on York Road shows how close Leake Street is to our building (Leake Street is the street behind
the red car in the photo - this is the point which almost all customers will use to enter and exit the venue directly on the other side of the road from our
building):

Please let me know if you need any further information
Kind regards
Stephen McGinley
Disclaimers apply - full details at www lambeth gov uk/email-disclaimer

Page 70
From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

Sarah G Williams on behalf of Licensing
Pam Riley
FW: 21/00162/PRMNEW. Liberty Cheesecake LS Ltd - Rep3 - Henrietta Voake
06 July 2021 18:14:29

FYA
-----Original Message----From: Henrietta Voake
Sent: 04 July 2021 12:00
To: Licensing <XDESLICENSE@lambeth.gov.uk>
Subject: 21/00162/PRMNEW. Liberty Cheesecake LS Ltd
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments
unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
To Mrs Pamela Riley
Case officer
Premises licence application
Unit 5
22 Leake Street
Dear Ms Riley,
I live at
and
. I am concerned by the above
application to serve alcohol at the premises until 1 am Monday to Thursday, until 2 am Fridays and Saturdays
and until midnight on Sundays.
The entrance to the premises is not contained within the interior of Leake Street Tunnel but faces out toward
York Road and is only a few steps away from the Square
. County Hall Apartments is a residential
apartment complex of nearly 600 flats. Many of us have bedrooms facing onto York Road and/or onto Forum
Magnum Square. We will be directly impacted by any late night activity at the premises. The serving of
alcohol inside and outside of the premises is likely to be a problem for residents.
Patrons of the venue will be leaving the premises in the small hours of the morning, some of them inevitably
under the influence of the alcohol they will have consumed. Forum Magnum Square is a likely area for them to
pass through on their way home and/or congregate in after the venue has closed. Residents are already
impacted from time to time by casual drunks passing through and/ or hanging out in the area in the early hours.
During the early morning hours background noise subsides, voices echo through the Square and wake up the
residents. I have been woken up on several occasions by small groups of people talking in the Square in the
early hours. The nuisance is caused even when the behaviour is not obviously drunken or unruly.
Regular late operating hours at the premises will become known and attract customers looking for alcohol after
the pubs have closed. This is likely to lead to increased levels of nuisance for residents.
Residents need their sleep in order to be in a fit state to work at their jobs and/or studies the next day. Lack of
sleep may lead to longer term health problems both physical and mental. Children living in the apartments are
also at risk of being negatively affected.
There are also risks of antisocial behaviour from late night drinking and damage to property.
Please take these concerns into consideration.
Sincerely
Henrietta Voake

Page 71
From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

Wade Sowman
Pam Riley
RE: 21/00162/PRMNEW - Passyunk Avenue, Unit 5, 22 Leake Street London SE1 7NN (Bishops)
Representations by: 05.07.2021 (Grant)
02 July 2021 14:34:13

Hi Pam,
I write further to the consultation for the above license application.
The premises is subject to a planning permission that covers the wider area of railway arches on
Leake Street and Addington Street (Ref: 15/04713/FUL) for “The change of use of the railway
arches beneath the Former Waterloo International Terminal from a car park and car wash facility
(Sui Generis use) to provide 2,170 sqm of shops, restaurants, cafes and bars (A1/A3/A4 uses);
installation of glass/timber/metal facades for the arches facing Addington Street; means of
enclosure, public realm improvements, a new pedestrian connection, outdoor seating, lighting,
CCTV, cycle parking and other associated works.”
Condition 17 of the planning permission imposes the below hours of operation:
Customers are not permitted on the premises (Units 1 to 8) other than within the following times:
07:30 Hours to 00:00 Hours - Monday through to Thursday.
07:30 Hours to 01:00 Hours the following day - Fridays.
08:00 Hours to 01:00 Hours the following day - Saturdays.
08:00 Hours to 00:00 Hours - Sundays, Bank Holidays or Public Holidays.
I note that the license application proposes operating until 2am on Friday and Saturday and 1am
Mon-Thurs and therefore a potential breach of condition 17 may arise; I would be grateful if you
would relay this to the applicant. They may wish to apply to amend Condition 17 – forms and
guidance can be found at www.lambeth.gov.uk/planningapplications and
www.planningportal.gov.uk
Regards,
Wade Sowman
Principal Planning Enforcement Officer
Sustainable Growth & Opportunity Directorate
London Borough of Lambeth
Tel: 0207 926 6970
Lambeth is leading on a project to develop a new digital tool to make submitting a planning application quicker
and easier. We’re keen to hear about your experience of submitting an application so that we can use this to
help us design the best possible solution: Click here for Survey

From: Marcia Green <MGreen@lambeth.gov.uk>
Sent: 09 June 2021 12:12
To: Home Office <Alcohol@homeoffice.gsi.gov.uk>; Pam Riley <PRiley@lambeth.gov.uk>; Cllr
Ibrahim Dogus <IDogus@lambeth.gov.uk>; Cllr Jennie Mosley <JMosley@lambeth.gov.uk>; Cllr

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 73

Application for a Premises Licence
Passyunk Avenue
Unit 5, 22 Leake Street, Leake Street
SE1 7NN
Liberty Cheesesteak LS Ltd

Annex C

Proposed Hours:

Day

Alcohol (on & off
sales)
Recorded Music
Live Music
Exhibition of Film
Indoor Sports

Late Night
Refreshment

Opening Hours

Sunday

10:00 – 00:00

23:00 – 00:00

10:00 – 00:30

Monday to Thursday

10:00 – 01:00

23:00 – 01:00

10:00 – 01:30

Friday & Saturday

10:00 – 02:00

23:00 – 02:00

10:00 – 02:30

Non standard timings:
2am Year’s Eve
Proposed Conditions:

1. Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall be available in
all parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises.
2. A CCTV system covering areas inside and outside of the premises should be operating and
maintained according to police recommendations with properly maintained log arrangements
and recordings/tapes to be kept for 30 days.
3. CCTV system is to comply with the Data Protection Act 1998 and must be working and recording
correctly when the venue is open to the public.
4. A staff member from the venue who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system must
be on the premises at all times that the venue is open to the public. This staff member must
immediately be able to show police or local authority officer's recent data or footage on
request.
5. The Premises are to use all reasonable efforts to provide police and local authority officers with
recordings from the CCTV system on request (e.g. by supplying recordings on DVD, CD or tape).
6. An incident/refusals book will be maintained and used at the premises. Upon request, it will be
readily available for inspection by the police or local authority officer.

Page 74

7. Security personnel, registered with the Security Industry Authority (SIA), shall be employed at
the premises based on an operational risk assessment basis.
8. The premises shall actively link with the Business Crime Reduction Partnership (BCRP), its linked
radio scheme and the intranet site
9. Security personnel, registered with the Security Industry Authority (SIA), employed at the
premises will enter their full name, address, valid phone contact details, SIA badge number,
employing company, along with the times they are working in a register upon commencement
of their work at the premises. The Designated Premises supervisor/manager at the time will be
responsible for ensuring that this is done and for confirming the security staff's details and
permissions to work, via the public SIA website facility
10. All reasonable efforts are to be employed by the management or security personnel to keep
customers quiet and orderly prior to entry and upon leaving the Premises.
11. No customers shall be allowed to leave the premises with open alcoholic beverages or to
consume alcohol on the public highway, save for the external area(s) where tables & chairs shall
be provided asper the designated plan. The use of this area(s) shall cease at 23:00hrs Monday to
Sunday.
12. From 23:00hrs, customers shall be prohibited from taking their drinks into the external
designated smoking area(s).
13. No service/sale of alcohol to any persons who appear drunk or inebriated.
14. Management/staff shall proactively monitor the conduct and behaviour of patrons inside the
premises and external area to ensure no noisy, rowdy or anti-social behaviour. Those patrons
deemed to be engaging in such behaviour shall be asked to disperse from the premises and area
quietly.
15. The premises shall undertake routine litter picks to the external area and public highway
frontage at intermittent intervals during the business trading hours and at the terminal hour
when all patrons have vacated the premises to remove all discarded litter, food
waste/packaging, drinking vessels and cigarette butts.
16. Regular glass and bottle collections shall be undertaken in the external areas to prevent the
build up of glassware.
17. Devise and implement a robust dispersal policy to ensure that patrons leave the premises and
vicinity as quietly and speedily as possible. Ensure that patrons are verbally advised by
management/SIA upon leaving to be mindful of the neighbouring residents so as not to disturb
the peace.
18. Public transport should be actively promoted at all times as a primary form of transport to and
from the premises. Accordingly, use of private vehicles shall be discouraged. Details of the tube,
rail, bus network and reputable licensed taxi-cab operators to be provided within the premises.
19. There shall be no emptying of bottle banks between the hours of 23:00 - 08:00hrs Monday to
Sunday.
20. All deliveries and collections shall take place between the hours 08:00 - 23:00hrs Monday to
Sunday.

Page 75

21. Erect prominent and legible signage to the premises and external area advising patrons to be
mindful of the neighbouring residents and to disperse from the premises in a timely manner
without making unmaking undue noise or engaging in anti-social behaviour.
22. All staff to be trained to ask for and check age/ID of young-looking customers, and how to deal
with a situation. Refresher training for staff every 6 months. Written training details recorded
and produced on request.
23. Only accept a passport, driving licence or Pass card as proof of age. (As well as HM Forces ID
cards).
24. To maintain a Refusals register and record any instances of refused service because of age/no
ID,or drunkenness, to be and produced on request.
25. To be aware of proxy sales where an adult will buy alcohol for a child.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 77

Agenda Item 4b

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 20 AUGUST 2021
Item No: 4b.
Report Title: Charcoal Kebab 266 Wandsworth Road London SW8 2JR
Applicant: Mr Iqbal Rana
Application Type: Premises Licence (Variation)
Application Date: 29 June 2021
Wards: Larkhall
Premises Type: Restaurant/Takeaway
Policy Context: Lambeth Statement of Licensing Policy 2019 - 2024
Report author: Mr Ola Owojori, Licensing Officer, Public Protection, Regulatory Services and
Assurance, 0207 926 1649, oowojori@lambeth.gov.uk

APPLICATION SUMMARY
This is an application to vary the premises licence to amend one condition and to extend the current
hours for the provision of late-night refreshment.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS
Licensing Objectives (chapter 5, pages 9 to 15 and appendices 1 to 4, pages 41 to 45 of the policy)
The Licensing Objectives engaged by this application are:





The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
Public Safety
The Prevention of Public Nuisance and
Protection of Children from Harm

Cumulative Impact Policy (policy 7, pages 26 to 27 and appendix 10, page 58 of the policy)
The premises are not situated in the Clapham Cumulative Impact Zone.

Page 78
Types of Premises and Recommend Hours (appendix 5, pages 46 to 47 and appendix 6, pages 48
to 50 of the policy)
The premises are classified within Lambeth’s Licensing Policy (2019 - 2024) as a restaurant but are to
be operated as a takeaway during the proposed hours. The premises are located in a local
centre/shopping parade and there are residential properties above .
The recommended end time within the policy for this type of premises, in a local centre/shopping parade
is midnight on Friday and Saturday.
Note: The hours above are not absolute and are intended as a guide for applicants to consider when
completing their operating schedules. Each application will be considered on its own merits. Applicants
seeking hours later than those indicated in the Policy should provide detailed evidence as to why their
application will not have a negative impact on the licensing objectives.

Page 79
1.

APPLICATION

1.1

This is an application to vary the premises licence under section 34 of the Licensing Act 2003.

1.2

The applicant is seeking authorisation for the following:
a) To amend condition 1.
The current condition reads:
The premises shall operate as a delivery service after 00:00 and customers shall not be
permitted inside the premises after this time.
The proposed amended condition would read:
The premises shall operate as a delivery and takeaway service after 00:00
b) To extend the hours for the provision of late-night refreshment until 04:00 hours on Monday
to Sunday.

1.3

The opening hours for the premises are proposed as:
Monday to Sunday 11:00 – 04:00

1.4

A copy of the application form is attached as Annex A.

2.

REPRESENTATIONS

2.1

Four representations have been received against the application. These were from the Licensing
Authority, Public Protection Team, one local resident and one local councillor

2.2

The representations are based on all four of the licensing objectives. Copies of the representations
were provided to the applicant and are attached as Annex B.

2.3

The representations highlight concerns in respect of the hours sought, which they believe will have
a negative impact on residents in the area.

2.4

The last date for making representations was on 26 July 2021.

3.

CURRENT LICENCE

3.1

The current premises licence is attached to the report as Annex C.

4.

BACKGROUND HISTORY

4.1

There are parking restrictions in the area and the premises has no dedicated car parking for its
customers. The premises are within easy access to 24 hour public buses to several London
destinations and within a short distance to Vauxhall and Wandsworth Road rail stations.

4.2

Although the Planning Authority have not made a formal representation in respect of the
application, they did provide comments which have been sent to the applicant:
“planning permission would be required for this change of use, and none has been granted
(nor applied for). If they are currently operating the premises as a takeaway, then they are
likely to be in breach of planning control and subject to formal action. As such, the applicant
is advised to ensure that the premises is used lawfully in planning terms and the following
note should be added to any decision:

Page 80
“The takeaway use of the premises should not commence until such time as formal planning
permission has been obtained. If the use has already commenced, please ensure that a
planning application is received by the council as a matter of urgency. If you consider that the
use of the premises is lawful, you should submit an application for a Lawful Development
Certificate (Existing) with supporting documentation. Should the use commence or continue in
the absence of planning permission, the premises may be liable to formal planning enforcement
action”.
4.3

There is no record of any licensing enforcement action having been taken against the premises,
but they were found not to have adhered to four of the conditions attached to the premises
licence during an inspection on 12 June 2021. The conditions are:






The premises shall operate as a delivery service after 00:00 and customers shall not be
permitted inside the premises after this time.
No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall
emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the
premises which gives rise to a nuisance.
The Premises Licence Holder shall ensure that clearly legible notices shall be displayed
at all exits from the premises requesting patrons to respect the needs of local residents
and to leave the premises and area quietly
A direct telephone number for the manager of the premises shall be publicly available at
all times that the premises is open. This number is to be made available to residents and
businesses in the vicinity. Any complaints shall be remedied within 48 hours and details
to be recorded in the incident book including the action taken by the manager.

5.

OBSERVATIONS

5.1

The parts of the Statutory Guidance (April 2018) which are particularly relevant to this application
and the representations received are Chapters:
2)
3)
8)
9)
10)

5.2

The Licensing Objectives;
Licensable Activities
Applications for Premises Licenses;
Determining Applications; and,
Conditions Attached to Premises Licenses and Club Premises Certificates

The parts of the Statement of Licensing Policy that are particularly relevant to this application and
the representations are Sections:
Chapter 5 - The Licensing Objectives
Policy 1 - Process for applications
Policy 3 - Partnership working
Policy 4 - Enforcement approach
Policy 8 – Hours of sale and locations
Policy 16 – Delivery Services (note, erroneously marked as Policy 15)
Appendix 1: Prevention of Crime and Disorder
Appendix 2: Public Safety
Appendix 3: Prevention of Public Nuisance
Appendix 4: Protection of Children from Harm
Appendix 5: Types of premises and recommended hours

Page 81
Appendix 6: Types of premises and potential impact
Appendix 7: Major, District and Local Town Centres and South Bank Strategic Cultural Area
Appendix 8: What to expect from a Licensing Sub-Committee Hearing

6.

CONCLUSION
Members are required to consider the application in light of all the relevant information, and if
approval is given, may attach such conditions as are considered both appropriate and
proportionate to promote the licensing objectives.
The options available to Members of the Licensing Sub Committee are:
a.
b.
c.

Grant the application as it currently stands;
Grant the application subject to such conditions as the authority considers appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives; or
Reject the whole or part of the application.

For this purpose the conditions of the licence are modified if any of them is altered or omitted or
any new condition is added.

Page 82
CONSULTATION INFORMATION
Consulted
(Y/N)

Department(s) or Organisation(s)
Health & Safety Section (internal)
Noise service (internal)
Social Services (internal)
Licensing Service (internal)
Planning (internal)
Trading Standards (internal)
Fire Authority (external)
Police Licensing Unit (external)
Health Authority (external)

Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y

Date
Response
Received
13/07/2021
23/07/2021
06/07/2021
20/04/2021
-

Comments
summarized in
report (Y/N)
N
Y
N
Y
Y
N
N
N
N

APPENDICES AND REFERENCE DOCUMENTS

Appendices
Reference documents
Local Government Act 1972 –
Access to information documents
used in the preparation of this
report

Annex A – Application
Annex B – Representations
Annex C – Premises Licence
1.
2.
3.

The Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”).
Amended Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing
Act 2003 (April 2018) (“the Guidance”).
Lambeth Statement of Licensing Policy 2019 - 2024 (“the
Policy”).

Page 83
Annex A
Application to vary a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003
PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you are
completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your
answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I/We

Mr IQBAL RANA

(Insert name(s) of applicant)
being the premises licence holder, apply to vary a premises licence under section 34 of the
Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below
Premises licence number
21/00133/PRMNEW

Part 1 – Premises Details
Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description
266 WANDSWORTH ROAD LONDON

Post town

LONDON

Postcode

Telephone number at premises (if any)
Non-domestic rateable value of premises

£11500

Part 2 – Applicant details
Daytime contact
telephone number

0

E-mail address (optional)
Current postal address if
different from premises
address

Post town

Postcode

1

SW8 2JR

Page 84

Part 3 - Variation
Please tick as appropriate
Do you want the proposed variation to have effect as soon as possible?

Yes
No

If not, from what date do you want the variation to take effect?

DD

MM

YYYY

Do you want the proposed variation to have effect in relation to the introduction of the late night
levy? (Please see guidance note 1)
Yes
No
Please describe briefly the nature of the proposed variation (Please see guidance note
2)

1. The premises shall operate as a delivery service after 00:00 and customers shall
not be permitted inside the premises after this time.

Please amend above term as we are new business, there are not delivery
customers in the area,
Can be Change into delivery and take away only
And please extend the time Until 4.00 Am Monday to Sunday
For establish my business at least.

If your proposed variation would mean that 5,000 or more people
are expected to attend the premises at any one time, please state the
number expected to attend:

2

Page 85

Part 4 Operating Schedule
Please complete those parts of the Operating Schedule below which would be subject to change if
this application to vary is successful.
Provision of regulated entertainment (Please see guidance note
3)

Please tick all that
apply

a)

plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)

b)

films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)

c)

indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)

d)

boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)

e)

live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E)

f)

recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)

g)

performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)

h)

anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)
(if ticking yes, fill in box H)

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I)
Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J)
In all cases complete boxes K, L and M

3

Page 86

A
Plays
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)
Day
Mon

Start

Will the performance of a play take place
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick (please
read guidance note 4)

Indoors
Outdoors

Finish

Both
Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5)

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please read
guidance note 6)

Thur

Fri

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
performance of plays at different times to those listed in the column
on the left, please list (please read guidance note 7)

Sat

Sun

4

Page 87

B
Films
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)
Day
Mon

Start

Will the exhibition of films take place indoors
or outdoors or both – please tick (please read
guidance note 4)

Indoors
Outdoors

Finish

Both
Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5)

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films (please read
guidance note 6)

Thur

Fri

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
exhibition of films at different times to those listed in the column on
the left, please list (please read guidance note 7)

Sat

Sun

5

Page 88

C
Indoor sporting events
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)
Day

Start

Please give further details (please read guidance note 5)

Finish

Mon

Tue

State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events (please read
guidance note 6)

Wed

Thur

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
indoor sporting events at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 7)

Fri

Sat

Sun

6

Page 89

D
Boxing or wrestling
entertainments
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)
Day
Mon

Start

Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment take
place indoors or outdoors or both – please tick
(please read guidance note 4)

Indoors
Outdoors

Finish

Both
Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5)

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling entertainment
(please read guidance note 6)

Thur

Fri

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
boxing or wrestling entertainment at different times to those listed
in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 7)

Sat

Sun

7

Page 90

E
Live music
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)
Day
Mon

Start

Will the performance of live music take place
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick (please
read guidance note 4)

Indoors
Outdoors

Finish

Both
Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5)

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music
(please read guidance note 6)

Thur

Fri

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
performance of live music at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 7)

Sat

Sun

8

Page 91

F
Recorded music
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)
Day
Mon

Start

Will the playing of recorded music take place
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick (please
read guidance note 4)

Indoors
Outdoors

Finish

Both
Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5)

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded music
(please read guidance note 6)

Thur

Fri

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
playing of recorded music at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 7)

Sat

Sun

9

Page 92

G
Performances of
dance
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)
Day
Mon

Start

Will the performance of dance take place
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick
(please read guidance note 4)

Indoors
Outdoors

Finish

Both
Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5)

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance
(please read guidance note 6)

Thur

Fri

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the performance of dance at different times to those listed in
the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 7)

Sat

Sun

10

Page 93

H
Anything of a similar
description to that
falling within (e), (f) or
(g)
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)

Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will be
providing

Day

Will this entertainment take place indoors or
outdoors or both – please tick (please read
guidance note 4)

Mon

Start

Finish

Indoors
Outdoors
Both

Tue

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5)

Wed

Thur

State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar
description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g) (please read
guidance note 6)

Fri

Sat

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the entertainment of a similar description to that falling
within (e), (f) or (g) at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 7)

Sun

11

Page 94

I
Late night
refreshment
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)

Will the provision of late night refreshment
take place indoors or outdoors or both –
please tick (please read guidance note 4)

Indoors
Outdoors

TAKE AWAY ONLY

Day

Start

Finish

Mon

11.00

04.00

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5)
AFTER STANDARD TIME
NO MUSIC WILL PLAY
ONLY TAKE WAY

Tue

11.00

04.00

Wed

11.00

04.00

Thur

11.00

04.00

Fri

11.00

04.00

Sat

11.00

04.00

Sun

11.00

04.00

Both

State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night
refreshment (please read guidance note 6)
EVERY DAY SAME

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the provision of late night refreshment at different times, to
those listed in the column on the left, please list (please read
guidance note 7)

ONLY FOR TAKE WAY

12

Page 95

J
Supply of alcohol
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)
Day
Mon

Start

Will the supply of alcohol be for
consumption – please tick (please read
guidance note 9)

On the
premises
Off the
premises

Finish

Both
State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please
read guidance note 6)

Tue

Wed

Thur

Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the supply of alcohol at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 7)

Fri

Sat

Sun

K
Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or
matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of
children (please read guidance note 10).

N/A

13

Page 96

L
Hours premises are
open to the public
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)
Day

Start

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 6)
n/a

Finish

Mon

Tue

Wed

Thur

Non standard timings. Where you intend the premises to be
open to the public at different times from those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 7)

Fri

n/a

Sat

Sun

Please identify those conditions currently imposed on the licence which you believe could be
removed as a consequence of the proposed variation you are seeking.
1.
The premises shall operate as a delivery service after 00:00 and customers
shall not be permitted inside the premises after this time.

Please amend above term as we are new business, there are not delivery
customers ,
Can you please Change into delivery and take away only
please Extend time Until 4.00 Am

14

Page 97

Please tick as appropriate
I have enclosed the premises licence
I have enclosed the relevant part of the premises licence
If you have not ticked one of these boxes, please fill in reasons for not including the licence or part
of it below
Reasons why I have not enclosed the premises licence or relevant part of premises licence.
I haven’t received licence yet and is still with Lambeth.

15

Page 98

M Describe any additional steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives as a
result of the proposed variation:
a) General – all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e) (please read guidance note 11)
b) The prevention of crime and disorder
n/a

c) Public safety
There is not any risk for pubic its only take away

d) The prevention of public nuisance
n/a

e) The protection of children from harm
No children will harm its take away

Checklist:
Please tick to indicate agreement
I have made or enclosed payment of the fee; or
I have not made or enclosed payment of the fee because this application has been
made in relation to the introduction of the late night levy.
I have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and
others where applicable.

16

Page 99

I understand that I must now advertise my application.
I have enclosed the premises licence or relevant part of it or explanation.
I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will
be rejected.
IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE
WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION
TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.
Part 5 – Signatures (please read guidance note 12)
Signature of applicant (the current premises licence holder) or applicant’s solicitor or other
duly authorised agent (please read guidance note 13). If signing on behalf of the applicant,
please state in what capacity.
Signature
Date

18-06-2021

Capacity
Where the premises licence is jointly held, signature of 2nd applicant (the current premises
licence holder) or 2nd applicant’s solicitor or other authorised agent (please read guidance
note 14). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.
Signature
Date
Capacity
Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated
with this application (please read guidance note 15)

Post town
Post code
Telephone number (if any)
If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional)

Notes for Guidance
This application cannot be used to vary the licence so as to extend the period for which the
licence has effect or to vary substantially the premises to which it relates. If you wish to

17

Page 100

make that type of change to the premises licence, you should make a new premises licence
application under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003.

18

1. You do not have to pay a fee if the only purpose of the variation for which you are
applying is to avoid becoming liable for the late night levy
2. Describe the premises. For example, the type of premises, its general situation and layout
and any other information which could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where
your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place of
consumption of these off-supplies of alcohol, you must include a description of where the
place will be and its proximity to the premises.
3. In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:
• Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
• Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in
community premises between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that the
audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the screening
from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such
screening abides by age classification ratings.
• Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00
and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000.
• Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment: no licence is required for a contest,
exhibition or display of Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between
08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000.
Combined fighting sports – defined as a contest, exhibition or display which
combines boxing or wrestling with one or more martial arts – are licensable as a
boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an indoor sporting event.
• Live music: no licence permission is required for:
o a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on
any day, on any premises.
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day on premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those
premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, in a workplace that is not licensed to sell alcohol on those premises,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, in a church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar
community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the
organiser gets consent for the performance from a person who is
responsible for the premises.
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a
school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed
500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the
relevant premises from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the
school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.
• Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on
premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a
church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar community
premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell alcohol,

Page 101

o

provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser
gets consent for the performance from a person who is responsible for
the premises.
any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at
the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or
(iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and
(b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant
premises from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school
proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

•

Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance
which amounts to adult entertainment remains licensable.
• Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on
any day, with no limit on audience size for:
o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority
where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the local
authority;
o any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health
care provider where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the
health care provider;
o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the school proprietor; and
o any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling
entertainment) taking place at a travelling circus, provided that (a) it
takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the audience,
and (b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for
more than 28 consecutive days.
4. Where taking place in a building or other structure please tick as appropriate (indoors
may include a tent).
5. For example state type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant
further details, for example (but not exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified
or unamplified.
6. For example (but not exclusively), where the activity will occur on additional days during
the summer months.
7. For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a
particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.
8. Please give timings in 24 hour clock (e.g. 16.00) and only give details for the days of the
week when you intend the premises to be used for the activity.
9. If you wish people to be able to consume alcohol on the premises, please tick ‘on the
premises’. If you wish people to be able to purchase alcohol to consume away from the
premises, please tick ‘off the premises’. If you wish people to be able to do both, please
tick ‘both’.
10. Please give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to
the use of the premises which may give rise to concern in respect of children regardless of
whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for example (but not
exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups or the presence of
gaming machines.
11. Please list here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.
12. The application form must be signed.
13. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided
that they have actual authority to do so.
14. Where there is more than one applicant, each of the applicants or their respective agents
must sign the application form.
15. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

19

Page 102

20

Page 103

21/00184/PRMVAR - Charcoal Kebab, 266 Wandsworth Road London SW8 2JR
As a responsible authority under section 13(4) of the Licensing Act 2003 as amended under
the Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011, the Licensing Authority have considered your
application in full. The Licensing Authority has concerns in relation to this application and
how the premises would promote the following Licensing Objectives:
•
Public Nuisance
•
Prevention of Crime & Disorder
•
Public Safety
•
Protection of Children from Harm

The premises are operated as a restaurant and takeaway, providing late night refreshment
until 00:00 hours on Monday to Sunday and until 01:00 on Monday to Thursday and 02:00
hours on Friday and Saturday delivery.
The variation application is proposed to:
1. extend the hours for late night refreshment until 04:00 hours on Monday to Sunday
2. amend condition 1 to allow the premises to operate as delivery and takeaway service
after 00:00
3. extend opening hours until 04:00 on Monday to Sunday.
Background
The applicant was notified of the grant of a new premises licence on 4th June 2021 and was
informed to operate in line with the hours and conditions agreed. A visit by the licenisng
authority was conducted on 12th June 2021, following a complaint of noise from the
premises. The premises were found to be in breach of four out of seven conditions they had
agreed with the Licensing Authority.
Classification of Area within the policy
According to the current Licensing Policy, Appendix 5 page 46, the premises are located in a
local centre/shopping parade and it is also in close proximity to residential properties. There
are residential properties above the premises.
Local centres have traditionally provided a range of small shops of a local nature, serving a
small catchment. Typically, local centres might include shops, a small supermarket,
newsagent, sub-post office and a pharmacy. Other facilities may include a hot food
takeaway and launderette.
Proximity to residential accommodation is a general consideration with regard to the
prevention of public nuisance. The Authority will treat each case on its individual merits,
however, stricter conditions will generally be considered on premises licences in areas that
have denser levels of residential accommodation or residential accommodation in close
proximity to them. This may include the Authority considering an earlier terminal hour than
that proposed by the applicant. This is regardless of the designation assigned to the area in
which the premises is situated under this policy, i.e. as a Major or District Town Centre. In
such cases and where relevant representations are received, the Licensing Authority will
have regard to the potential for, and the risk of, nuisance occurring to nearby residents,
particularly when considering an application which proposes the conduct of licensable
activities after the hours indicated in Appendix 5. It is important to stress that the terminal

Page 104
hours set out in Appendix 5 are intended as guidance only. The Licensing Authority may
recommend or agree an earlier or later terminal hour where this is considered appropriate.
Operational Schedule
Premises operated as takeaway can contribute to nuisance in the form of;
• Noise from patrons or delivery vehicles
• Litter dropped by patrons
• Cooking smells
• Can be a place for people to congregate after late- night drinking, and there is a
small associated risk for violence and anti-social behaviour to occur as a result
Applicants are expected to demonstrate how they will effectively manage the issues above
and applications for licences or variations to operate beyond midnight are expected to
include a detailed dispersal policy to be considered with the application.
Applicants seeking hours later than those specified in the policy are expected to provide
detailed evidence as to why their application will not have a negative impact on the licensing
objectives.
There is insufficient information in the applicant’s operating schedule to adequately promote
the licensing objectives. The completion of a full and detailed operating schedule will give
greater confidence that the applicant seeks to make a positive contribution and is
demonstrating a commitment to both those living in the vicinity and the licensing objectives.
Applicants are expected to:
•
•
•
•

demonstrate knowledge of the local area when describing the steps they propose to
take to promote the licensing objectives;
to undertake enquiries about the area in which the premises are situated to inform
the content of the application;
to obtain sufficient information to enable them to demonstrate, when setting out the
steps they propose to take to promote the licensing objectives, that they understand:
the layout of the local area and physical environment including crime and disorder
hotspots and proximity to residential premises

Noise nuisance is particularly intrusive at night when ambient noise levels are lower and
residents are trying to sleep and so it is important that applicants can demonstrate how they
will effectively manage such issues as:
•
•
•
•

the exit and dispersal of their patrons;
noise from patrons in queues or outside smoking areas;
patrons returning to cars parked in surrounding streets;
general noise of people arriving and leaving

Applicants for licences to run after midnight and for variations to extend hours should
consider preparing a detailed dispersal policy and submit this with their application.
Summary
The applicant has recently been granted a licence of which he has failed to adhere to a
number of conditions within one week of its grant. Whilst the applicant informed the
breaches would not re -occur, there are concerns with the current application submitted to
extend hours further. The hours currently permitted on the licence are already beyond policy
2

Page 105
hours on Monday to Sunday and no information has been provided by the applicant as to
how he will uphold the licensing objectives or address and nuisance arising in the early
hours for the hours applied for under this variation.
The applicant already demonstrated failure to adhere to conditions; has failed to provide any
information that the hours sought will not exacerbate public nuisance or impact adversely on
the area and has not provided any information as to how the licensing objectives will be
promoted. It is therefore recommended this application refused.

3

Page 106

Miss Bina Patel
Licensing Manager
London Borough of Lambeth

12th July 2021

Dear Miss Patel,
My name is Oladayo Bello, I am employed by London Borough of Lambeth as a Public
Protection Officer within Public Protection and Regulatory Services (PPARS)
I write on behalf of the London Borough of Lambeth Public Protection Team against the
granting of a variation to premises licence for:
Charcoal Kebab, 266 Wandsworth Road, London, SW8 2JR
(Ref: 21/00184/PRMVAR)
The Public Protection Team are entering a formal representation on the grounds of the
following licensing objectives:
•
•
•

The prevention of public nuisance.
The prevention of crime and disorder
Protection of Children from Harm

Summary
Public Protection currently have a Community Partnership with the police and other
stakeholders and work together to promote public safety and reduce crime and antisocial
behaviour. This is reflected in Lambeth Council’s policies and action plans which are relevant
to different areas and situations.
This application is made by a business that has just been granted a licence in the last 2 to 3
months. The new licence states that the business shall operate as a delivery service only after
00:00hrs and customers shall not be permitted inside the premises after this time. The
applicant has requested a variation to the new licence to remove the clause and allow
customers in the premises after midnight and also to extend the licensed hours to 04.00hrs
Monday to Sunday
The prevention of public nuisance/The prevention of crime and disorder
Though Charcoal Kebab is a new business, the address has had similar businesses in the
past that have had negative impact on the residents and neighbours around the businesses.
History
Public Protection records show the following complaints recorded against businesses past
and present at 266 Wandsworth Road.
18/05719/NCDOM
Report of unlicensed tables and chairs put out on pavement by previous business
1

Page 107

20.04.2018
18/05880/NCDOM
Noise Nuisance on week nights and week ends reported against a previous business at the
same address lasting till 2-3 am in the morning by customers of the restaurant Sel y Pimento
(formerly named Lobito Grill)
06.06.2018
18/07979/LLA90
unlicensed table and chairs
invited to PACE interview and warning issued to previous business
25.09.2019
19/08799/PDAIR
Report of every day strong smell of burning fat pumping from an extraction unit at the rear of
the property, below the walkway and windows of the flats above for a previous business
10.06.2021
21/07389/NCMISC
Resident complaint about Charcoal Kebab using noisy extractor and keeping him awake at
night.
Extending the opening hours for this business and allowing customers in the premises after
12 midnight may lead to additional noise nuisance and anti-social behaviour from boisterous
customers
Protection of Children from Harm
Late night refreshment of food like kebab can be an attraction to children and underaged, the
applicant has not detailed how he will promote this objective of protecting some children or
minors who may want to visit or hang around the shop after hours.

Conclusion
The application to extend operating hours for these business with customers allowed on the
premises till 4.00 am will no doubt impact negatively on the quality of life of residents around
the business and may require additional resources by Lambeth Council and the Metropolitan
Police at the expense of the public to monitor and respond to. It is for these reasons Public
Protection object to the current variation application to extend the operating hours of the
current licence.
In order to continue to fulfil and promote the licensing objectives as a responsible authority,
the Public Protection Team recommends that the application for variation to this Licence is
refused.
Sincerely,

Oladayo Bello
Public Protection Officer
2

Page 108

Page 109
From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

Sarah G Williams on behalf of Licensing
Ola Owojori
FW: Variation to licence charcoal kebab ltd 266 wandsworth rd
06 July 2021 18:32:16

FYA
From:
Sent: 05 July 2021 11:53
To: Licensing <XDESLICENSE@lambeth.gov.uk>
Subject: Variation to licence charcoal kebab ltd 266 wandsworth rd
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

I am making a formal objection to the new application to allow the above proprietor to extend
his current operating hours to 4 00 am takeaway and delivery service i live in aflat above the
premises which wandsworth council own there is already an ongoing problem with his noisy
extractor fan which is being dealt with by your health and safety officers and with also your
public protection officer as stated before there is also a double unit costcutter shop with a 24 7
licence also below me and with the added noise that motorcycles delivery would would be
extremely detrimental to my sleep and mental health itrust you will take all these circumstances
into account when making your decision kind regards
fowler house wandsworth
rd sw8 4et Mobile 0

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 111
London Borough of Lambeth
Licensing Department
PO Box 734, Winchester SO23 5DG
Tel: 020 7926 6108
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk/licensing/

Annex C

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence
Premises Licence Number

21/00133/PRMNEW

Version Reference

Part 1 – Premises Details
Postal address of premises including Post Town & Post Code, or if none, ordnance survey map
reference or description
Charcoal Kebab
266 Wandsworth Road
London
SW8 2JR
Telephone number
Where the licence is time limited the dates
Licensable activities authorised by the licence
Late Night Refreshment (indoors and outdoors)

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
Late Night Refreshment
Monday - Thursday
Friday & Saturday
Sunday

23:00 - 01:00
23:00 - 02:00
23:00 - 00:00

The opening hours of the premises
Monday to Thursday
Friday to Saturday
Sunday

11:00 - 01:00
11:00 - 02:00
11:00 - 00:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off supplies
N/A

Premises Licence

A-1

Page 112
Part 2
Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of
premises licence
Mr Iqbal Rana
266 Wandworth Road
London
SW8 2JR
Email Address contact details

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)
N/A
Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises
licence authorises the supply or the sale by retail of alcohol
N/A
Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises
supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply or sale by retail of alcohol
N/A

Signed:
On behalf of the Head
of Regulatory Services
Dated: 27th July 2021
Premises Licence

A-2

Page 113
Annex 1 – Mandatory conditions
N/A

Premises Licence

A-3

Page 114
Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule
1. The premises shall operate as a delivery service after 00:00 and customers shall not be permitted inside
the premises after this time.
2. Vehicles used for delivery should not be left idle outside the premises to ensure residents in the locality
are not disturbed
3. All waste shall be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 30 minutes before the
scheduled collection times
4. No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall emanate from the
premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance
5. The Premises Licence Holder shall ensure that clearly legible notices shall be displayed at all exits from
the premises requesting patrons to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and area
quietly
6. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an authorised officer of
the Lambeth Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours of the incident and will record the
following:
a) all crimes reported to the venue
b) all ejections of patrons
c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder
d) any incidents of disorder
e) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.
7. A direct telephone number for the manager of the premises shall be publicly available at all times that the
premises is open. This number is to be made available to residents and businesses in the vicinity. Any
complaints shall be remedied within 48 hours and details to be recorded in the incident book including the
action taken by the manager.

Premises Licence

A-4

Page 115
Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority
N/A

Premises Licence

A-5

Page 116
Annex 4 – Plans

Premises Licence

A-6

Page 117
London Borough of Lambeth
Licensing Department
PO Box 734, Winchester SO23 5DG
Tel: 020 7926 6108
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk/licensing/

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence Summary
Premises Licence Number

21/00133/PRMNEW

Version Reference

Premises Details
Postal address of premises including Post Town & Post Code, or if none, ordnance survey map
reference or description
Charcoal Kebab
266 Wandsworth Road
London
SW8 2JR
Telephone number
Where the licence is time limited the dates
Licensable activities authorised by the licence
Late Night Refreshment (indoors and outdoors)

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
Late Night Refreshment
Monday - Thursday
Friday & Saturday
Sunday

23:00 - 01:00
23:00 - 02:00
23:00 - 00:00

The opening hours of the premises
Monday to Thursday
Friday to Saturday
Sunday

11:00 - 01:00
11:00 - 02:00
11:00 - 00:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off supplies
N/A

Premises Licence Summary

B-7

Page 118
Name, (registered) address of holder of premises licence
Mr Iqbal Rana
266 Wandworth Road
London
SW8 2JR

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)
N/A
Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply or
sale by retail of alcohol
N/A
State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited
N/A

Premises Licence Summary

B-8

Page 119

Agenda Item 4c

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 20 AUGUST 2021
Item No: 4c.
Report title: Theatro, 69-71 Westow Hill, SE19 1TX
Applicant: The Music Box Enterprises Ltd
Application type: Premises licence (grant)
Application date: 26 May 2021
Ward: Gipsy Hill
Premises type: Restaurant and Bar
Policy Context: Lambeth Statement of Licensing Policy 2019 - 2024
Report author: Tom Dunn, Licensing Officer, 020 7926 1866, tdunn@lambeth.gov.uk
APPLICATION SUMMARY
This is an application for a Premises Licence (new application) authorising the following licensable
activities; Live Music, Recorded Music, Performances of Dance, anything similar to Music and Dance,
Late Night Refreshment and the Sale of Alcohol.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS
Licensing Objectives (chapter 5, pages 9 to 15 and appendices 1 to 4, pages 41 to 45 of the policy)
The Licensing Objectives engaged by this application are:





The prevention of crime and disorder;
Public safety;
The prevention of public nuisance; and,
The protection of children from harm.

Cumulative Impact Policy (policy 7, pages 26 to 27 and appendix 10, page 58 of the policy)
The premises are not situated in the Clapham Cumulative Impact Zone.

Page 120
Types of Premises and Recommend Hours (appendix 5, pages 46 to 47 and appendix 6, pages 48
to 50 of the policy)
The premises are to be operated as a Restaurant and Bar serving Asian Fusion Tapas. The operator
also intends to utilise delivery of food and drink via online delivery companies such as Deliveroo and
Uber Eats.
The premises are classified within Lambeth’s Licensing Policy, Appendix 6, page 48 as a bar due to
alcohol being available without a food purchase.
The premises are located on Westow Hill which according to the current Licensing Policy, Appendix 7 is
a District Centre.
The key areas of concern for these areas is that whilst there might be very little residential property in the
immediate area, a short walk will lead into highly residential streets and the potential for public nuisance
in the form of noise, litter from late night eateries and the targeting of individuals by criminals is high.
For premises of this kind in a District Centre, the Licensing Policy recommends a start time of 11:00 hours
and a terminal hour of 00:00 (midnight) Sunday – Thursday and 01:00 Friday and Saturday.
Note: The hours above are not absolute and are intended as a guide for applicants to consider when
completing their operating schedules. Each application will be considered on its own merits. Applicants
seeking hours later than those indicated in the Policy should provide detailed evidence as to why their
application will not have a negative impact on the licensing objectives.

Page 121
1.

APPLICATION

1.1

This is an application for a Premises Licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003.

1.2

The applicant is seeking authorisation for live music, recorded music, performances of dance,
anything similar to music or dance and the sale of alcohol for consumption on and off the premises,
during the following times:
a.
b.
c.

1.3

The applicant is seeking authorisation for the provision of late night refreshment during the
following times:
a.
b.
c.

1.4

Monday to Sunday 11:00 – 01:00
On any Sunday over a Bank Holiday weekend, until 03:00
From the start of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve until the start of permitted hours on
New Year’s Day.

Monday to Sunday 23:00 – 01:00
On any Sunday over a Bank Holiday weekend, until 03:00
From the start of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve until the start of permitted hours on
New Year’s Day.

The opening hours for the premises are proposed as:
a.
b.
c.

Monday to Sunday 11:00 – 01:30
On any Sunday over a Bank Holiday weekend, until 03:00
From the start of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve until the start of permitted hours on
New Year’s Day.

1.5

A copy of the application form, plan and conditions offered by the applicant as part of their
operating schedule, are attached as Annex A.

2.

REPRESENTATIONS

2.1

There were nineteen (19) representations received in respect of this application. These were from:
a.
b.
c.

Two (2) Responsible Authorities (the Licensing Authority and Police).
Twelve (12) members of the public against the application.
Five (5) members of the public in support of the application.

2.2

The representations are based on all four of the licensing objectives, the prevention of public
nuisance, prevention of crime and disorder, public safety and the protection of children from harm.

2.3

The Responsible Authorities representations highlight that the application seeks hours beyond the
Licensing Policy and raises concerns of anti-social behaviour in the Gipsy Hill area. Concerns
raised by members of the public include noise nuisance, anti-social behaviour and other issues
surrounding unsocial operating hours.

2.4

Copies of the representations were provided to the applicant and are attached at the following
annexes:
a. Annex B(i); representations against the application.
b. Annex B(ii); representation in support of the application.

Page 122
2.5

The last date for making representations was 23 June 2021.

2.6

A copy of the conditions proposed by the applicant and responsible authorities can be seen at Annex
C.

3.

CURRENT LICENCE

3.1

There is not a current premises licence in place for this address.

4.

BACKGROUND HISTORY

4.1

The premises were previously licensed under reference numbers Prem2066 and Prem2208,
both of which have lapsed due to the licence holder dissolving. Copies of these licences can be
seen at Annex D.

4.2

The Licensing Authority received two complaints in 2017 and 2018 in respect of this premises,
under licence number Prem2066. At the time the licensee was Your Restaurants Ltd and the
Designated Premises Supervisor was Geoffrey Ridgeon. These complaints were in relation to
breaches of the licence, noise nuisance and anti-social behaviour. The Licensing Authority are
not aware of any connection between the previous and new operators.

4.3

The premises are located on Westow Hill and near bus stops. Crystal Palace station is the
closest overground and railway, approximately a 5–10-minute walk. The premises do not have
their own dedicated car park.

4.4

The premises have not applied for any Temporary Event Notices in 2021.

5.

OBSERVATIONS

5.1

The parts of the Statutory Guidance (April 2018) which are particularly relevant to this application
and the representations received are Chapters:
2)
3)
8)
9)
10)
16)

5.2

The Licensing Objectives;
Licensable Activities
Applications for Premises Licenses;
Determining Applications; and,
Conditions Attached to Premises Licenses and Club Premises Certificates; and,
Regulated Entertainment.

The parts of the Statement of Licensing Policy that are particularly relevant to this application and
the representations are Sections:
5)

The Licensing Objectives
Policy 1 - Process for applications
Policy 3 - Partnership working
Policy 4 - Enforcement approach
Policy 8 – Hours of sale and locations
Policy 16: Delivery Services (note. erroneously marked as Policy 15)
Appendix 1: Prevention of Crime and Disorder
Appendix 2: Public Safety
Appendix 3: Prevention of Public Nuisance
Appendix 4: Protection of Children from Harm

Page 123
Appendix 5: Types of premises and recommended hours
Appendix 6: Types of premises and potential impact
Appendix 8: What to expect from a Licensing Sub-Committee Hearing

6.

CONCLUSION
Members are required to consider the application in light of all the relevant information, and if
approval is given, may attach such conditions appropriate to promote the licensing objectives.
The options available to Members of the Licensing Sub Committee are:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.

Grant the application as it currently stands;
Grant the application subject to such conditions as the authority considers appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives;
Exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which the application
relates;
To refuse to specify the individual named in the applications as the DPS; or,
Reject the application.

Page 124
CONSULTATION INFORMATION

Department(s) or Organisation(s)
Health & Safety Section (internal)
Noise service (internal)
Social Services (internal)
Licensing Service (internal)
Planning (internal)
Trading Standards (internal)
Fire Authority (external)
Police Licensing Unit (external)
Health Authority (external)

Consulted
(Y/N)
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y

Date
Response
Received
22/06/2021
15/06/2021
23/06/2021
-

Comments
summarized in
report (Y/N)

Y

N
Y

APPENDICES AND REFERENCE DOCUMENTS

Appendices

Reference documents
Local Government Act 1972 – Access to
information documents used in the preparation of
this report

Annex A - Application form, plan and conditions
Annex B(i) - Representations against
Annex B(ii) – Representations in support
Annex C - List of proposed conditions
Annex D – Prem2066 and Prem2208 licences
1. The Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”).
2. Amended Guidance issued under Section 182
of the Licensing Act 2003 (April 2018) (“the
Guidance”).
3. Lambeth Statement of Licensing Policy 2019 2024 (“the Policy”).

Lambeth Council
Lambeth Council, P.O. Box 734, Winchester, S023 5DG
T: 020 7926 1000
E: infoservice@lambeth.gov.uk

Page 125

Annex A
Ref: DSFX1622023456467

New Premises Licence

Premises Details
Premises Address *

69-71 WESTOW HILL LONDON LAMBETH SE19 1TX

Telephone number at premises (if any)

n/a

Non-domestic value of premises. *

£ 36750

Applicant Details
I/We apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below (the
premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12 of the
Licensing Act 2003.
Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence
as:

a person other than an individual -as a limited company/
limited liability partnership

Applicant Details
If you are applying as a person described in one of the above
please confirm: *

1

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which
involves the use of the premises for licensable activities; or

Page 126

Ref: DSFX1622023456467

Other Applicant (Non Individual)
Name *

The Music Box Enterprises Ltd

Registered Address *

128 Church Road

Town/City *

London

County
Postcode *

SE19 2NT

Registered Number (where applicable)

12413267

Description of applicant (for example partnership, company,
unincorporated association, etc) *

Company

Telephone Number
Email *

Operating Schedule
When do you want the premises licence to start? *

24/06/2021

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period,
when do you want it to end?
Theatro, will be a restaurant and bar serving Asian Fusion
Tapas and will be hiring out of work musical actors who will
serve and sing along with a live band and entertain guests.
The premise is set on two floors; ground floor and lower
ground floor. The lower ground floor has a small adjoining
courtyard which will be a sit down area for food and drink.
The operator also proposes to utilise deliveries of food and
beverages via online delivery companies such as Deliveroo,
Uber Eats etc.

Please give a general description of the premises. *

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises
at any one time, please state the number expected to attend.

2

Page 127

Ref: DSFX1622023456467

Operating Schedule
What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises? * (Please see sections 1 and 14 of the Licensing Act
2003 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003)
Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note 2) *

Plays

Films

Indoor Sporting Events

Boxing or Wrestling

✓

Live Music

✓

Recorded Music

✓

Performances of Dance

✓

Anything of a similar description falling under Music or Dance

✓

Provision of late night refreshment

✓

Supply of Alcohol

3

Page 128

Ref: DSFX1622023456467

Live Music Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for the performance of live music. (please read guidance
note 7) * Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Every Day
11:00
01:00

Live Music
Will the Performance of Live Music take place indoors or
outdoors or both? (please read guidance note 3) *

Indoors

Please provide further details. (please read guidance note 4)

Amplified live music performances.

State any seasonal variations for the Performance of Live
Music. (please read guidance note 5)
Please state any non-standard timings, where you intend
to use the premises for the performance of live music at
different times from the Standard days and times listed?
(please read guidance note 6)

On any Sunday over a Bank Holiday weekend, until 03:00h
the following morning. From the start of permitted hours on
New Year’s Eve until the start of permitted hours on New
Year’s Day.

Recorded Music Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for the performance of recorded music. (please read
guidance note 7) * Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Every Day
11:00
01:00

4

Page 129

Ref: DSFX1622023456467

Recorded Music
Will the playing of recorded music take place indoors or
outdoors or both? (please read guidance note 3) *

Indoors

Please provide further details.(please read guidance note 4)

Amplified recorded music performances.

State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded
music. (please read guidance note 5)
Please state any non-standard timings, where you intend
to use the premises for the performance of recorded music
at different times from the Standard days and times listed?
(please read guidance note 6)

On any Sunday over a Bank Holiday weekend, until 03:00h
the following morning. From the start of permitted hours on
New Year’s Eve until the start of permitted hours on New
Year’s Day.

Dance Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for the performance of dance. (please read guidance note
7) * Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Every Day
11:00
01:00

Performances of Dance
Will the performances of dance take place indoors or
outdoors or both? (please read guidance note 3) *

Indoors

Please provide further details. (please read guidance note 4)

Some music performances will be accompanied by
choreography by performers.

State any seasonal variations for the performances of dance.
(please read guidance note 5)
Please state any non-standard timings, where you intend to
use the premises for the performance of dance at different
times from the Standard days and times listed? (please read
guidance note 6)

5

On any Sunday over a Bank Holiday weekend, until 03:00h
the following morning. From the start of permitted hours on
New Year’s Eve until the start of permitted hours on New
Year’s Day.

Page 130

Ref: DSFX1622023456467

Anything of a similar description falling under Music or Dance Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for anything of a similar description falling under music or
dance. (please read guidance note 7) * Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Every Day
11:00
01:00

Anything of a similar description falling under Music or Dance
Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will
be providing.

Anything similar to live/recorded music and performance of
dance.

Will the entertainment take place indoors or outdoors or
both?(please read guidance note 3)*

Indoors

Please provide further details.(please read guidance note 4)

Anything similar to live/recorded music and performance of
dance.

State any seasonal variations for the entertainment.(please
read guidance note 5)
Please state any non-standard timings, where you intend to
use the premises for entertainment at different times from the
Standard days and times listed? (please read guidance note
6)

On any Sunday over a Bank Holiday weekend, until 03:00h
the following morning. From the start of permitted hours on
New Year’s Eve until the start of permitted hours on New
Year’s Day.

Late Night Refreshment Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for late night refreshment.(please read guidance note 7)*
Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Every Day
23:00
01:00

6

Page 131

Ref: DSFX1622023456467

Late Night Refreshment
Will the provision of late night refreshment take place indoors
or outdoors or both? (please read guidance note 3)*

Both

Please provide further details.(please read guidance note 4)

Hot food/drink served to customers after 11pm.

State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night
refreshment.(please read guidance note 5)
Please state any non-standard timings, where you intend
to use the premises for late night refreshmentat different
times from the Standard days and times listed?(please read
guidance note 6)

On any Sunday over a Bank Holiday weekend, until 03:00h
the following morning. From the start of permitted hours on
New Year’s Eve until the start of permitted hours on New
Year’s Day.

Supply of Alcohol Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for the supply of alcohol. (please read guidance note 7)*
Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Every Day
11:00
01:00

Supply of Alcohol
Will the supply of alcohol be for consumptionon premises or
off premises or both? (please read guidance note 8) *

Both

State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol.
(please read guidance note 5)
Please state any non-standard timings, where you intend
to use the premises for the supply of alcoholat different
times from the Standard days and times listed?(please read
guidance note 6)

On any Sunday over a Bank Holiday weekend, until 03:00h
the following morning. From the start of permitted hours on
New Year’s Eve until the start of permitted hours on New
Year’s Day.

7

Page 132

Ref: DSFX1622023456467

Designated Premises Supervisor
State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as designated premises supervisor
(Please see declaration about the entitlement to work in the checklist at the end of the form)
Title *

Ms

First name *

Roya

Surname *

Harris

Street address *

Town/City *
County
Postcode *

Personal Licence Number (if known)
Issuing Licensing Authority (if known)

Croydon

Adult Entertainment
Please highlight any adult entertainment or services,
activities, other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use
of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of
children (please read guidance note 9).

None.

8

Page 133

Ref: DSFX1622023456467

Opening Hours Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where the premises are open to the public. (please read guidance note 7) * Please enter times in
24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Every Day
11:00
01:30

Opening Hours
State any seasonal variations. (please read guidance note 5)
Please state any Non-standard timings, where you intend the
premises to be open to the public at different times from the
Standard days and times listed? (please read guidance note
6)

On any Sunday over a Bank Holiday weekend, until 03:30h
the following morning. From the start of permitted hours on
New Year’s Eve until the start of permitted hours on New
Year’s Day.

Licensing Objectives
Describe any additional steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives as a result of the proposed variation:
a) General - all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e)
(please read guidance note 10)

Please see attached

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

Please see attached

c) Public safety

Please see attached

d) The prevention of public nuisance

Please see attached

e) The protection of children from harm

Please see attached

Declarations
Declaration Type *

Sole Applicant - Individual or Other

9

Page 134

Ref: DSFX1622023456467

Declarations
I have uploaded a copy of the plan of the premises. I have uploaded a copy of the consent form completed by the individual
I wish to be designated premises supervisor, if applicable. I understand I must now advertise my application. I understand
that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will be rejected. Applicable to all individual applicants,
including those in partnership which is not a limited liability partnership, but not companies or limited liability partnerships I
have included documents demonstrating my entitlement to work in the United Kingdom (please read note 15)
IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY
CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT' 'IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT
1971 FOR A PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE
DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT
WITHOUT LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY
UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION, ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION
21 OF THE SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH
REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE EMPLOYEE IS DISQUALIFIED.
Signature/Declaration of applicant or applicant's solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see Guidance Note 11 &amp; 12).
If signing/applying on behalf of the applicant, please state your name and in what capacity you are authorised to sign/apply.
When submitting an on-line application form the 'Declaration made' checkbox must be selected.

✓

I understand I am not entitled to be issued with a licence if I do not have the entitlement to live and work in the UK (or
if I am subject to a condition preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity) and
that my licence will become invalid if I cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance note 15).

✓

The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK (and is not subject to conditions preventing him
or her from doing work relating to a licensable activity) and I have seen a copy of his or her proof of entitlement to
work, if appropriate (please see note 15).

Full Name *

Roya Harris

Date *

26/05/2021

Capacity *

Applicant

✓

Declaration made

Do you wish to provide alternative correspondence details? *

10

Yes

Page 135

Ref: DSFX1622023456467

Alternative Correspondence
Please provide Contact Name and postal address for correspondence associated with this application.
Title

Mr

First name

Paul

Surname

Uren

Street address *

TLT Solicitors

Town/City *
County
Postcode *
Telephone Number
Email *

Email confirmation
On submission an email confirmation will be sent using the details below
Forename

Paul

Surname /Company Name

Uren

Email *
Telephone

11

Page 136

The Music Box Enterprises Ltd
Theatro, 69-71 Westow Hill, London SE19 1TX
Proposed Licensing Conditions
Hours
Sales of alcohol (on and off sales), live music, recorded music, performance of dance and
anything similar to live/recorded music and performance of dance as follows;
Monday to Sunday from 11:00h until 01:00h the following morning.
Late Night Refreshment as follows;
Monday to Sunday from 23:00h until 01:00h the following morning.
To permit thirty minutes drinking up time following the last permitted sale of alcohol.
For all of the above, on any Sunday over a Bank Holiday weekend, until 03:00h (03:30h close)
the following morning and from the start of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve until the start
of permitted hours on New Year’s Day.
General – all four licensing objectives
Locations of fire safety and other safety equipment subject to change in accordance with the
requirements of the responsible authorities or following a risk assessment.
Any detail shown on the plan that is not required by the licensing plans regulations is indicative only
and subject to change at any time.
All staff members engaged, or to be engaged, in selling alcohol on the premises shall receive full
training pertinent to the Licensing Act, specifically in regard to age-restricted sales, and the refusal of
sales to persons believed to be under the influence of alcohol or drugs. This shall take place every 12
months.
All such training is to be fully documented and signed by not only the employee but the person
delivering the training. Training records shall be kept at the premises and made available upon
request to either Police Officers or an authorised officer of Lambeth Council.
Waiter or waitress service will be available throughout.
Customers shall not be allowed to bring their own alcohol for consumption on the premises.
A direct telephone number (mobile to be held by duty manager) will be provided to neighbouring
premises to be used in the event of a complaint of noise nuisance.

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system. All entry and exit points must
be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in a light condition. The CCTV
system shall continually record whilst the premises are open. All recordings shall be stored for a
minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made
available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer of Lambeth Council.
A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system shall be
in the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff member must be able to provide a
Police or authorised council officer copies of recent CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum
of delay when requested and within a maximum of 24 hours of the initial request.
Subject to Data Protection guidance and legislation, the management of the premises will ensure that
key staff are fully trained in the operation of the CCTV, and will be able to download selected footage
onto a disk/USB Stick for the Police or authorised officers of the Local Authority without difficulty,
delay or charge.

12

Page 137

Any CCTV breakdown or system failure will be notified to the Police and Local Authority immediately
& remedied as soon as practicable. Repair records / invoices shall be kept on site for at least 12
months and be readily available to be viewed by all authorised persons upon request.
An incident log shall be kept at the premises and retained for a period of 12 months and made
available on request to an authorised officer of Lambeth Council or the Police. It must be completed
within 24 hours of the incident and will record the following:
(a) all crimes reported to the venue
(b) all ejections of patrons
(c) any complaints received
(d) any incidents of disorder
(e) any faults in the CCTV system
(f) any refusal of the sale of alcohol and the name of the member of staff who refused the sale
(g) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.
The deployment of doorstaff on a Friday and Saturday evenings after 7pm, will be on a risk assessed
basis. Only a security provider who has been awarded Approved Contractor Status by the Security
Industry Authority be authorised to deploy door supervisors or manned guard positions.
Off sales of alcohol shall be limited to the outside area and delivery of alcohol ordered as part of a
meal to be delivered to a customer’s home address and ancillary to that meal.
Any person entering the premises who appears to be under the influence of alcohol or drugs shall in
the interests of other members of the public using the premises be requested to leave the premises.
Operate an anti-theft policy, which will include the reporting of theft, safe storage of found items,
storage and disposal procedures for all items of property found or discarded at the premises. Signage
will be on display in prominent places advising customers to safeguard their property.
Public Safety
The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained unobstructed, free of trip
hazards, be immediately available and clearly identified in accordance with the plans provided.
Adequate and appropriate first aid equipment and materials will be kept on site, regularly checked and
kept in an easily accessible place for staff.
The edges of the treads of steps and stairways shall be maintained so as to be conspicuous.
Staff must ensure that all empty glasses and bottles are promptly cleared away from the public areas.

The Prevention of Public Nuisance
Patrons temporarily leaving the premises to smoke shall not be more than 8 and permitted to take
alcohol with them from 22:00 hours on Sunday to Thursday and 23:00 hours on Friday and Saturday.
No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the
premises which gives rise to a nuisance.
Should any queue form of persons waiting to gain entry to the premises, such queue shall be properly
organised and monitored so as to mitigate any impact on the public highway.
No rubbish including bottles will be moved, removed or placed in outside areas between 00:00 hours
and 07:00 hours.

13

Page 138

Patrons shall be requested not to loiter outside the premises and to leave the premises quietly.
Notices to this effect must be prominently displayed at the entrances of the premises.
The highway and public spaces in the vicinity of the premises are kept free of litter from the premises
at all material times to the satisfaction of the Council.
The Protection of Children from Harm
A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only acceptable
forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, such as a driving licence,
passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram.
Signage advertising the aforementioned proof of age scheme shall be prominently displayed
throughout the premises with a particular emphasis on the alcohol display area and servicearea.
That a refusals register is maintained recording when sales of alcohol are refused and the reason
why.
All delivery orders of alcohol shall be to a registered residential or business address. There shall be
no deliveries of alcohol to public/communal areas or open spaces.
Vehicles used for delivery should not be left idle outside the premises to ensure residents in the
locality are not disturbed.
For all orders taken over the phone or via the internet, customers should be informed of Challenge 25
and the requirement to have ID ready for inspection should the need arise before receipt of alcoholic
beverages.
The Premises Licence Holder shall ensure all persons associated with the handling, transportation
and delivery of alcohol shall employ due care and attention at all times to ensure:
a. The delivery vehicle engine is not left running needlessly on or off the premises;
b. There shall be no obstruction of the public highway whilst deliveries are taking place;
c. No persons drivers/couriers shall engage in loud talking/shouting/door slamming or emit loud music
from their vehicle whilst on or off the premises;
d. All glass bottles/vessels, goods and waste to be handled carefully whilst being transported into and
out of the premises and to the clients' address to prevent/minimise noise disturbance to residents
within the vicinity.
Records of all customers shall be stored for a minimum period of 6 months and shall be forwarded to
police or trading standards officers actively investigating allegations of underage purchases from the
business.
The Premises Licence Holder shall arrange staff training in relation to underage sales. This training
shall include how to seek ID in accordance with the Challenge 25 proof of age scheme. All staff training
shall be documented and made available to the Responsible Authorities on request.

14

Page 139

15

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 141

Annex B(i)

Theatro – 69-71 Westow Hill, London, SE19 1TX (21/00150/PRMNEW)
As a responsible authority under section 13(4) of the Licensing Act 2003 as amended under the
Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011, the Licensing Authority have considered your application in
full. The Licensing Authority has concerns in relation to this application and how the premises would
promote the following Licensing Objective:

• Prevention of Public Nuisance
• Prevention of Crime & Disorder
Application
This application seeks to permit:
Live Music, Recorded Music, Performances of Dance, anything of a similar description and the
Sale of Alcohol (consumption on and off the premises)
Mon – Sun 11:00 – 01:00
Late Night Refreshment
Mon – Sun 23:00 – 01:00
Non-Standard Timings
• On any Sunday over a Bank Holiday weekend, until 03:00h the following morning.
•

From the start of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve until the start of permitted hours on New
Year’s Day.

The proposed opening hours for the premises are
Mon – Sun 11:00 – 01:30.
On any Sunday over a Bank Holiday weekend, until 03:30 the following morning.

Classification of Area within the policy
According to the current Licensing Policy, Appendix 7 page 54, the area in which the premises are
located is a District Centre.
District Centres have traditionally provided convenience goods and services for local customers. They
typically range in size from 10,000m2 to 50,000m2 and contain at least one food supermarket or
superstore and non-retail services.
We very much see these as places where the night time economy does have a role, alongside other
daytime shopping and other places of employment. Whilst not as big as our town centres they are
generally well served by public transport and connected in numerous directions.
The key areas of concern for these areas is that whilst there might be very little residential property in
the immediate area, a short walk will lead into highly residential streets and the potential for public
nuisance in the form of noise, litter from late night eateries and the targeting of individuals by criminals
is high.
Proximity to residential accommodation is a general consideration with regard to the prevention of public
nuisance. The Authority will treat each case on its individual merits, however, stricter conditions will
generally be considered on premises licences in areas that have denser levels of residential
accommodation or residential accommodation in close proximity to them. This may include the Authority
considering an earlier terminal hour than that proposed by the applicant. This is regardless of the
designation assigned to the area in which the premises is situated under this policy, i.e. as a Major or
District Town Centre. In such cases and where relevant representations are received, the Licensing
Authority will have regard to the potential for, and the risk of, nuisance occurring to nearby residents,
particularly when considering an application which proposes the conduct of licensable activities after the
hours indicated in Appendix 5. It is important to stress that the terminal hours set out in Appendix 5 are

Page 142

intended as guidance only. The Licensing Authority may recommend or agree an earlier or later terminal
hour where this is considered appropriate.
Classification of Premises within the policy
The applicant has confirmed the premises shall be operated as a restaurant and bar, providing out of
work musical actors who will serve and sing along with a live band and entertain guests.
As the premises will have a mix of food and alcohol, whereby alcohol is available without a food
purchase, the premises are therefore defined as a bar, as per Appendix 6 page 48 of the Licensing
Policy.
A premises licence of this nature is likely to have a potential impact on the licensing objectives, due to:
- Disturbance from departure and dispersal of patrons
- Issues associated with the use of outside space Including beer gardens
- Limited drunkenness
- Limited violence
According to the current Licensing Policy, Appendix 5 page 46, the recommended hours in the policy
for a bar or drinking establishment, in a District Centre is
11:00 – 00:00 on Sunday – Thursday and 11:00 – 01:00 on Friday and Saturday.
Background
This address previously had the benefit of a premises licence, under licence number
19/00068/PRMNEW (Prem2208). However, this lapsed in September 2020. The licence permitted
activities until 00:00 Sun to Thurs and 01:00 Fri and Sat, with Alcohol at lesser hours.
Operational Schedule
Whilst the applicant has provided conditions within the operating schedule, the Licensing Authority
believe there is a vital condition omitted, which would help uphold the licensing objective, prevention of
public nuisance.
It is highlighted in the body of the application that “the lower ground floor has a small adjoining courtyard
which will be a sit-down area for food and drink”. However, the applicant hasn’t proposed any conditions
which would ensure the outside courtyard area would remain a ‘sit down’ area and doesn’t become a
vertical drinking space. Should this area become the latter, there could be a potential to cause
disturbance and noise nuisance to nearby commercial and residential properties.
The Licensing Authority have noted the applicant has proposed the following condition:
•

“Patrons temporarily leaving the premises to smoke shall not be more than 8 and
permitted to take alcohol with them from 22:00 hours on Sunday to Thursday and 23:00
hours on Friday and Saturday.”

However, should this application be granted the authority would seek the following to upload the
objectives in respect of the outside area:
•

“Patrons temporarily leaving the premises to smoke shall be directed to the courtyard
area on the lower ground floor and shall be no more than 8 persons. Patrons shall not be
permitted to take alcoholic drinks with them”

•

“Patrons consuming food and drink in the courtyard area located on the lower ground
floor shall be seated at all times.”

•

“The rear courtyard shall not be used after 22:00 hours on Sunday to Thursday and 23:00
hours on Friday and Saturday.”

It is noted that the applicant has not addressed the number of persons permitted on the premises at any
one time. The authority would also ask the following to be considered if the application is granted:

Page 143

•

“The maximum number of persons permitted on the premises (excluding staff) shall be
no more than :
• Ground Floor - 80 persons
• Lower Ground Floor (external) Courtyard area – 24 persons
• Lower Ground Floor (internal)- 28 persons”

It is further noted that the premises seeking regulated entertainment yet has not proposed any
conditions to address any nuisance that may be caused from any entertainment provided. The authority
would also ask the following to be considered if the application is granted:
•

“A noise limiter must be fitted to the musical amplification system set at a level
determined by and to the satisfaction of an authorised officer of Public Protection, so as
to ensure that no noise nuisance is caused to local residents or businesses. The
operational panel of the noise limiter shall then be secured by key or password to the
satisfaction of officers from Public Protection and access shall only be by persons
authorised by the Premises Licence holder. The limiter shall not be altered without prior
agreement with Public Protection. No alteration or modification to any existing sound
system(s) should be effected without prior knowledge of an authorised Officer of Public
Protection. No additional sound generating equipment shall be used on the premises
without being routed through the sound limiter device. “

•

“All windows and external doors shall be kept closed after (21:00) hours, or at any time
when regulated entertainment takes place, except for the immediate access and egress
of persons. “

The applicant hasn’t provided any reasons why their application should be considered as an exception
to the Licensing Policy, in respect of the hours sought for this premises.
The non-standard timings can be sought under a TEN and thus the authority would ask these to be
refused.
The premises are near residential properties, most notably in Jasper Road. Therefore, the hours
proposed outside of the Licensing Policy, including non-standard timings, are likely to lead to noise
disturbance during un-sociable hours.
.
Miss Bina Patel
Licenisng Manager
22nd June 2021

Page 144

Lambeth Licensing Authority
3rd Floor,
Civic Centre
6 Brixton Hill,
London
SW2 1EG

3rd Floor,
Civic Centre
6 Brixton Hill,
London,
SW2 1EG
Telephone: 0208 649 2456
Email: Licensing-LX@met police.uk
Wednesday 23rd June 2021

Miss Bina Patel
Licensing Manager
Lambeth Borough Council

NEW PREMISES LICENCE APPLICATION – 69-71, WESTOW HILL, SE19 1TX

Dear Miss Patel,

I am a Police Constable employed in the role of Licensing Officer for the Metropolitan Police
Service, Lambeth Borough. I am authorized by a delegation given by the Commissioner to
act on her behalf in all matters pertaining to the Licensing Act 2003.
The Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) objects to an application made by The Music Box
Enterprises Ltd on 27/05/21 for a NEW PREMISES LICENCE APPLICATION.
The MPS does not believe that the application sufficiently demonstrates how the licensing
objectives will be promoted in relation to the following;


Prevention of crime and disorder



The prevention of public nuisance



Public safety

Page 145

The applicant requests the following activities:
Live Music
Monday - Sunday

11:00 - 01:00

On any Sunday over a Bank Holiday weekend, until 03:00h the following morning. From
the start of permitted hours on New Year's Eve until the start of permitted hours on New
Year's Day.

Recorded Music
Monday - Sunday

11:00 - 01:00

On any Sunday over a Bank Holiday weekend, until 03:00h the following morning. From
the start of permitted hours on New Year's Eve until the start of permitted hours on New
Year's Day.

Performances of Dance
Monday - Sunday

11:00 - 01:00

On any Sunday over a Bank Holiday weekend, until 03:00h the following morning. From
the start of permitted hours on New Year's Eve until the start of permitted hours on New
Year's Day.

Entertainment Similar to Music/Dance
Monday - Sunday

11:00 - 01:00

On any Sunday over a Bank Holiday weekend, until 03:00h the following morning. From
the start of permitted hours on New Year's Eve until the start of permitted hours on New
Year's Day.

Late Night Refreshment
Monday - Sunday

23:00 - 01:00

Page 146

On any Sunday over a Bank Holiday weekend, until 03:00h the following morning. From
the start of permitted hours on New Year's Eve until the start of permitted hours on New
Year's Day.

Sale by Retail of Alcohol
Monday - Sunday

11:00 - 01:00

The MPS has concerns about the potential negative impact that another licensed premises
would have on the area of Gypsy Hill, which is situated within an area that has three
separate boroughs neighboring each other with significant night time economy issues.
Police are aware of residential concerns in the area surrounding Anti-Social Behavior (ASB)
and are concerned that an additional licensed premises in the area would have a negative
impact on the local community.
In a twelve month period there has been a total of six reported incidents of violent crime,
nine phone calls to police for incidents of ASB and three reported incidents of misuse of
drugs within the immediate vicinity of where the premises is situated and with many of
these incidents having direct links to the night-time economy. In addition to this, recent
intelligence received by the local safer neighborhood team indicates an increase in misuse
of drugs activities in the area.
The MPS has overall concerns about an additional licensed premises operating in the area
and whilst we are satisfied with the conditions put forward by the applicants agent we
would recommend that if the LSC were minded to grant the license they would give
consideration to the following operating hours and proposed conditions.

Operating hours
Monday - Sunday

11:00 - 23:00

Live Music
Monday - Sunday

11:00 - 23:00

Recorded Music
Monday - Sunday

11:00 - 23:00

Performances of Dance
Monday - Sunday

11:00 - 23:00

Entertainment Similar to Music/Dance
Monday - Sunday

11:00 - 23:00

Page 147

Sale by Retail of Alcohol
Monday - Sunday

11:00 - 23:00

PROPOSED CONDITIONS

1. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to
an authorised officer of the Lambeth Council or the Police. It must be completed
within 24 hours of the incident and will record the following:
a) all crimes reported to the venue
b) all ejections of patrons
c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder
d) any incidents of disorder
e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons
f) any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning equipment
g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol including date, time and name of staff member
h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

2. A record shall be kept detailing all refused sales of alcohol. The record should
include the date and time of the refused sale and the name of the member of
staff who refused the sale. The record shall be available for inspection at the
premises by the police or an authorised officer of Lambeth Council at all times
whilst the premises is open

3. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system. All entry
and exit points must be covered enabling frontal identification of every person
entering in a light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the
premises are open. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31
days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available
immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer of Lambeth Council
4. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the
CCTV system shall be in the premises at all times when the premises is open.
This staff member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer
copies of recent CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when
requested and within a maximum of 24 hours of the initial request.
5. Subject to Data Protection guidance and legislation, the management of the
premises will ensure that key staff are fully trained in the operation of the CCTV,
and will be able to download selected footage onto a disk/USB Stick for the
Police or authorised officers of the Local Authority or UK Border Agency without
difficulty, delay or charge.

Page 148

6. Any CCTV breakdown or system failure will be notified to the Police and Local
Authority immediately & remedied as soon as practicable. Repair records /
invoices shall be kept on site for at least 12 months and be readily available to
be viewed by all authorised persons upon request.
7. Notices shall be prominently displayed within the premises stating that CCTV is
in operation
8. A minimum of 2 SIA licensed door supervisors shall be on duty at the premises
from 19:00 until the premises closes and 30 minutes after the premises closes to
assist with dispersing of patrons from the area. This shall be on Thursday’s,
Friday’s and Saturday’s when the premises is open.
9. All SIA staff must sign a register detailing the information stated below. This
register must be kept on the premises and made available immediately upon the
request of Police or authorised officer of Lambeth Council.
(a) start and end of shift times
(b) SIA badge registered number
(c) Full names
10. There shall be no vertical drinking at the premises.
11. No person shall be allowed to leave the premises whilst in the possession of any
drinking vessel or open glass bottle, whether empty or containing any beverage.
12. The premises shall operate a zero tolerance policy to the supply and use of
drugs.
13. No open vessels or containers containing alcohol shall be allowed off the
premises

14. Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises to smoke
shall be restricted to a designated smoking area at the front of the premises. The
maximum number of patrons permitted within this area shall not exceed 6.
15. Patrons temporarily permitted to leave and re-enter the premises e.g. to smoke,
shall not be permitted to take drinks or with them
16. No drinks shall be permitted outside the front of the premises.
17. Management/staff shall proactively monitor the conduct and behaviour of
patrons on the public highway to ensure no noisy, rowdy or anti-social
behaviour (this includes loud talking/shouting and people congregating in large
groups on pavement obstructing the public highway). Those patrons deemed to

Page 149

be engaging in such behaviour shall be asked to cease this activity and/or
disperse from the premises quietly.
18. The licence holder shall ensure that any queue to enter the premises which
forms outside the premises is orderly and supervised by the Duty Manager so as
to ensure that there is no public nuisance or obstruction to the public highway.
19. Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect
the needs of local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly.

20. All staff members engaged, or to be engaged, in selling alcohol
on the premises shall receive full training pertinent to the
Licensing Act, specifically in regard to age-restricted sales, and
the refusal of sales to persons believed to be under the
influence of alcohol or drugs. This shall take place every 6
months.
21. The provision of licensable activities on the Premises shall at
all times be ancillary to the use of the Premises as a
restaurant.

Yours sincerely,

Dave Watson – PC 1959AS
MPS CENTRAL SOUTH BOCU
Neighbourhood Policing - LICENSING & NIGHT TIME ECONOMY

Page 150
Thomas Dunn
Subject:

FW: The Music Enterprises Ltd 69-71 Westow Hill, Crystal Palace SE19 1TX 21/00150/PRMNEW

From: Linda Charles
Sent: 10 June 2021 11:10
To: Licensing <XDESLICENSE@lambeth.gov.uk>
Subject: The Music Enterprises Ltd 69-71 Westow Hill, Crystal Palace SE19 1TX
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize
the sender and know the content is safe.

Re application for the above.
I live on Farquhar Road and we have more than enough eateries and bars in the Crystal Palace
'triangle'. To have a bar opening till 1-3am in the morning is a nuisance to local residents. The thought of
music playing till that time in the morning would be very detrimental. Even with double glazing, the noise
of shouting and laughter on my street that time of the morning, is very disruptive and extremely
annoying. More so where children are concerned.
We also have to put up with numerous events at Crystal Palace Park which also carries its problems to
local residents. This includes noise and excessive parking on Farquhar Road which makes it impossible for
residents to park on their road. Many a times this leads to arguments and horn blowing on our street.
I object to this application.
Linda Charles

1

Page 151
Thomas Dunn
Subject:

FW: Objection - Late Night Premises Licence Application for 69-71 Westow Hill, SE19 (by The
Music Box Enterprises Ltd)

From: Michelle Jarman
Sent: 10 June 2021 17:38
To: Licensing <XDESLICENSE@lambeth.gov.uk>
Subject: Objection - Late Night Premises Licence Application for 69-71 Westow Hill, SE19 (by The Music Box
Enterprises Ltd)
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize
the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Sir/Madam,
I live in Farquhar Road, very near the Crystal Palace triangle. The property I live in has bedrooms at street
level and a garden on Jasper Road, most of the buildings in this part of the street are similar (lots of flats in
mostly period buildings set close to the street). I have lived here many years and am used to a degree of
noise as it's not far from the triangle restaurants although thankfully most do not open late. The most local
pub, Westow House, closes at 11pm most weekdays, 12pm Fridays and Saturdays, 10.30pm Sundays. I
object to the proposed late licence on the grounds of potential increase in crime, public safety issues and
particularly public nuisance:






Noise disturbance both during normal hours and particularly at anti-social hours (every day and
even more on bank holidays)
Safety and crime - sometimes a lack of prompt local policing when incidents occur, which they are
likely to sometimes, with people drinking long hours and very late
Increase in noise/disturbance/congestion from drop off/pick up/parking issues (NB No overnight
trains now, limited night buses)
Increase in litter, rats etc - longer hours with alcohol and food tends to mean more mess

I feel the proposed opening hours (until 1.30am Mon - Sun, until 3.30am bank holiday Sundays, through
the night on NYE) do not take into account the fact that immediately around the triangle is a densely
populated residential area. This is not a central London area that people travel to or move to for it's
club/music scene, it's a relatively quiet residential area that most people value for the large park, period
properties, local restaurants, small local shops and sense of community. The demographic is mixed, it
includes lots of families with young kids some of which will be living very nearby. Sometimes there is extra
noise, eg in the summer when events are on at the park or bonfire week fireworks - but those are not
daily/frequent events, the hours are not as late as this and some money goes to the running of the park.
When things do kick off (which tends to happen at night when alcohol is involved) it sometimes seems to
take a very long time before the police arrive - we have long had an issue with policing here, not just as
policing is generally stretched but also because Crystal Palace's location on the boundary of so many
boroughs causes issues and confusion.
If the restaurant/live music venue became popular there would be noise not just from the "amplified
music" and singing staff but from the customers themselves - be it noise from within the premises/on the
1

Page 152
street/courtyard behind/from people walking or stumbling down the nearest streets. Where I live we'd be
affected both front and back. The restaurant building would need serious sound proofing for amplified
music to not cause an issue and given Covid reasons to leave windows open - I'm concerned about the
amplified music and singalongs.
Even without the late night drinking aspect or the noise - in terms of parking, congestion etc - the site is
large but has no parking and is close to the traffic lights on the triangle. The triangle streets (our high
street) are narrow, it's rare that you can stop on the street and it's a one-way system - so for eg cab drop
offs, pick ups, deliveries, delivery drivers/scooters in relation to the takeaway offering proposed - all these
things impact on the local residential streets. Customers would often have to use cabs late at night as are
our night buses are limited and the overnight trains have been stopped, in reality this means people who
have been drinking congregating outside our homes waiting for their Ubers.
There is already a lot of litter and we don't have especially frequent street cleaning, I have seen more rats
in the last year than in the past several combined.
Another aspect is the notification re the licence. It's a pale blue A4 notice on the current grey/green
woodwork but the eye is drawn to notices in the windows/glazing. Last week I went to look at the white
notice in the window and didn't see the licence application - I only know now because someone very
nearby told me. The site has 3 sides on the street and yet only one notice went up - this may be the
minimum requirement but it's not a good way to inform locals.
For all of the above reasons, I object. A restaurant would be welcome but I do not think the daily
live/amplified music and long late opening hours are reasonable or what the area needs.
I would appreciate it if you could let me know when you have received/logged my objection and keep me
informed regarding the licence status. Many thanks.
Yours faithfully,

Michelle Jarman
Farquhar Road, SE19

2

Page 153
Thomas Dunn
Subject:

Objection to licence application shown in email below

-----Original Message----From: Rosemary Porter
Sent: 05 June 2021 20:48
To: Licensing <XDESLICENSE@lambeth.gov.uk>
Cc: Cllr Matthew Bennett <MPBennett@lambeth.gov.uk>; Cllr Jennifer Brathwaite <JBrathwaite@lambeth.gov.uk>
Subject: Objection to licence application shown in email below
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

To Lambeth licensing,
I wish to voice my strong objections to the application in the email below.
* This is a residential area with a mix of family units, young children and elderly people.
The late night noise proposed from this venue would totally disrupt everyone’s sleep.
How are children supposed to get up fresh to go to school
The same with people who get up early for work.
Elderly people should not be expected to tolerate the noise and behaviour that will
ensue.
*. The anti social behaviour will worsen because of the length of time patrons are
allowed to consume alcohol every single night!
The Police have enough to do without being called out to deal with these incidents.
*. Parking in this area is already an issue and causes problems with cars parked over
driveways and in private bays.
Obviously this will get worse.
*. This venue has an outside patio, this means the noise from the music and patrons
will carry further.
*. It is totally reprehensible that this application should even be considered.
Why encourage people to drink till the early hours every single night?
*. I urge you to give a thought to the good people of Crystal Palace who love and care
for this area and do not want to see it deteriorate .
Thank you
Kind regards
Rosemary Porter
Jasper Rd
London SE19

1

Page 154
Thomas Dunn
Subject:
Attachments:

FW: Objection to Licencing/Planning application Music Box , Westow Hill, Crystal Palace
MuscBox planning aplication .JPG

From: Sally Stapleford
Sent: 11 June 2021 09:30
To: Thomas Dunn <TDunn@lambeth.gov.uk>
Cc: Rosemary Porter
Subject: FW: Objection to Licencing/Planning application Music Box , Westow Hill, Crystal Palace
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize
the sender and know the content is safe.
Dear Mr. Dunn
Ms. Porter kindly gave me your contact details, hence I have sent you my objection re the attachment.
I did send my objection below of June 7th to two other persons but as yet have had no confirmation of receipt.
Therefore I would appreciate - if possible - your confirmation of receipt?
Thank you.
Kind Regards

Sally A Stapleford O.B.E
From:
Sent: 7 June 2021 19:28
To: licensing-LX@met.police.uk
Subject: Objection to Licencing/Planning application Music Box , Westow Hill, Crystal Palace

Dear Licencing Unit
I am writing to you to object to the Planning Application attached for the following reasons:
 Westow Hill and the roads leading off are dense residential areas.
 The venue is applying to open for live music until 1am Monday – Sunday (last orders 1 am) and 3 am
(last orders 3am) over Bank holidays.
 These opening hours will result in residents being disturbed by loud music, noise from patrons
etc. while trying to relax/sleep and enjoy their homes.

No doubt increased anti-social behaviour of all kinds will put blight on the lives of the local residents.
 There is insufficient parking on the adjacent streets and no doubt resident’s parking spaces will be used
to accommodate the Music Box customers.
 We have endured in the past late night openings of the Cambridge Pub and D’jarnes night club and
after years of the locals complaining about these venues - stabbing/fighting/ drugs - finally helped to close
the latter venue.
 Plus we have no Police Station and very few Police -if any - patrol the streets of Crystal Palace at any
time and never throughout the night so residents will not feel safe if violence/anti – social behaviour occurs
through drunks spilling out from this venue in the early and not so early hours of the mornings.
Many residents of this area strongly believe that it would be very ill advised and potentially dangerous to grant
permission for this application.
1

Page 155
Kind Regards
Sally A Stapleford O.B.E

2

Page 156

Page 157

Page 158
Thomas Dunn
Subject:

Objection to Licence application - 69 Westow Hill, Norwood, London SE19 1TX

From: Carl Stephenson
Sent: 21 June 2021 11:27
To: Licensing <XDESLICENSE@lambeth.gov.uk>
Subject: Objection to Licence application - 69 Westow Hill, Norwood, London SE19 1TX
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize
the sender and know the content is safe.

To who it may concern,
I'm writing following the notification on the above address on the licencing and music hours that have
been applied for.
There were so many music complaints for the previous business, and the proposed plans here would make
it even worse. Not only is having a late music licence going to cause problems, and complaints from the
nearby residents but the outdoor area this building has at the back gets so noisy with people shouting and
screaming that echo's between, and around the buildings to the rear.
There has been so much damage to the cars on Jasper Road previously. Fights with police being called to
disperse let alone the rubbish, joints, broken bottles, small silver canisters just littered around, and people
urinating outside.
All of the above is before you look at the hours for live music. When the Westow has music of an evening,
this stops at 22:00, and this is only on Friday's, and Saturdays at the most. Having this Monday-Sunday
until 1am, and 3am on bank holidays is unacceptable.

Kind Regards,
Carl Stephenson

Jasper Road
SE19

1

Page 159
Thomas Dunn
Subject:

Late Night Premises Licence Application for 69-71 Westow Hill, SE19 (by The Music Box
Enterprises Ltd) - OBJECTION

-----Original Message----From: Claudia Jarman
Sent: 21 June 2021 14:50
To: Licensing <XDESLICENSE@lambeth.gov.uk>
Subject: Late Night Premises Licence Application for 69-71 Westow Hill, SE19 (by The Music Box Enterprises Ltd) OBJECTION
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Sir or Madam
I am writing to object to the Late Night Licence application for 69-71 Weston Hill, SE19. I am a leaseholder of a flat
in Farquhar road
, and the rear of my property and garden face onto Jasper road, which is very close to 69-71
Weston Hill.
Having owned the property for over 20 years, I know from past experience that late night drinking on the triangle
often leads to noise disturbance and very antisocial behaviour. Some years ago I had to call the police after a two
groups of people left a local pub/bar and started a fight in Jasper Road in the early hours of the morning. It led to a
woman being assaulted (I witnessed this from my rear windows after being woken by the noise) and some of the
group breaking down part of my bottom fence and into my garden, then threatening me through the windows with
a fence post (I had shouted at them to to let the woman go). I called the police while the men were banging on my
windows but confusion due to Crystal Palace being on the boundary of 4 boroughs led to a delay of over 24 hours
before the police actually attended. I received an apology from the police, but needless to say it was a very scary
experience and has left me lacking in any confidence that the police would attend promptly should anything happen
again.
This concern is in addition to the litter, people urinating in the street, and regular high levels of noise disturbance
that result in residents not being able to sleep. Farquhar road and Jasper roads are residential roads and I feel the
hours that the licence has applied for would lead to residents being impacted unfairly - in particular 1.30am on week
nights seems unreasonable and certainly doesn’t take into consideration it’s a residential area.
Please would you acknowledge receipt of this objection.
Yours faithfully
Claudia Jarman

Sent from my iPad

1

Page 160
Thomas Dunn
Subject:

Objection to New Premises Licence Ref: DSFX1622023456467

On Thu, Jun 17, 2021 at 5:08 PM Edward Gramolt

wrote:

Dear Lambeth Licencing Department,
I hope you are keeping well in the current times.
I would like to make a formal objection to the following proposed Licence:
Premises Address: 69-71 WESTOW HILL, LONDON, LAMBETH, SE19 1TX
Ref: DSFX1622023456467
The proposal will have a negative impact on the local area and the local residents, businesses and other
stakeholders for various reasons:
1) Live music every night until 1am is wholly unacceptable and will be a cause of constant disruption, lost
sleep and stress inducing illness.
2) Live music on Bank holidays until 3am is even worse.
3) Added to this the noise of patrons leaving the venue in the early hours after drinking until last order
taken at 1am/3am (on bank holidays) will again be a source of disruption, anti-social behaviour and leads
to residents who live in the area being disturbed and not feeling safe.
4) Anti-social behaviour will cause more strain on the already struggling police force and blue flashing
lights and sirens will not be a welcome, post live music event encore. It's frankly madness.
5) Car Parking demand will increase in an already busy street making accessibility of residential properties
to not only the able-bodied, but moreover, the less able, to reach their residential destination - whether
residing here or visiting.
6) An increase in drunken people late at night will lead to more noise and litter down the streets which are
used to access the location.
7) The plan of external smoking is an incompetant attempt at justifying their licence, given it will cause
greater negative impact on the local area through noise, cigarette smoke and a cluttered, less accessible
highstreet / walkway.
8) The overall noise and antisocial nature of this proposal is entirely objectionable and one that I request be
registered as denied.
For reference, the car radio noise from cars waiting at the Junction of Jasper Road onto Westow Hill is
already an annoyance enough, so adding a permanent installation alongside that will both increase the
noise and create some fairly disturbing bootleg mixes as both amplified sounds converge.
Thank you for your time and please let me know if you have any question or if I am required to make any
further statements
Kind regards
Ed Gramolt
1

Page 161
Resident at:

Jasper Road, SE19

2

Page 162
Thomas Dunn
Subject:

Helen Hayes MP (Case Ref: ZA50522)

From: Helen Hayes MP <helen.hayes.mp@parliament.uk>
Sent: 21 June 2021 23:18
To: Licensing <XDESLICENSE@lambeth.gov.uk>; Cllr Fred Cowell <FCowell@lambeth.gov.uk>
Subject: Helen Hayes MP (Case Ref: ZA50522)
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize
the sender and know the content is safe.
Our Ref: ZA50522
21 June 2021
Dear Cllr Cowell,
I have recently been contacted by several of my constituents about the application for a new premises licence for 69
– 71 Westow Hill, application number 21/00150/PRMNEW.
My constituents believe that this application, as it currently stands would result in adverse impacts on the amenity of
local residents if it were to be granted. Their concerns are:





The application is for both live and applified music every day from 11am until 1am with live music until 3am on
the Sundays of bank holiday weekends. This would leave local residents no respite from any noise
disturbance resulting from music being played at the venue.
They are concerned about disruption caused by patrons leaving the venue in the early hours after drinking
until last orders, and leaving premises where live or amplified music has been played until 1am, which can
cause voices to be raised on leaving a premises
They are concerned that such a late license seven days a week presents a risk of Increased antisocial
behaviour
They are concerned about the risk of increased parking pressure in the area since the premises would be
open long after the rail and Overground (which only operates a 24 hour service at weekends) services have
stopped.

I share my constituents’ concerns that the hours and lateness of this application are excessive for a premises which
sits in close proximity to many homes. I would therefore be grateful if you could ensure that my constituents’
concerns are taken full account of by the Licensing Committee, and steps taken to reduce the days and hours of any
license granted to address the concerns above and to provide respite for neighbouring residents.
I look forward to hearing from you.
Yours sincerely,
Helen
Helen Hayes MP
Member of Parliament for Dulwich and West Norwood
UK Parliament Disclaimer: This e-mail is confidential to the intended recipient. If you have received it in error, please
notify the sender and delete it from your system. Any unauthorised use, disclosure, or copying is not permitted. This
e-mail has been checked for viruses, but no liability is accepted for any damage caused by any virus transmitted by
this email.

1

Page 163

Windrush 2021 - I Am Here | Lambeth Council

2

Page 164
Thomas Dunn
Subject:

Objection: Licensing - The Music Box Enterprise (SE19 1TX)

From: jsstefanov .
Sent: 21 June 2021 10:28
To: Licensing <XDESLICENSE@lambeth.gov.uk>
Subject: Objection: Licensing - The Music Box Enterprise (SE19 1TX)
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize
the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Sir/Madam,
My name is Jordan Stefanov, and I am a resident in Lambeth (residing in
Jasper Road, London SE19
). I
am contacting you with regards to a planning application for licensing for the Music Box venue in the premises that
were the former Exhibition Rooms at 69 Westow Hill, London SE19 1TX.
I would like to formally object to this application as it would be detrimental for all residents in the area should the
application be granted.
 The venue backs to a number of residential buildings (including our own); when the Exhibition Rooms
was open we were already subjected to higher noise levels, particularly on the weekends, which was quite
disruptive.
 Under the current application, live music every night until 1am will be utterly disturbing.
 Live music every bank holiday until 3 am will be even more disturbing!
 Antisocial behaviour will cause even more problems for people in the area and for our overstretched
police force.
 We will undoubtedly see more litter (which is an issue at the moment anyway) and less car parking.
All of this will make living in the area extremely uncomfortable and we therefore would like to strongly object to this
application.
Thank you for your consideration,
Jordan Stefanov
-Jordan Stefanov Stefanov
Email:
LinkedIn:

| Phone:

1

Page 165
Thomas Dunn
From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Sarah G Williams on behalf of Licensing
22 June 2021 17:33
Thomas Dunn
FW: Urgent: Objection to Licence application - 69 Westow Hill, Norwood, London SE19 1TX

From: Monika Boruch
Sent: 21 June 2021 12:11
To: Licensing <XDESLICENSE@lambeth.gov.uk>
Subject: Urgent: Objection to Licence application - 69 Westow Hill, Norwood, London SE19 1TX
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize
the sender and know the content is safe.

To whom it may concern,
I'm writing following the notification that a new business have recently applied for the licensing
and music hours at the address above. The hours for live music being Monday-Sunday until 1am,
and 3am on bank holidays.
This address has been occupied in the past by a different business and there were many music
complaints then-the proposed plans here would make it even worse. Not only is having a late
music licence going to cause problems, and complaints from the nearby residents but the outdoor
area this building has at the back that gets really noisy with people shouting and screaming with
the echo's between, and around the buildings to the rear.
Just to name a few, the previous disturbances included fights started by intoxicated crowds living
the venue with police being called to disperse, rubbish, marijuana joints, broken bottles, and
people urinating outside residential buildings. This makes the surrounding areas feel quiet unsafe
with drunk people exposing themselves on the street when you trying to get home or pop to the
shop. There has also been damage to the cars on Jasper Road previously.
All of the above is before even mentioning the hours for live music. When the Westow pub has
music of an evening, this stops at 22:00 at the most and that’s only on Friday's, and Saturdays
however it can still be quiet loud and disturbing.
Having loud music Monday-Sunday until 1am, and 3am on bank holidays is simple unacceptable
and will cause great noise disturbance to the local residents, not to mention fights, shouting and
litter that we experienced previously.

Kind regards,
Monika Boruch
Jasper road
1

Page 166
SE19

London

2

Page 167
Thomas Dunn
Subject:

66-71 Westow Hill London SE19 ITX

-----Original Message----From: Susan Tring
Sent: 23 June 2021 15:42
To: Licensing <XDESLICENSE@lambeth.gov.uk>
Subject: 66-71 Westow Hill London SE19 ITX
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

To whom it may concern,
I would like to object to a late licence being granted to the establishment at the above address.
1. Crystal Palace currently has a large number of drinking establishments and another would not help ensure the
mix of uses necessary for community cohesion and vibrancy.
2. Living in
on Jasper Road we are already disturbed by the noise made from patrons of the
Cocktail Embassy as the disperse. They continue to party in Jasper Road. Playing music in their cars and drinking and
partying on the street. This is a residential area and many residents have babies and young children. They are woken
and upset by the noise. The police have expressed concerns over egress and dispersal at this address in the past.
3. There is a history of disorder in or outside this address. There has been violence outside this venue and alleged
sex assault. This would suggest that in order to prevent crime and disorder the licence should be with held or at
least limited to normal licensing hours.
4. There is a history of noise complaints associated with this address. This would suggest there could be further
public nuisance.
5. Incidents outside this address have happened in the early hours of the morning. Eg. A violent fight at 4.40am this
is further evidence that there is an issue with dispersal and public safety and crime and disorder concerns.
Please consider the impact on the local community and public safety when considering this licence.
Yours faithfully
S. Tring
Sent from my iPhone

1

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 169

Annex B(ii)

Thomas Dunn
From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

donotreply@lambeth.gov.uk
18 June 2021 13:28
Thomas Dunn
Comments for Licensing Application 21/00150/PRMNEW

Licensing Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is provided below.
Comments were submitted at 1:27 PM on 18 Jun 2021 from Mr Arron Curtis.

Application Summary
Address:

69-71 Westow Hill London SE19 1TX

Proposal:

Premises Licence (new application)

Case Officer: Mr Thomas Dunn
Click for further information

Customer Details
Name:

Mr Arron Curtis

Email:
Address:

Hyacinth House, LONDON SE26

Comments Details
Commenter
Type:

Local Interest Groups

Stance:

Customer made comments in support of the Licensing
Application

Reasons for
comment:

- Supporting application

Comments:

1:27 PM on 18 Jun 2021 Dear Lambeth.
As a local resident, I wholeheartedly support this
application, this is exactly what the local area needs.
More investment in otherwise empty hospitality venues.
The impact that covid has had on the hospitality and
creative sectors is plain to see. This will be a business
that will employ locally and add value to the
community.
My understanding is that this will be a business of high
standard with experienced operators. The live music
element is much welcomed too, not another DJ led latenight offering.
The hours of operations applied for are in line with
other venues in the same zone/postcode.
Surely now is the time to support local enterprises not
constrict them.
The decision should be made in favour of the
1

Page 170
application as there are many measures in place to
revoke licenses if operators are not meeting the
standards required.
Yours Faithfully.

2

Page 171
Thomas Dunn
From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

donotreply@lambeth.gov.uk
18 June 2021 11:49
Thomas Dunn
Comments for Licensing Application 21/00150/PRMNEW

Licensing Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is provided below.
Comments were submitted at 11:48 AM on 18 Jun 2021 from Miss Kathryn Eichholz.

Application Summary
Address:

69-71 Westow Hill London SE19 1TX

Proposal:

Premises Licence (new application)

Case Officer: Mr Thomas Dunn
Click for further information

Customer Details
Name:

Miss Kathryn Eichholz

Email:
Address:

Beechwoods Court,
London SE19

Crystal Palace Parade,

Comments Details
Commenter
Type:

Neighbour/Public

Stance:

Customer made comments in support of the Licensing
Application

Reasons for
comment:

- Supporting application

Comments:

11:48 AM on 18 Jun 2021 I am fully in support of this
application as a local resident of Crystal Palace. This
building location has been empty for some time and
having a new, locally owned business will reinvigorate
the space and provide significant benefit to the area. I
look forward to having a venue providing food and live
entertainment and can imagine this being a draw for
both locals and surrounding areas as it sounds like it will
offer an experience that does not currently exist in
Crystal Palace. This will be a great benefit to the cultural
and economic wellbeing of the area.

1

Page 172
Thomas Dunn
From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

donotreply@lambeth.gov.uk
19 June 2021 18:34
Thomas Dunn
Comments for Licensing Application 21/00150/PRMNEW

Licensing Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is provided below.
Comments were submitted at 6:33 PM on 19 Jun 2021 from Ms Marianne Johnson.

Application Summary
Address:

69-71 Westow Hill London SE19 1TX

Proposal:

Premises Licence (new application)

Case Officer: Mr Thomas Dunn
Click for further information

Customer Details
Name:

Ms Marianne Johnson

Email:
Address:

Church Road, London SE19

Comments Details
Commenter
Type:

Neighbour/Public

Stance:

Customer made comments in support of the Licensing
Application

Reasons for
comment:

- Supporting application

Comments:

6:33 PM on 19 Jun 2021 To whom it may concern,
I have been living near the Triangle for several years
now and have seen many establishments open and
close, but none have stood out. This application seems
like a refreshing and new venture which I feel will bring
about a positive vibe to the area. It does not seem like
your every day restaurant! It's nice to see something
new and creative being brought to Crystal Palace and I
think this will help bring the arts alive again in the area,
as well as create new job opportunities. The location
seems perfect and a good use of a space that has been
empty for a long time. There are several pubs on the
Triangle that offer live music, so I feel that the opening
of a restaurant (which is a more contained environment)
that will have live performances should not cause any
additional noise and/or nuisance disruptions.
Kind regards,
Marianne Johnson

1

Page 173
Thomas Dunn
From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

donotreply@lambeth.gov.uk
21 June 2021 20:56
Thomas Dunn
Comments for Licensing Application 21/00150/PRMNEW

Licensing Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is provided below.
Comments were submitted at 8:55 PM on 21 Jun 2021 from Mr Mike Harris.

Application Summary
Address:

69-71 Westow Hill London SE19 1TX

Proposal:

Premises Licence (new application)

Case Officer: Mr Thomas Dunn
Click for further information

Customer Details
Name:

Mr Mike Harris

Email:
Address:

Church Road, CRYSTAL PALACE, London SE19

Comments Details
Commenter
Type:

Neighbour/Public

Stance:

Customer made comments in support of the Licensing
Application

Reasons for
comment:

- Supporting application

Comments:

8:55 PM on 21 Jun 2021 As a local resident I fully
support this application.
It is extremely encouraging to hear about new venues
looking to open on the Crystal Palace triangle especially
during these challenging times. Covid has caused many
local businesses to struggle and several to close over the
past year so new ventures should be encouraged in
order to maintain the vibrancy and economic prosperity
of this important local economy.
Given the increasing number of people working from
home and most likely into the future it is vital that good
quality restaurant and entertainment venues spring up to
support this increased demand. It also seems so much
more sustainable for people to be able to enjoy high
quality late night entertainment local to where they live
rather always needing to travel into Zone 1 to find
suitable venues.
Additionally this venue will doubtless provide a wide
range of much needed employment for local residents.
1

Page 174
The proposed hours of opening are in line with other
similar venues in the area and seem appropriate for the
location and use that is being proposed.
At this very difficult time for society and the economy we
should be supporting independent businesses that are
investing in local areas and bringing something exciting
and new to cheer us all up.

2

Page 175
Thomas Dunn
From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

donotreply@lambeth.gov.uk
18 June 2021 11:45
Thomas Dunn
Comments for Licensing Application 21/00150/PRMNEW

Licensing Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is provided below.
Comments were submitted at 11:44 AM on 18 Jun 2021 from Ms Morgane Johnson.

Application Summary
Address:

69-71 Westow Hill London SE19 1TX

Proposal:

Premises Licence (new application)

Case Officer: Mr Thomas Dunn
Click for further information

Customer Details
Name:

Ms Morgane Johnson

Email:
Address:

Church Road, London SE19

Comments Details
Commenter
Type:

Neighbour/Public

Stance:

Customer made comments in support of the Licensing
Application

Reasons for
comment:

- Supporting application

Comments:

11:44 AM on 18 Jun 2021 To whom it may concern,
I am a local resident and writing to support the
application of the new restaurant venue that will be
opening on Westow Hill. I understand that there will be
live music theatre which is a very welcome addition and
change for the Triangle! This will add much needed
variety to the area and provide new employment
opportunities, which are also greatly needed following
the hit the arts have taken during the last year. With so
many talented artists losing their jobs, this is a great
opportunity to create jobs in this sector.
In addition, it's very positive to see that in such hard
times for the high street, a business filling up a unit
that's been empty for such a long time.
It's equally encouraging that Crystal Palace has been
chosen for this new venture, which really shows that the
area is open to something new, and will help bring more
footfall to surrounding businesses.
I'm looking forward to the opening, and excited to see
1

Page 176
the positive influence the new business will have on the
area.
Best wishes,
Morgane

2

Page 177
Conditions

Annex C

Conditions Proposed by the Applicant:
1. Locations of fire safety and other safety equipment subject to change in accordance with the
requirements of the responsible authorities or following a risk assessment.
2. Any detail shown on the plan that is not required by the licensing plans regulations is
indicative only and subject to change at any time.
3. All staff members engaged, or to be engaged, in selling alcohol on the premises shall receive
full training pertinent to the Licensing Act, specifically in regard to age-restricted sales, and
the refusal of sales to persons believed to be under the influence of alcohol or drugs. This
shall take place every 12 months.
4. All such training is to be fully documented and signed by not only the employee but the
person delivering the training. Training records shall be kept at the premises and made
available upon request to either Police Officers or an authorised officer of Lambeth Council.
5. Waiter or waitress service will be available throughout.
6. Customers shall not be allowed to bring their own alcohol for consumption on the premises.
7. A direct telephone number (mobile to be held by duty manager) will be provided to
neighbouring premises to be used in the event of a complaint of noise nuisance.
8. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system. All entry and exit
points must be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in a light
condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises are open. All
recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping.
Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or
authorised officer of Lambeth Council.
9. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system
shall be in the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff member must be
able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent CCTV images or data
with the absolute minimum of delay when requested and within a maximum of 24 hours of
the initial request.
10. Subject to Data Protection guidance and legislation, the management of the premises will
ensure that key staff are fully trained in the operation of the CCTV, and will be able to
download selected footage onto a disk/USB Stick for the Police or authorised officers of the
Local Authority without difficulty, delay or charge.
11. Any CCTV breakdown or system failure will be notified to the Police and Local Authority
immediately & remedied as soon as practicable. Repair records / invoices shall be kept on
site for at least 12 months and be readily available to be viewed by all authorised persons
upon request.
12. An incident log shall be kept at the premises and retained for a period of 12 months and
made available on request to an authorised officer of Lambeth Council or the Police. It must
be completed within 24 hours of the incident and will record the following:
(a) all crimes reported to the venue
(b) all ejections of patrons

Page 178
Conditions

Annex C
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)

any complaints received
any incidents of disorder
any faults in the CCTV system
any refusal of the sale of alcohol and the name of the member of staff who refused
the sale
(g) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.
13. The deployment of doorstaff on a Friday and Saturday evenings after 7pm, will be on a risk
assessed basis. Only a security provider who has been awarded Approved Contractor Status
by the Security Industry Authority be authorised to deploy door supervisors or manned
guard positions.
14. Off sales of alcohol shall be limited to the outside area and delivery of alcohol ordered as
part of a meal to be delivered to a customer’s home address and ancillary to that meal.
15. Any person entering the premises who appears to be under the influence of alcohol or drugs
shall in the interests of other members of the public using the premises be requested to
leave the premises.
16. Operate an anti-theft policy, which will include the reporting of theft, safe storage of found
items, storage and disposal procedures for all items of property found or discarded at the
premises. Signage will be on display in prominent places advising customers to safeguard
their property.
17. The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained unobstructed, free of
trip hazards, be immediately available and clearly identified in accordance with the plans
provided.
18. Adequate and appropriate first aid equipment and materials will be kept on site, regularly
checked and kept in an easily accessible place for staff.
19. The edges of the treads of steps and stairways shall be maintained so as to be conspicuous.
20. Staff must ensure that all empty glasses and bottles are promptly cleared away from the
public areas.
21. Patrons temporarily leaving the premises to smoke shall not be more than 8 and permitted
to take alcohol with them from 22:00 hours on Sunday to Thursday and 23:00 hours on
Friday and Saturday.
22. No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the
structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance.
23. Should any queue form of persons waiting to gain entry to the premises, such queue shall be
properly organised and monitored so as to mitigate any impact on the public highway.
24. No rubbish including bottles will be moved, removed or placed in outside areas between
00:00 hours and 07:00 hours.

Page 179
Conditions

Annex C

25. Patrons shall be requested not to loiter outside the premises and to leave the premises
quietly. Notices to this effect must be prominently displayed at the entrances of the
premises.
26. The highway and public spaces in the vicinity of the premises are kept free of litter from the
premises at all material times to the satisfaction of the Council.
27. A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only
acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, such as a
driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram.
28. Signage advertising the aforementioned proof of age scheme shall be prominently displayed
throughout the premises with a particular emphasis on the alcohol display area and service
area.
29. That a refusals register is maintained recording when sales of alcohol are refused and the
reason why.
30. All delivery orders of alcohol shall be to a registered residential or business address. There
shall be no deliveries of alcohol to public/communal areas or open spaces.
31. Vehicles used for delivery should not be left idle outside the premises to ensure residents in
the locality are not disturbed.
32. For all orders taken over the phone or via the internet, customers should be informed of
Challenge 25 and the requirement to have ID ready for inspection should the need arise
before receipt of alcoholic beverages.
33. The Premises Licence Holder shall ensure all persons associated with the handling,
transportation and delivery of alcohol shall employ due care and attention at all times to
ensure:
a. The delivery vehicle engine is not left running needlessly on or off the
premises;
b. There shall be no obstruction of the public highway whilst deliveries are
taking place;
c. No persons drivers/couriers shall engage in loud talking/shouting/door
slamming or emit loud music from their vehicle whilst on or off the
premises;
d. All glass bottles/vessels, goods and waste to be handled carefully whilst
being transported into and out of the premises and to the clients' address to
prevent/minimise noise disturbance to residents within the vicinity.
34. Records of all customers shall be stored for a minimum period of 6 months and shall be
forwarded to police or trading standards officers actively investigating allegations of
underage purchases from the business.
35. The Premises Licence Holder shall arrange staff training in relation to underage sales. This
training shall include how to seek ID in accordance with the Challenge 25 proof of age
scheme. All staff training shall be documented and made available to the Responsible
Authorities on request.

Page 180
Conditions

Annex C

Conditions proposed by the Licensing Authority:
Condition 21 above to be amended to:


Patrons temporarily leaving the premises to smoke shall be directed to the courtyard area
on the lower ground floor and shall be no more than 8 persons. Patrons shall not be
permitted to take alcoholic drinks with them.



Patrons consuming food and drink in the courtyard area located on the lower ground floor
shall be seated at all times.



The rear courtyard shall not be used after 22:00 hours on Sunday to Thursday and 23:00
hours on Friday and Saturday.

36. The maximum number of persons permitted on the premises (excluding staff) shall be no
more than :
• Ground Floor - 80 persons
• Lower Ground Floor (external) Courtyard area – 24 persons
• Lower Ground Floor (internal)- 28 persons”
37. A noise limiter must be fitted to the musical amplification system set at a level determined
by and to the satisfaction of an authorised officer of Public Protection, so as to ensure that
no noise nuisance is caused to local residents or businesses. The operational panel of the
noise limiter shall then be secured by key or password to the satisfaction of officers from
Public Protection and access shall only be by persons authorised by the Premises Licence
holder. The limiter shall not be altered without prior agreement with Public Protection. No
alteration or modification to any existing sound system(s) should be effected without prior
knowledge of an authorised Officer of Public Protection. No additional sound generating
equipment shall be used on the premises without being routed through the sound limiter
device.
38. All windows and external doors shall be kept closed after (21:00) hours, or at any time when
regulated entertainment takes place, except for the immediate access and egress of
persons.

Conditions proposed by the Police:
Condition 3 above to be amended to:
All staff members engaged, or to be engaged, in selling alcohol on the premises shall receive
full training pertinent to the Licensing Act, specifically in regard to age-restricted sales, and
the refusal of sales to persons believed to be under the influence of alcohol or drugs. This
shall take place every 6 months.
Condition 12 above to be amended to:

Page 181
Conditions

Annex C

An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an
authorised officer of the Lambeth Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24
hours of the incident and will record the following:
a) all crimes reported to the venue
b) all ejections of patrons
c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder
d) any incidents of disorder
e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons
f) any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning equipment
g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol including date, time and name of staff member
h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.
Condition 13 above to be amended to:
A minimum of 2 SIA licensed door supervisors shall be on duty at the premises from 19:00
until the premises closes and 30 minutes after the premises closes to assist with dispersing
of patrons from the area. This shall be on Thursday’s, Friday’s and Saturday’s when the
premises is open.
Condition 21 above to be amended to:


Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises to smoke shall
be restricted to a designated smoking area at the front of the premises. The maximum
number of patrons permitted within this area shall not exceed 6.



Patrons temporarily permitted to leave and re-enter the premises e.g. to smoke, shall
not be permitted to take drinks or with them

Condition 23 above to be amended to:
The licence holder shall ensure that any queue to enter the premises which forms outside
the premises is orderly and supervised by the Duty Manager so as to ensure that there is no
public nuisance or obstruction to the public highway.

39. A record shall be kept detailing all refused sales of alcohol. The record should include the
date and time of the refused sale and the name of the member of staff who refused the sale.
The record shall be available for inspection at the premises by the police or an authorised
officer of Lambeth Council at all times whilst the premises is open
40. Notices shall be prominently displayed within the premises stating that CCTV is in operation
41. All SIA staff must sign a register detailing the information stated below. This register must be
kept on the premises and made available immediately upon the request of Police or
authorised officer of Lambeth Council.
(a) start and end of shift times
(b) SIA badge registered number
(c) Full names

Page 182
Conditions

Annex C

42. There shall be no vertical drinking at the premises.
43. No person shall be allowed to leave the premises whilst in the possession of any drinking
vessel or open glass bottle, whether empty or containing any beverage.
44. The premises shall operate a zero tolerance policy to the supply and use of drugs.
45. No open vessels or containers containing alcohol shall be allowed off the premises
46. No drinks shall be permitted outside the front of the premises.
47. Management/staff shall proactively monitor the conduct and behaviour of patrons on the
public highway to ensure no noisy, rowdy or anti-social behaviour (this includes loud
talking/shouting and people congregating in large groups on pavement obstructing the
public highway). Those patrons deemed to be engaging in such behaviour shall be asked to
cease this activity and/or disperse from the premises quietly.
48. Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the needs of
local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly.
49. The provision of licensable activities on the Premises shall at all times be ancillary to the use
of the Premises as a restaurant.

Page 183

Annex D

London Borough of Lambeth
Licensing Department
6th Floor, International House
Canterbury Crescent
London SW9 7QE
Tel: 020 7926 6108
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk/licensing/

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence
Premises Licence Number

Prem2066

Version Reference

17/00164/PRMNEW

Part 1 – Premises Details
Postal address of premises including Post Town & Post Code, or if none, ordnance survey
map reference or description
Your Restaurants Ltd
69-71 Westow Hill
London
SE19 1TX
Telephone number

02087611175

Where the licence is time limited the dates
Licensable activities authorised by the licence
Recorded Music (indoors only)
Performances of Dance (indoors only)
Supply of Alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
Recorded Music
Friday & Saturday
Sunday - Thursday

12:00 - 01:00
12:00 - 00:00

Performances of Dance
Friday & Saturday
Sunday - Thursday

12:00 - 01:00
12:00 - 00:00

Supply of Alcohol
Friday & Saturday
Sunday - Thursday

12:00 - 01:00
12:00 - 00:00

Premises Licence

A-1

Page 184
The opening hours of the premises
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday

12:00
12:00
12:00
12:00
12:00
12:00
12:00

-

00:00
00:00
00:00
00:00
01:00
01:00
00:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off supplies
Alcohol may be supplied for consumption on the premises

Premises Licence

A-2

Page 185
Part 2
Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of
premises licence
Your Restaurants Ltd
6th Floor
Amp House
Dingwall Road
Croydon
Surrey
CR0 2LX
Email Address contact details

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where
applicable)
Registered Company Number
10426068

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises
licence authorises the supply of alcohol
Mr Geoffrey Ridgeon

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated
premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol
Personal Licence No:

Licensing Authority: London Borough Of Lambeth

Signed:……………………
On behalf of the Head
of Community Safety
Dated:…………………….

Premises Licence

A-3

Page 186
Annex 1 – Mandatory conditions
1

MANDATORY CONDITIONS (Alcohol - on)
Condition A1.
No supply of Alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence:
(a)
At a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of the Premises
Licence; or
(b)
At a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a Personal Licence or his
Personal Licence is suspended.
Condition A2
Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made, or authorised by a person who
holds a Personal Licence.
Condition A3
(1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry
out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.
(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities,
or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of
alcohol for consumption on the premises—
(a)
games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage, individuals to—
(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold
or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the
responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or
(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise)
(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;
(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage
or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or
less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing
objective;
(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or
in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone,
encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of
drunkenness in any favourable manner;
(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than
where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of
disability).
Condition A4
The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers
where it is reasonably available.

Premises Licence

A-4

Page 187
Condition A5
(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that
an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or
supply of alcohol.
(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the
supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.
(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years
of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being
served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and
either—
(a)
a holographic mark, or
(b)
an ultraviolet feature.
Condition A6
The responsible person must ensure that—
(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on
the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in
advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to
customers in the following measures—
(i) beer or cider: ½ pint;
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml;
(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is
available to customers on the premises; and
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of
alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.
Additional Mandatory Licensing Conditions, Minimum Drinks Pricing:
1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.
2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1
(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979
(b) "permitted" price is the price found by applying the formula - P=D+(DxV) where:
(i) P is the permitted price,
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the
date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax
were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;
(c)
"relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
premises licence
(i) the holder of the premises licence,
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;
(d)"relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which
enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and
(e)"value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act
1994.
Premises Licence

A-5

Page 188

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken
to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.
4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2
on a day ("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day ("the second
day") as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.
(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol
which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

Premises Licence

A-6

Page 189
Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule
1

The prevention of crime and disorder
1.
No customers carrying open bottles shall be admitted to the premises. No customers shall
be allowed to leave the premises whilst carrying open drinking vessels. (Open shall be taken to
mean an opening of the original manufacturers sealing of the vessel).
2.
The premises shall prominently display signage informing customers: 3.

To leave quietly and to respect your neighbours.

4.

Stating that CCTV is in operation and police have instant access to the footage.

5.
A CCTV system covering areas inside and outside of the premises should be updated and
maintained according to police recommendations with properly maintained log arrangements and
recordings/tapes to be kept for a minimum of 30 days.
6.
The CCTV system is to comply with the Data Protection Act 1998 and must be working and
recording correctly when the venue is open to the public.
7.
A staff member from the venue who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system
must be on the premises at all times that the venue is open to the public. This staff member must
immediately be able to show police or local authority officer's contemporaneous and recent data or
footage on request.
8.
The Premises are to use all reasonable efforts to provide police and local authority officers
with recordings from the CCTV system on request (e.g. by supplying recordings on DVD, CD or
tape). All recordings must be readily playable on local police computers.
9.
Any information regarding crimes committed within the premises, including suspected drug
dealing and violence, should be reported to the police immediately or as soon as is reasonably
practicable.
10.
The Premises are to keep a record of all excluded persons. This record is to be made
available to police officers and local authority officers on request.
11.
All staff members engaged, or to be engaged, in selling alcohol on the premises shall
receive full training pertinent to the Licensing Act, specifically in regard age restricted sales, and the
refusal of sales to persons believed to be under the influence of alcohol. Induction training must be
completed and refresher training at intermittent intervals thereafter.
2

Public Safety
12.

Fire exits are to be clearly signposted within the premises.

13.
Furniture in the premises are to be laid out in a manner facilitating ease of evacuation of
patrons in the event of emergency.
14.
3

Dispersal Policy must be in place.

Prevention of Public Nuisance
15.
A noise limiter must be fitted to the musical amplification system set at a level determined
by and to the satisfaction of an authorised officer of the Environmental Health Service, Premises
Management so as to ensure that no noise nuisance is caused to local residents or businesses. The

Premises Licence

A-7

Page 190
operational panel of the noise limiter shall then be secured by key or password to the satisfaction of
officers from the Environmental Health Service and access shall only be by persons authorised by
the Premises Licence holder. The limiter shall not be altered without prior agreement with the
Environmental Health Service. No alteration or modification to any existing sound system(s) should
be effected without prior knowledge of an authorised Officer of the Environmental Health Service.
No additional sound generating equipment shall be used on the premises without being routed
through the sound limiter device.
16.
Management/staff shall robustly monitor alcohol consumption and promote responsible
drinking at all times. The sale of alcohol shall be prohibited/restricted where deemed necessary to
ensure customers do not become inebriated. The premises shall at all times maintain and operate a
sales refusals log and be kept on the premises. The logbook shall be reviewed and signed by the
Designated Premises Supervisor at intervals of no more than four (4) weeks. Feedback shall be
given to staff to ensure these are used on each occasion that a refusal or incident occurs at the
premises. These records shall be made immediately available upon request to the Local Authority
Licensing Officers and Lambeth Police Licensing Officers.
17.
In the event of a private function dance will be permitted to take place as long as there is
no access by the general public.
18.

No alcohol is to be served to persons who are drunk or misbehave in the premises

19.
The Premises are to keep a record of all excluded persons. This record is to be made
available to police officers and local authority officers on request.
20.
Any information regarding crimes committed within the premises, including suspected drug
dealing and violence, should be reported to the police immediately or as soon as is reasonably
practicable.
21.
An underage refusals book is provided to record every instance where age restricted goods
is refused (e.g. alcohol and tobacco). The refused sale book will be available for inspection by an
authorised officer of the licensing authority, Trading standards officer or police.
22.
No customers carrying open bottles shall be admitted to the premises. No customers shall
be allowed to leave the premises whilst carrying open drinking vessels. (Open shall be taken to
mean an opening of the original manufacturers sealing of the vessel).
23.
Implement a dispersal policy at the terminal hour to ensure all patrons leave the premises
and vicinity as quietly and speedily as possible. Ensure that patrons are verbally advised by
management/staff upon leaving to be mindful of the neighbouring residents so as not to disturb the
peace.
4

Protection of Children from Harm
24.
A policy shall be employed at the premises requiring the production of 'Proof of Age' for any
sale that takes place where there is suspicion that the customer may be under 21 (Challenge 25
Scheme). The following are the only forms of identification that will be accepted by the shop staff:a.
b.
c.

A photo driving licence.
A valid passport
A Portman proof of age card.
If any doubt exists about whether a person has attained the age of 18 the sale will
be refused.
25.
All staff members engaged, or to be engaged, in selling alcohol on the premises shall
receive full training pertinent to the Licensing Act, specifically in regard age-restricted sales, and the
refusal of sales to persons believed to be under the influence of alcohol. Refresher training shall be
undertaken at least twice a year by staff involved in the sale of alcohol and be fully documented and
signed by the employee and the PLH/DPS. All training records shall be made immediately available
Premises Licence

A-8

Page 191
upon request to all Local Authority Officers with delegated authority in respect of enforcing the
Licensing Act 2003.
26.
Children are only to be admitted to the premises if accompanied by a parent or appropriate
guardian.
27.

No children under the age of 16, are allowed to be in the restaurant after 9p.m.

28.
In cases of private parties and weddings, where no outside public are allowed rights to the
premises. The children under 18 years old, must be kept under supervision from parents or
guardians throughout their stay

Premises Licence

A-9

Page 192
Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

Premises Licence

A - 10

Page 193
Annex 4 – Plans

Premises Licence

A - 11

Page 194

London Borough of Lambeth
Licensing Department
3rd Floor, Civic Centre
6 Brixton Hill
London SW2 1EG
Tel: 020 7926 6108
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk/licensing/

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence
Premises Licence Number

Version Reference

Prem2208

19/00068/PRMNEW

Part 1 – Premises Details
Postal address of premises including Post Town & Post Code, or if none, ordnance survey map
reference or description
The Exhibition Rooms Restaurant
69-71 Westow Hill
London
SE19 1TX
Telephone number

02087611175

Where the licence is time limited the dates
Licensable activities authorised by the licence
Recorded Music (indoors only)
Performances of Dance (indoors only)
Late Night Refreshment (indoors only)
Sale by Retail of Alcohol
The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
Recorded Music
Friday & Saturday
Sunday - Thursday

12:00 - 01:00
12:00 - 00:00

Until 03:00 hours on New Years Day
Performances of Dance
Friday & Saturday
Sunday - Thursday

12:00 - 01:00
12:00 - 00:00

Until 03:00 hours on New Years Day
Late Night Refreshment
Friday & Saturday
Sunday - Thursday

23:00 - 01:00
23:00 - 00:00

Until 03:00 hours on New Years Day

Premises Licence

A-1

Page 195
Sale by Retail of Alcohol
Friday & Saturday
Monday - Thursday
Sunday

12:00 - 01:00
12:00 - 23:45
12:00 - 00:00

Until 03:00 hours on New Years Day
Opening Hours (Non-standard & Seasonal)
Until 04:00 hours on New Years Day

The opening hours of the premises
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday

12:00
12:00
12:00
12:00
12:00
12:00
11:00

-

00:00
00:00
00:00
00:00
01:30
01:30
00:30

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off supplies
Alcohol may be supplied for consumption both on and off the premises

Premises Licence

A-2

Page 196
Part 2
Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of
premises licence
Exhibition Rooms Ltd
69 Westow Hill
Crystal Palace
London
SE19 1TX
Email Address contact details

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number
Registered Company Number

11775943

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises
licence authorises the supply or the sale by retail of alcohol
Jennifer Labbett

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises
supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply or sale by retail of alcohol
Personal Licence No:

Licensing Authority: London Borough Of Lambeth

Signed:

On behalf of the Head of Public
Protection & Regulatory Services
Dated: 2 April 2019

Premises Licence

A-3

Page 197
Annex 1 – Mandatory conditions
MANDATORY CONDITIONS (Alcohol - on)
Condition A1
No supply of Alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence:
(a)
(b)

At a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of the Premises
Licence; or
At a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a Personal Licence or is
suspended.

Condition A2
Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made, or authorised by a person who
holds a Personal Licence.
Condition A3
(1)
(2)

(a)
(i)
(ii)

The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry
out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.
In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the
sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises—
games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage, individuals to—
drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold
or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the
responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or
drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise)

(b)

provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(c)

provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage
or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or
less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing
objective;

(d)

selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or
in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone,
encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of
drunkenness in any favourable manner;

(e)

dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than
where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of
disability).

Condition A4
The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers
where it is reasonably available.
Condition A5
(1)

The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that

Premises Licence

A-4

Page 198
an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of
alcohol.
(2)

The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the supply
of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.

(3)

The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of
age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served
alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and
either—
(a)
a holographic mark, or
(b)
an ultraviolet feature.

Condition A6
The responsible person must ensure that—
(a)

where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises
(other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or
supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures—
(i) beer or cider: ½ pint;
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml;

(b)

these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available to
customers on the premises; and

(c)

where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be sold,
the customer is made aware that these measures are available.

Additional Mandatory Licensing Conditions, Minimum Drinks Pricing:
1.

A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2.

For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1

(a)
(b)

"duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979
"permitted" price is the price found by applying the formula - P=D+(DxV) where:
(i) P is the permitted price,
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the
date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax
were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;
"relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises
licence
(i) the holder of the premises licence,
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;

(c)

(d)
(e)
3.

"relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises
certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables
the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and
"value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act
1994.
Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph)
not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the
price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

Premises Licence

A-5

Page 199
4.

(1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a
day ("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day ("the second day")
as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.
(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol
which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

MANDATORY CONDITIONS - Door Supervision - except theatres, cinemas, bingo halls and
casinos
1.
Where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified times one or more individuals must
be at the premises to carry out a security activity, each such individual must:
(a)
be authorised to carry out that activity by a licence granted under the Private
Security Industry Act 2001; or
(b)
be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of the Act.
2.

But nothing in subsection (1) requires such a condition to be imposed:
(a)
in respect of premises within paragraph 8(3)(a) of Schedule 2 to the Private Security
Industry Act 2001 (c12) (premises with premises licences authorising plays or films); or
(b)
in respect of premises in relation to:
(i) any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(b) or (c) of that Schedule (premises being
used exclusively by club with club premises certificate, under a temporary event notice
authorising plays or films or under a gaming licence), or
(ii) any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of that Schedule (occasions prescribed by
regulations under that Act.

3.

For the purposes of this section:
(a)
"security activity" means an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of that Schedule applies,
and, which is licensable conduct for the purposes of that Act, (see Section 3(2) of that Act)
and
(b)
paragraph 8(5) of that Schedule (interpretation of references to an occasion) applies as it
applies in relation to paragraph 8 of that Schedule.

Premises Licence

A-6

Page 200
Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule
1. Sale of alcohol shall be ancillary to a table meal on the ground floor except to no more than 10
customers seated by the bar waiting to be shown to a table.
2. All tables and chairs on the ground floor to remain in-situ at all times.
3. Background recorded music is permitted on the ground floor.
4. The number of patrons on the premises shall not be more than;
Ground Floor – 50 person
Lower Ground Floor - 80 persons
5. The rear courtyard shall not be used after 22:00 hours on Sunday to Thursday and 23:00 hours on
Friday and Saturday.
6. When the use of the rear courtyard ceases, the number of customers permitted to smoke at the front
of the premises shall not be more than five at any one time and customers shall not be permitted to
take drinks or glass containers with them.
7. Notices shall be prominently displayed at the rear courtyard requesting patrons to use the area quietly.
8. Patrons shall be requested not to loiter outside the premises and to leave the premises quietly. Notices
to this effect must be prominently displayed at the entrances of the premises.
9. Management/staff shall proactively monitor the conduct and behaviour of patrons on the public highway
to ensure no noisy, rowdy or anti-social behaviour (this includes loud talking/shouting, spitting and
people congregating in large groups on pavement obstructing the public highway). Those patrons
deemed to be engaging in such behaviour shall be asked to cease this activity and/or disperse from the
premises quietly.
10. An incident log shall be kept at the premises and retained for a period of 12 months and made available
on request to an authorised officer of Lambeth Council or the
Police. It must be completed within 24 hours of the incident and will record the following:
(a) all crimes reported to the venue
(b) all ejections of patrons
(c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder
(d) any incidents of disorder
(e) any refusal of the sale of alcohol
(f) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.
11. Implement a dispersal policy at the terminal hour to ensure all patrons leave the premises and vicinity as
quietly and speedily as possible. Ensure that patrons are verbally advised by management/staff upon
leaving to be mindful of the neighbouring residents so as not to disturb the peace.
12. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system. All entry and exit points must be
covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in a light condition. The CCTV system
shall continually record whilst the premises are open. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period
of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately
upon the request of Police or authorised officer of Lambeth Council.
13. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system shall be in
the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff member must be able to provide a Police
or authorised council officer copies of recent CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay
when requested and within a maximum of 24 hours of the initial request.
14. Subject to Data Protection guidance and legislation, the management of the premises will ensure that
key staff are fully trained in the operation of the CCTV, and will be able to download selected footage
Premises Licence

A-7

Page 201
onto a disk/USB Stick for the Police or authorised officers of the Local Authority without difficulty, delay
or charge.
15. Any CCTV breakdown or system failure will be notified to the Police and Local Authority immediately &
remedied as soon as practicable. Repair records / invoices shall be kept on site for at least 12 months
and be readily available to be viewed by all authorised persons upon request.
16. The premises shall adopt an age verification policy set at a minimum of 25 years, whereby any person
attempting to buy alcohol who appears to be under 25 (or the age set by the policy) will be asked for
photographic ID to prove their age.
17. The only form of ID that will be accepted are passports, driving licences with a photograph or Citizen
card or validated proof of age cards bearing the "PASS" mark hologram.
18. Signage advertising the "Challenge 25" policy will be displayed in prominent locations in the premises
and shall include the point of sale and the area where the alcohol is displayed.
19. The lower ground floor is to be used for private events.
20. Private events shall be pre-booked in advance and details of the booking shall be made available to the
Police and officer of the local authority when requested.
21. At least one SIA door staff shall be employed when the premises is used for private events on Friday
and Saturday from 21:00 hours until closing.
22. Children under the age of 18 must be accompanied by a parent or responsible guardian.
23. No customers carrying open bottles shall be admitted to the premises or be allowed to leave the
premises whilst carrying open drinking vessels. (Open shall be taken to mean an opening of the
original manufacturers sealing of the vessel).
24. All staff members engaged, or to be engaged, in selling alcohol on the premises shall receive full training
pertinent to the Licensing Act, specifically in regard age-restricted sales, and the refusal of sales to
persons believed to be under the influence of alcohol. Refresher training shall be undertaken at least
twice a year by staff involved in the sale of alcohol and be fully documented and signed by the employee
and the PLH/DPS. All training records shall be made immediately available upon request to all Local
Authority Officers with delegated authority in respect of enforcing the Licensing Act 2003.
25. All waste shall be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 30 minutes before the
scheduled collection times.
26. On Friday to Sunday, patrons to be off the premises not more than 30 minutes after the end of
licensable activities.
27. Sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises will cease not less than 15 minutes prior to the end of
opening times.
28. The licensee shall use their best endeavours to ensure that delivery drivers do not congregate in the
vicinity of the premises, obstruct the highway or cause noise or other nuisance outside the premises.
29. The licence holder shall encourage the use of bicycles and less noise generating motorcycles for the
delivery of alcohol for consumption off the premises.
30. All online menus will display the following message to prevent underage sales of alcohol:
‘Alcohol is not for sale to people under the age of 18. By placing an order for alcohol products on this
site, you are declaring that you are 18 years of age or over.

Premises Licence

A-8

Page 202
31. There shall be no emptying of bottle banks between the hours of 20:00 - 08:00 hours on Monday to
Sunday to safeguard the peaceful amenities of residents.
32. The Premises will be an active member of a Pubwatch Scheme or similar Group where there is one in
operation. The premises shall be represented at 75% of all meetings as a minimum. If in operation, and
used by all group members of the Pubwatch scheme, the premises shall operate a radio link with the
other group members.
33. A noise limiter must be fitted to the musical amplification system set at a level determined by and to the
satisfaction of an authorised officer of the Environmental Health Service, Premises Management so as to
ensure that no noise nuisance is caused to local residents or businesses. The operational panel of the
noise limiter shall then be secured by key or password to the satisfaction of officers from the local
authority and access shall only be by persons authorised by the Premises Licence holder. The limiter
shall not be altered without prior agreement with the local authority. No alteration or modification to any
existing sound system(s) should be effected without prior knowledge of an authorised Officer of local
authority. No additional sound generating equipment shall be used on the premises without being routed
through the sound limiting device.

Premises Licence

A-9

Page 203
Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority
None

Premises Licence

A - 10

Page 204
Annex 4 – Plans

Premises Licence

A - 11

